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Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council/Planning 
Commission/Public Financing Authority/Housing Authority/I.B. Redevelopment Agency 
Successor Agency regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 
inspection in the office of the City Clerk located at 825 Imperial Beach Blvd., Imperial Beach, CA 
91932 during normal business hours. 

A G E N D A  

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

HOUSING AUTHORITY 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

 
JANUARY 21, 2015 
Council Chambers 

825 Imperial Beach Boulevard 
Imperial Beach, CA  91932 

REGULAR & CLOSED SESSION MEETINGS – 6:00 P.M. 
 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL ALSO SITS AS THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH PLANNING COMMISSION, 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, HOUSING AUTHORITY AND IMPERIAL BEACH 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

The City of Imperial Beach is endeavoring to be in total compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA).  If you require assistance or auxiliary aids in order to participate at City Council meetings, 

please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (619) 423-8301, as far in advance of the meeting as possible. 

REGULAR MEETING CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA CHANGES 

MAYOR/COUNCIL REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE/COMMUNITY 
ANNOUNCEMENTS/REPORTS ON ASSIGNMENTS AND COMMITTEES 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY STAFF 

PUBLIC COMMENT- Each person wishing to address the City Council regarding items not on the 
posted agenda may do so at this time.  In accordance with State law, Council may not take action on an 
item not scheduled on the agenda.  If appropriate, the item will be referred to the City Manager or placed 
on a future agenda. 

PRESENTATIONS (1.1) 
1.1* DONATION OF PROCEEDS FROM THE ENDLESS SUMMER CLASSIC CAR SHOW 

BY SOUTH BAY CRUISERS CAR CLUB TO IMPERIAL BEACH BOYS AND GIRLS 
CLUB.  (0130-08) 

* No Staff Report 
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CONSENT CALENDAR (2.1-2.7)-All matters listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine 

by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items, 
unless a Councilmember or member of the public requests that particular item(s) be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and considered separately.  Those items removed from the Consent Calendar will be discussed at 
the end of the Agenda. 

2.1 MINUTES. 
 Recommendation:  Approve the Regular City Council Meeting Minutes of December 3, 

2014. 

2.2 RATIFICATION OF WARRANT REGISTER.  (0300-25) 
 Recommendation:  Ratify the following registers: Accounts Payable Numbers 85715 

through 85948 with a subtotal amount of $1,330,961.76 and Payroll Checks/Direct 
Deposits 46317 through 46398 for a subtotal amount of $510,933.00 for a total amount 
of $1,841,894.76. 

2.3 APPROVAL OF PURCHASE OF TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE, PHONES AND 
INSTALLATION OF CABLING FROM VERIZON.  (1100-05) 

 Recommendation:  Approve the purchase of telecommunications service, phones and 
installation of cabling from Verizon using funds from the adopted FY2015 budget. 

2.4 RESOLUTION NO. 2015-7540 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN A 
SECOND COMMITMENT LETTER TO THE 2012 RECOVERY STRATEGY FOR THE 
TIJUANA RIVER VALLEY.  (0770-87) 

 Recommendation:  Receive report and adopt resolution. 

2.5 APPROVAL OF RECOMMENDATION TO REMOVE UP TO 15 MATURE TREES 
FROM SPORTS PARK.  (0920-40) 

 Recommendation:   
1. Receive report; 
2. Direct staff to permit Mariner’s Point to remove the seven trees shown in attachment 

1 of the staff report following the signing of a hold harmless agreement between the 
parties;  

3. Direct staff to revisit the Sports Park plan for removal and replacement of the park 
trees in the next budget cycle; and 

4. Present the revisited plan to City Council as part of the FY 2015/16 and 
FY 2016/2017 budget cycle. 

2.6 ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 2015-7542 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
ENTER IN TO AN AGREEMENT WITH PYRO SPECTACULAR, INC. FOR 
PRODUCTION OF A 4TH OF JULY FIREWORKS DISPLAY.  (1040-40) 

 Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution Number 2015-7542, authorizing the City Manager 
to enter into an agreement with Pyro Spectacular to produce a 4th of July Fireworks 
show in 2015 and the associated expense from the General Fund Reserves, accept the 
grant of $25,000 from the Port of San Diego, and initiate a fundraising effort in the 
community. 

2.7 RESOLUTION NO. 2015-7543 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AN AGREEMENT WITH THE SAN DIEGO UNIFIED PORT DISTRICT FOR 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND OTHER MATTERS ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
SYMPHONY BY THE SEA EVENT. (1040-40) 

 Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution. 
ORDINANCES – INTRODUCTION/FIRST READING (3.1) 
3.1 ORDINANCE 2015-1149 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF IMPERIAL BEACH, CALIFORNIA AMENDING SECTION 10.36.025 OF THE 
IMPERIAL BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO THE PROHIBITION OF USE OF 
STREETS FOR HABITATION.  (0920-95) 

 Recommendation:  That the City Council introduce Ordinance No. 2015-1149 by title 
only, waive full reading of the Ordinance and schedule the second reading and adoption 
of the Ordinance on February 4, 2015. 
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PUBLIC HEARINGS (4.1) 
4.1 IMPERIAL BEACH RESORT, LLC (OWNER); REGULAR COASTAL PERMIT (CP 

140044) TO DEMOLISH 29 EXISTING RESIDENTIAL DWELLING UNITS (2 UNITS TO 
REMAIN) AND OTHER EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS AT 1046 SEACOAST DRIVE 
(APN 625-380-27-00) IN THE C/MU-2 (SEACOAST COMMERCIAL & MIXED-USE) 
AND SEACOAST COMMERCIAL MIXED-USE/RESIDENTIAL OVERLAY ZONES. MF 
1166; RESOLUTION 2015-7544.  (0600-20) 

 Recommendation: 
 1. Declare the public hearing open; 

2. Receive report and entertain public testimony;  
3. Close the public hearing; and 
4. That the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2015-7544, approving Regular Coastal 

Permit (CP 140044), which makes the necessary findings for demolition of 29 
residential units (5 buildings) and other improvements at 1046 Seacoast Drive and 
provides conditions of approval in compliance with local, state, and federal 
regulations.   

REPORTS (5.1-5.4) 
5.1 DISCUSSION RE: 1300 BLOCK ELM AVENUE AS UTILITY UNDERGROUND 

DISTRICT.  (0810-90) 
Recommendation:   
1. Receive report; 
2. Discuss the pro’s and con’s of forming a new utilities underground district on 1300 

block of Elm Avenue – approximate length of 510 feet; 
3. Discuss adding the 1200 block of Elm Avenue (620 feet) or a portion thereof to meet 

the 600-foot minimum required of a District; and 
4. Give staff direction to either form a District coincident with City of San Diego project 

on Elm Avenue or defer the creation of an underground district consisting of Elm 
Avenue 1300 block plus an additional street section. 

5.2 RESOLUTION NO. 2015-7541 TO CONSIDER AN ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION 
PROGRAM (ATP): SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROJECT ON 900 TO 1100 
BLOCKS OF FERN AVENUE AND TO APPROPRIATE $15,000 FROM GAS TAX 
RESERVE FUND TO DEVELOP THE PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK AND GRANT 
APPLICATION.  (0390-84 & 0810-90) 
Recommendation:   
1. Receive report; 
2. Discuss the relative importance of initiating this project against other pedestrian, 

bicycle and vehicle public safety priorities within the City; 
2. Give staff direction to either proceed with developing a project scope and grant 

application or defer this project to a future time; and 
3. If directed to proceed with developing a project scope of work and grant application, 

appropriate $15,000 from Gas Tax Reserve for the work proposed herein. 

5.3 FISCAL YEAR 2014 AUDIT UPDATE.  (0720-50) 
Recommendation:  That the City Council receive the Fiscal Year 2014 Financial Audit 
and related documents. 

5.4 STATUS UPDATE ON PROJECTS CONTAINED IN THE TWO YEAR 
IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY PORTION OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM.  (0330-35) 
Recommendation:   
1. Receive and file report; 
2. Provide direction and course correction to staff as deemed necessary; and 
3. No official action necessary. 
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I.B. REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY REPORTS (6) 
None.  

ITEMS PULLED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR (IF ANY) 
ADJOURN REGULAR MEETING 
CLOSED SESSION MEETING CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 
CLOSED SESSION 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Initiation of Litigation pursuant to Govt. Code section 54956.9 (d)(4) 

2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
City Representatives: City Manager, City Attorney, Assistant City Manager, Human 

Resources Manager 
Employee Organization: Service Employees International Union, Local 221 

RECONVENE AND ANNOUNCE ACTION (IF APPROPRIATE) 
ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION 
 

The Imperial Beach City Council welcomes you and encourages your continued interest and 
involvement in the City’s decision-making process. 

FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE, A COPY OF THE AGENDA AND COUNCIL MEETING PACKET MAY BE 
VIEWED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK AT CITY HALL OR ON OUR WEBSITE AT 

www.ImperialBeachCA.gov 
 
 

          /s/    
Jacqueline M. Hald, MMC 
City Clerk 

http://www.imperialbeachca.gov/




























































































 

CALNET 3 - Hosted VoIP Service 
 

Polycom SoundPoint IP Series IP Phones 

Standard Desktop SIP 2 Line Phone Set - Full Duplex Speaker 

Polycom Sound IP 321/331 

Advanced Desktop SIP 4 Line Phone Set - HD Voice 

Polycom 550 

Advanced Desktop IP SIP 6 Line Phone set -HD Voice  

Polycom 650 

Expansion Module - Back lit 

 Sound Point 650 Expansion Module  

Conference Phone 

Polycom SoundPoint IP 6000  

The Polycom SoundPoint IP Series is an enterprise-grade family of IP 
desktop phones designed to make voice communications effective and 
productive. 
The SoundPoint IP family features the most comprehensive, best-sounding, 
most interoperable, high-quality IP phone solutions for businesses and 
enterprises of all sizes. 
Features: 
Excellent sound quality that produces lifelike audio communications 
Broad interoperability 
Intuitive, expandable, business-class desk phones that are easy to provision 
and manage 
 
 

 

 
 

http://myvzweb.verizon.co/


 

 

SoundPoint IP 321 & 331 
The Polycom SoundPoint IP 321 & 331 phones are simple, reliable, enterprise-grade 
IP phones. 

Excellent sound quality and enterprise-grade features in a simple, reliable IP 
deskphone. 

The last thing your business needs is another set of technologies to distract your 
teams from the business at hand. The most commonly requested phone features are 
the simple ones – often, all your teams need is a simple, reliable deskphone without 
the distractions created by advanced features. 

The SoundPoint IP 321 and 331 are two-line enterprise-grade IP deskphones with 
excellent sound quality. They are easy to use and are designed for small and 
medium-sized businesses and enterprises. 

Features: 

 Two-line deskphones with excellent sound quality 

 A set of enterprise-grade features 

 Easy configuration and use 

 Interoperability with leading IP PBX and Softswitch platforms 

 SIP features 

 

Standard Standalone VoIP Handset Service Package without Station Cabling - SVHS0001  

NRC $100.16 

 

 
 
 

http://www.polycom.com/products-services/voice/desktop-solutions/soundpont-ip-series/soundpoint-ip-670.html
http://www.polycom.com/products-services/voice/desktop-solutions/soundpont-ip-series/soundpoint-ip-321-331.html
http://www.polycom.com/products-services/voice/desktop-solutions/soundpont-ip-series/soundpoint-ip-321-331.html
http://www.polycom.com/products-services/voice/desktop-solutions/soundpont-ip-series/soundpoint-ip-321-331.html
http://www.polycom.com/products-services/voice/desktop-solutions/soundpont-ip-series/soundpoint-ip-321-331.html


 

SoundPoint IP 550 
The Polycom SoundPoint IP 550 is a four-line SIP desktop phone 

The Polycom SoundPoint IP 550 is a four-line SIP desktop phone with crystal-clear 
voice quality. It also offers a comprehensive range of advanced features and 
applications that support business workflows 

Your teams need reliable communication devices. They prefer deskphones that 
come with multiple lines, but without complicated features. 

The Polycom SoundPoint IP 550 is a four-line SIP desktop phone that brings lifelike 
richness and voice quality to phone calls. It combines state-of-the-art hardware with 
the proven Polycom UC software designed for busy professionals. 

A reliable deskphone that comes with an advanced set of benefits and features that 
are easy to learn. 

Features: 

 A four-line SIP desktop phone 

 Revolutionary voice quality with Polycom HD Voice technology 

 

Midrange Standalone VoIP Handset Service Package without Station Cabling - SVHS0003 

NRC $215.17  

 

http://www.polycom.com/products-services/voice/desktop-solutions/soundpont-ip-series/soundpoint-ip-670.html
http://www.polycom.com/products-services/voice/desktop-solutions/soundpont-ip-series/soundpoint-ip-550.html


 

SoundPoint IP 650 
Polycom SoundPoint IP 650 is a premium SIP desktop phone with crystal-clear HD 
Voice 

The Polycom SoundPoint IP 650 is a SIP desktop phone with crystal-clear voice 
quality and advanced features that support business work-flows. 

Your teams need reliable communication devices. They prefer desk phones that 
come with multiple lines, but without complicated features. 

The Polycom SoundPoint IP 650 is a six-line SIP desktop phone that brings life-like 
richness and voice quality to phone calls. It combines state-of-the-art hardware with 
the proven Polycom UC software designed for executive users and busy 
professionals. 

Features: 

 Is a six-line SIP desktop phone 

 Delivers revolutionary voice quality thanks to Polycom HD Voice technology 

 Grows with the needs of your business. It is expandable up to twelve lines with a 
Polycom SoundPoint IP Expansion Module 

 

Executive Standalone VoIP Handset Service Package without Station Cabling - SVHS0005 
NRC $255.64 
 

 

 

http://www.polycom.com/products-services/voice/desktop-solutions/soundpont-ip-series/soundpoint-ip-670.html
http://www.polycom.com/products-services/voice/desktop-solutions/soundpont-ip-series/soundpoint-ip-650.html


 

SoundPoint IP Backlit Expansion Module 
The SPIP IP Backlit Expansion Module optimizes the call handling capacity of 
telephone attendants. 

Turn your Polycom SoundPoint IP 650 desktop phone into a high-performance 
attendant console. 

In the eyes of your customers, how those in your organization answer calls reflects 
on your entire operation. As your business grows, you need an attendant console 
you can also expand to meet the growing volume of calls to your facility. 

The SoundPoint IP Expansion Module is a true "plug-and-play" device. It adds 14 
lines to the host SoundPoint IP 650 phone without any setup or extra cabling. 

Features: 

 Plug-and-play – It requires no setup as the host phone provides power and 
signaling 

 User-friendly, with call visualization similar to that on the SoundPoint IP 650 

 Configurable as a line appearance or as a speed dial with busy lamp field (BLF) 

 

Attendant Standalone VoIP Handset Service Package without Station Cabling - SVHS0007 
(SoundPoint IP 650 with Backlit Expansion Module)  
NRC $396.80 
 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.polycom.com/products-services/voice/desktop-solutions/soundpont-ip-series/soundpoint-ip-backlit-expansion-module.html
http://www.polycom.com/products-services/voice/desktop-solutions/soundpont-ip-series/soundpoint-ip-backlit-expansion-module.html


 

Polycom SoundStation IP 6000 
Delivering superior performance for midsize conference rooms, the Polycom 
SoundStation IP 6000 conference phone offers a price-to-performance breakthrough 
for SIP environments. 

It comes with advanced features, such as broad interoperability and remarkable 
voice quality. The SoundStation IP 6000 features Polycom HD Voice technology, 
which boosts productivity and reduces listener fatigue by turning ordinary conference 
calls into crystal-clear, interactive conversations that sound as natural as being there. 

Polycom SoundStation IP 6000 phones deliver: 

 Unparalleled clarity – Polycom HD Voice makes your conference calls sound 
amazingly clear and lifelike 

 More productive conference calls – Our patented Polycom Acoustic Clarity 
technology provides you with the best conference phone experience and no 
compromises 

 Conferencing technology that is ideal for midsize rooms – Its 12-foot (3.5-meters) 
microphone pickup is designed for small and midsize conference rooms 
accommodating up to 12 people 

 Flexible room coverage – Benefit from optional expansion microphones and 
support for lapel microphones 

 Robust interoperability – These phones are compatible with a broad array of SIP 
call platforms with maximum voice quality and feature availability, and simplifed 
management and administration 

 

Executive Standalone VoIP Speakerphone Service Package without Station Cabling - 
SVHS0012 
NRC $549.07 
 

 

 



Verizon Hosted IP Centex 
 
End-User Features 
Verizon Hosted IP Centrex comes with the standard feature package listed below as 
new features are added they will be made available to all Verizon HIPC users. All of the 
features listed below come with the feature profile however, an administrator can elect to 
turn some of these features on or off. 
 

Features Description 

Anonymous Call 
Rejection 

Benefit:  Subscribers can reject calls from callers who have 
explicitly restricted their Caller ID.  The feature offers privacy 
and minimizes unwanted interruptions. 
Description:  Enables a subscriber to reject calls from 
anonymous parties who have explicitly restricted their Caller 
ID. By activating the service via the end-user Communication 
Manager web interface, callers without available caller 
identification are informed that the subscriber is not accepting 
calls at that time. The subscriber's phone does not ring and 
the subscriber sees or hears no indication of the attempted 
call. This service does not apply to intra-location calls. 
Only deliberate anonymous numbers are rejected. Callers 
whose numbers are unavailable are not rejected. Callers that 
are rejected are informed that the called party is not accepting 
calls from unidentified callers. ("The party you are trying to 
reach is not accepting calls at this time.")  

Note: The caller will be blocked altogether. The caller will not 
be forwarded to voicemail for example even if the called party 
has the voicemail feature. 

Alternate Numbers Benefit:  Allows subscribers to manage three incoming lines. 
Description:  Enables an administrator to configure up to two 
additional phone numbers and/or extensions to a subscriber. 
Normal ringing is provided for incoming calls to the primary 
phone number and subscribers have the option of enabling a 
distinctive ring for calls to their second and third phone 
numbers. If distinctive ringing is enabled, distinctive call 
waiting tone will also apply. For outgoing calls from the 
subscriber, the subscriber's primary phone number is the 
calling line identity. 

Automatic Callback Benefit:  Subscribers can automatically call back a user when 
they are available. 
Description:  The Automatic Callback (ACB) service allows 
users to monitor a busy party and automatically establish a 
call when the busy party becomes idle.  
Upon reaching a valid ACB busy condition, the user will hear 



an announcement asking if they would like to monitor the line 
and be called back when it is idle. To activate ACB, the 
subscriber enters the digit prompted for then goes on hook. 
As soon as the called party becomes idle again, ACB 
attempts to re-establish the call between the subscriber and 
the previous busy party. 
The ACB service can only be activated against a destination 
within the same group. 

Blind Call Transfer Benefit:  Subscribers can direct calls without answering the 
phone. 
Description:  Enables a subscriber to transfer a call 
unattended before or after the call is answered. Subscribers 
can only execute blind call transfer from the Communication 
Manager.  
Note: When using the Cisco 7912, 7960, or 7940 phones, this 
call transfer feature can be negatively impacted if multiple 
incoming calls are received at the same time. 

Call Blast Personal Benefit:  Subscribers can receive incoming calls at all 
possible locations and without having to set up routing to 
different devices. 
For example, calls to a subscriber's desk phone could also 
ring the subscriber's mobile phone, in case they are not at 
their desk. 
Description:  Call Blast enables subscribers to have multiple 
phones ring simultaneously when any calls are received on 
their VoIP phone number. The first phone to be answered is 
connected. Caller can also select to have simultaneous 
devices not ring while already on a call or ring on all incoming 
calls. 

Call Forwarding Always Benefit:  Same feature functionality as PBX/Centrex. 
Subscribers can easily redirect all incoming calls by dialing a 
feature code or configuring the service via the Subscriber 
Web Interface. 
Description:  Enables a subscriber to redirect all incoming 
calls to another phone number.  If activated, a subscriber 
must specify the forwarding number.  A status indicator on 
Communication Manager identifies whether this service is 
enabled.  Subscribers can also make their office phone emit a 
short ring burst to inform them when call is forwarded. 

Call Forwarding Busy Benefit:  Same feature functionality as PBX/Centrex. 
Subscribers can easily route calls to another number if their 
line is busy; feature can be activated/deactivated either by 
dialing a feature code or configuring the service via the 
Communication Manager. 
Description:  Enables a subscriber to redirect calls to another 



destination when an incoming call encounters a busy 
condition. If activated, a subscriber must specify the 
forwarding number. 

Call Forwarding – Multi-
Phone 

Benefit:  Allows a subscriber to have multiple numbers used 
for call forwarding. 
Description:  Multi-Phone call forwarding allows an end-user 
to specify a different forwarding number for each entry of 
Selective Call Forwarding.  Call Forward Selective sets the 
criteria to make this feature work. 

Call Forwarding No 
Answer 

Benefit:  Same feature functionality as PBX/Centrex. 
Subscribers can easily route calls to another number if they 
don't pick up; feature can be activated/deactivated either by 
dialing a feature code or configuring the service via the 
Subscriber Web Interface. 
Description:  Enables a subscriber to redirect calls to another 
destination when an incoming call is not answered within a 
specified number of rings. If activated, a subscriber must 
specify the forwarding number and the number of rings before 
forwarding. 

Call Forwarding 
Selective 

Benefit:  Same feature functionality as PBX/Centrex. 
Subscribers can easily route selected calls to another 
destination and control the service via Call Manager, which 
provides the ability to set the forwarding destination address 
and the criteria sets for determining which calls require 
forwarding. 
Description:  Enables a subscriber to define criteria that 
causes certain incoming calls to be redirected to another 
destination. If an incoming call meets subscriber specified 
criteria, the call is redirected to the subscriber specified 
destination. A criteria set is based on incoming calling line 
identity, time of day, and day of week. Multiple criteria sets 
can be defined. 
All criteria must be met for a call to be forwarded in this 
scenario. If all criteria are not met, the call is delivered as if 
service was not available. Up to 12 incoming numbers can be 
defined for forwarding. 
Available if the enterprise location is within the Verizon local 
footprint. 

Call Notify Benefit:  Subscribers can take advantage of e-mail to identify 
incoming calls and control the service via the Call Manager 
Interface, which provides the ability to set the notify e-mail 
address and the criteria sets for determining which calls 
trigger a notification. 
Description:  Enables a subscriber to define criteria that 
causes certain incoming calls to trigger an e-mail notification. 



If an incoming call meets subscriber specified criteria, an e-
mail (or short message to a cell phone) is sent to the notify 
address informing the subscriber of the details of the 
incoming call attempt. A criteria set is based on incoming 
calling line identity, time of day and day of week. Multiple 
criteria sets can be defined. 

Call Park Benefit:  Same feature functionality as PBX/Centrex. 
Subscribers can pick up calls from other stations within the 
call pick-up group. 
Description:  Enables a subscriber to put a call on hold and 
then retrieve it from another station within the call pick-up 
group.  
To park a call, a subscriber depresses the flash hook and 
dials the call park feature code. The call is parked and the 
caller is held.  
To retrieve the call, the subscriber goes to any phone in the 
call pick-up group and dials the call retrieve feature code, 
followed by the subscriber's extension. The call is retrieved 
and connected to the retrieving subscriber. Subscribers can 
also execute call park via the Communication Manager. 

Call Pickup Description:  Enables a subscriber to answer any ringing line 
within their pick-up group. The administrator sets up the pick-
up group which defines the set of subscribers to which the call 
pickup feature applies.  End-users can pick up a ringing call, 
using the call pick-up feature code.  The user is then 
connected to the caller.  If more than one line in the pick-up 
group is ringing, the call that has been ringing the longest is 
answered.  Subscribers can also execute call pick-up via the 
Call Manager Web Interface. 

Call Pickup Directed Benefit:  This allows subscribers to pick up a call that is 
ringing at specific extension. 
Description:  Enables a subscriber to answer a call directed to 
another phone in their pick-up group by dialing the respective 
feature access code followed by the extension of the ringing 
phone. 

Call Pickup – Directed 
with Barge-in 

Benefit:  Allows a user to barge-in on the call when the call 
was already answered. 
Description:  Directed Call Pickup with Barge-in (DPUBI) 
allows users to dial a feature access code (FAC) followed by 
an extension to pickup (answer) a call directed to another 
user in the same customer group, or barge-in on the call if the 
call was already answered. When a barge-in occurs, a three-
way call is established between the parties with the DPUBI 
user as the controller. 
Subscribers can configure themselves as barge-in exempt so 



their calls can not be barged in on. 

Call Return Benefit:  Enables a subscriber to call the last party that called, 
whether or not the call was answered. Subscribers can also 
execute call return via the Communication Manager. 
Description:  To call back the last party that called, the 
subscriber dials the call return feature code. The system 
stores the number of the last party to call, and connects the 
subscriber to that party. 

Call Screening by Digit 
Pattern 

Benefit:  Subscribers do not need to identify specific numbers 
to screen but instead can screen by patterns. 
Description:  Enables subscribers to specify digit patterns 
instead of individual phone numbers on the following selective 
services: Selective Call Forwarding, Selective Call 
Acceptance, Selective Call Rejection, Call Notification, and 
Priority Alert. Digit patterns consist of a sequence of digits 
followed by the * wildcard. For example, 240* would apply to 
any calls from phone numbers starting with 240. 
Also enables use of the "?" wildcard character in specifying 
digit patterns. The "?" wildcard character represents any 
single digit (0-9) and may be used multiple times anywhere 
within a digit string. The "?" wildcard may be used with or 
without the * wildcard at the end of the digit string. 
If the calling number is not available, the caller will get a 
network announcement that says, "The party you are trying to 
reach is not accepting calls at this time." 
Available if the enterprise location is within the Verizon local 
footprint. 

Call Transfer with 3-
Way Consultation 

Benefit:  Enables a subscriber to make a three-way call with 
the caller and add-on party before transferring the caller. 
Description:  To initiate Call Transfer with 3-way Consultation, 
the subscriber depresses the flash hook and dials the add-on 
party. When the call is answered, the subscriber depresses 
the flash hook and forms a three-way call with the add-on 
party and caller. To transfer, the subscriber hangs up causing 
the caller to be connected to the add-on party. Subscribers 
can also execute call transfer with three-way consultation via 
the Communication Manager.  

Call Waiting 
Enhancement 

Benefit: Enables a subscriber to answer a call while already 
engaged in another call. 
Description:  When a second call is received while a 
subscriber is engaged in a call, the subscriber is informed via 
a call waiting tone. If using an IP Phones, there is also an 
indicator on the phone. To answer the waiting call, the 
subscriber depresses the flash hook. The subscriber connects 
with the waiting party and holds the original party. By 



depressing the flash hook, the subscriber reconnects to the 
original party and holds the waiting party. The feature 
completes when any party hangs up. Subscribers can also 
execute call waiting via the Communication Manager. 

Calling Line ID Blocking Benefit:  Subscribers can block delivery of his/her identity 
when they make all outbound calls. 
Description:  The subscriber controls the service via the 
Communication Manager, which provides the ability to 
activate and deactivate the service. If activated, all calls made 
by the subscriber have the subscriber's identity blocked. 
Calling Line ID Delivery Blocking allows subscribers to block 
their number from being shown when calling other numbers 
except for intra-site calls which will always display the calling 
line ID. The feature can be enabled for all calls or it can be 
enabled selectively using the feature access codes. 

Calling Line ID Blocking 
per Call 

Benefit:  Subscribers can block delivery of his/her identity 
when they make specific outbound calls. 
Description:  In addition to being able to block the 
presentation of their Calling Line ID on all outgoing calls, 
subscribers also have the option of blocking on a per-call 
basis by dialing a feature code before making the call. 

Cancel Call Waiting/Call 
Waiting per Call 

Benefit:  Allows subscribers with Call Waiting to 
deactivate/activate the operation of Call Waiting via the 
Communication Manager interface.  
Description:  In addition to being able to cancel call waiting for 
all incoming calls, subscribers also have the option of 
canceling their call waiting on a per-call basis by dialing a 
feature code before making the call, or after a switch-hook 
flash during the call. 

Communication 
Manager 

Benefit:  Provides a web-based tool for end-users to invoke 
their services, as an alternative to using feature codes or 
depressing the flash hook. 
Description:  The following features are included with the 
Communication Manager: 

 Click-to-Dial Enables subscriber to input and dial a 
number, dial directly from a drop-down Phone List 
(Personal, location directory or Call Log) or Outlook 
tab, or click the Redial button.  

 Talk Enables subscriber, who is already engaged in 
call, to answer another waiting call. When available, 
Calling Line ID is displayed with caller's name (if 
available Dependent on names in the contact list and 
on-net status) and number.  

 Call Hold/Retrieve Enables subscriber to place an 



existing call on hold for an extended period of time, 
and then retrieve the call to resume conversation. 
While the calling party is held, the subscriber may 
choose to make a consultation call to another party.  

 Call Transfer Enables subscriber to redirect a ringing, 
active, or held call to another number or directly to 
voicemail. Before transferring the caller, the subscriber 
may choose to consult with the third party first or 
establish a three-way consultation.  

 Conference Enables subscriber to establish a three-
way call involving two other parties.  

 Hang up Call Enables subscriber to disconnect a call 
that has been answered.  

 Configure Services Buttons are provided to enable 
subscriber to turn on/off frequently used services such 
as Call Forwarding Always and Do Not Disturb.  

Note: When using an IP phone as the terminating device, the 
Hold, Talk, Conference buttons are disabled (grayed out) on 
Communication Manager.  
Also, in order to use the Communication Manager, the user 
will have to download a java applet. Some companies 
configure their firewalls very strictly and prevent users from 
downloading java applications. In those cases subscribers will 
not be able to download the script and therefore will not be 
able to use the Communication Manager.  
Also note that if using Windows XP with SP2, the Verizon 
VoIP Application Servers may need to be added to the trusted 
security list in Internet Explorer. 

Communication 
Manager Express 

Benefit:  Enables users to more quickly and easily change the 
way they receive their incoming calls. In conjunction with the 
telephony user interface, it provides a power solution for 
mobile users. 
Description:  Enables users to pre-configure multiple profiles 
for managing incoming calls differently based on the 
subscriber's status: 

 Available In the Office  
 Available Out of the Office  
 Busy  
 Unavailable  

Each profile includes preferences for managing the relevant 
incoming call functions (e.g., Call Forwarding (busy, no 
answer, always, selective), Simultaneous Ringing, Call Notify, 
which can be configured through a single easy-to-use web 
page or via the telephony user interface. 



Conferencing Benefit:  Adds to web portal capabilities. Conveniently access 
the Conferencing log-on screen via Verizon Customer Center. 
Description:  Audio conferencing and Net Conferencing 
transported over Verizon VoIP. 

Consultation Hold Benefit:  Enables a subscriber to put the caller on hold, and 
make a consultation call to another party. 
Description:  To initiate consultation hold, the subscriber 
depresses the flash hook and dials the add-on party. When 
the call is answered, the subscriber can consult with the add-
on party. To drop the add-on party and reconnect to the 
original party, the subscriber depresses the flash hook twice. 
Subscribers can also execute consultation hold from the 
Communication Manager. 

Distinctive Alert/Ringing Benefit:  Provides a different call waiting tone (i.e., alert) or a 
different ringing cadence for Priority Alert and Alternate 
Numbers calls.  
Description:  This is a feature of the Priority Alert and 
Alternate Number capabilities. When setting the Priority Alert 
capability on, a distinctive ring will be given to those priority 
numbers. Likewise, when the Alternate Number feature is 
enabled, the user has the option of requesting a Distinctive 
Ringing when receiving a call from one of the Alternate 
Numbers.  
Distinctive ring is supported on the Polycom and Cisco IP 
phones. This feature is not supported for PSTN phones that 
utilize the Mediatrix Analog Gateway nor is it supported on the 
Uniden 200 IP phone. 

Do Not Disturb Benefit:  Subscribers can choose to receive no incoming calls 
during the time when their "do not disturb" functionality is 
activated. 
Description:  Allows subscribers to set their station as 
unavailable so that incoming calls are given a busy treatment. 
Subscribers have the option to activate and deactivate the 
service by dialing a feature code or configuring the service via 
the Subscriber Web Interface. A status indicator on the 
Communication Manager identifies whether this service is 
enabled. 

Extension Dialing Benefit:  Subscribers can more easily contact other 
subscribers at their site. 
Description:  Enables subscribers to dial extensions via their 
Communication Manager or phone to call other Subscribers 
at their location. 

Find Me – Personal Benefit:  Subscribers who prefer to have the system find them 



in a priority order may prefer this service over call blast. 
Description:  This is a feature that used to be supported and 
is now available again. This service sequentially attempts up 
to five phone numbers (in addition to, optionally, the base 
location) to reach the user.  
Upon triggering the Sequential Ring service, the callers are 
played an announcement stating to hold while the system is 
attempting to reach the user. The callers are then provided 
with ringback and comfort announcements, in sequence. 
The service sequentially tries the configured numbers until an 
answer is received, at which point the call is connected as 
usual. 
If all numbers are tried without receiving an answer, the caller 
is redirected to an overflow destination like voice mail. There 
is also an option to allow the caller to press a key to skip the 
search process. 

Flash Call Hold Benefit:  Subscribers can use call hold functionality from any 
phone; even one without robust call control functionality. 
Description:  Enables subscribers to hold a call for any length 
of time by flashing the switch-hook on their phone and dialing 
the respective feature activation code. Parties are 
reconnected again when the switch-hook is flashed and the 
feature activation code is dialed again. 
To enable the feature subscribers flash the phone (press the 
flash button or press the hang up button once), dial the 
feature access code, and make the second call. The 
subscriber flashes the phone to toggle between the calls. 

Inbound Caller ID Benefit:  Subscribers can choose to take a call when they see 
the caller's identity via the Communication Manager and 
phone (if capable). 
Description:  Delivered information includes the caller's phone 
number. The information is delivered to the Communication 
Manager and the phone (if capable) only if the information is 
available and has not been blocked by the caller. 
Enables subscribers with Calling Line ID Blocking enabled to 
allow the delivery of their Calling Line ID on a specific call by 
entering the respective feature code (*65 default). Once the 
call is over, Calling Line ID Blocking is restored.  
Calling Party Name Delivery is available for On-Net calls to a 
SIP phone from another on-net SIP device. 

IP Phone Support SIP-based IP phones from Polycom, Aastra are supported by 
CALNET 2 HIPC, in addition to basic analog and digital 
phones. 



Last Number Redial Benefit:  Easy-to-use last number redial.  
Description:  Enables Subscribers to redial the last number 
they called by clicking the 'Redial' button on their 
Communication Manager or by dialing a feature code (e.g., 
*66). 

Malicious Call Trace Malicious Call Trace (MCT) is a service that enables a trace 
to identify the originator of an obscene or harassing call.  
When MCT is assigned and active, a call originating from 
and/or terminating to a user will generate an alarm.  Provided 
the information is available at the moment the alarm is 
generated, data such as originating number can often be 
determined.  This subscriber service must be configured and 
administered by the corporate level administrator.   

Multi-Path Forwarding Benefit:  Enables a subscriber to have more than one 
forwarded call active at a time. 
Description:  There are no limitations on the number of 
simultaneous calls a subscriber can forward. Calls are 
specified for forwarding via the web portal interface. 

Multi-Forward to Phone 
Number in Call Forward 
Selective 

Benefit:  Enables end-users to be more selective on how they 
can be reached by specific people. 

Description:  Call Forward Selective now allows users to 
forward to a different phone number for each entry of the Call 
Forwarding Selective service.  During call processing, if the 
incoming number matches a predefined call forwarding 
criteria, the call will terminate to the specified forward-to-
number.  For example, a user can now dictate that all calls 
from his supervisor forward to his mobile phone number, 
whereas all calls from a particular client forward to a 
colleague’s phone number.  If a new forwarding number is not 
configured for a particular Call Forwarding Selective entry, 
incoming calls will forward to the default destination number.   

Outbound Caller ID Benefit:  Originator ensures that receiver can identify caller 
and will not reject the call. 
Description:  Originating location sends Billing Telephone 
Number (BTN) of caller. Currently, station level Automatic 
Number Identification (ANI) is not available. 

Outlook Integration Benefit:  Subscribers can leverage their office tools-VoIP and 
Outlook-for easier contact management. 
Description:  This service enables subscribers to integrate 
their personal contacts in Microsoft Outlook with their 
Communication Manager. Using the Outlook Contacts tab in 
the Communication Manager, subscribers can perform a 
search of their personal Outlook contacts by name or 
company. Once the desired contact is located, subscribers 



may click-to-dial one of the contact's phone numbers or the 
subscriber may choose to display the contact's v-card by 
clicking their name. 
All the Outlook contact information is pulled directly from the 
subscriber's personal Outlook files. Essentially the 
Communication Manager, a java-based program, pulls all the 
appropriate information from the Subscriber's Microsoft 
Exchange server or personal computer (PC) each time they 
log onto Communication Manager. The Outlook contact info is 
automatically refreshed when the Communication Manager is 
accessed. Subscribers can also manually refresh it with a 
simple point and click on the Communication Manager 
screen. Verizon suggests less than 1000 contacts in any 
single folder for optimal performance. 
VoIP supports Microsoft Outlook 2000 and 2002. 
The Communication Manager Outlook Integration is certified 
to work on Windows 98 Service Pack 2 and higher, Windows 
NT Service Pack 4 or higher, Windows 2000 Service Pack 1 
or higher, and Windows XP. 

Personalized Name 
Recording 

Benefit:  Enables subscribers to record their name to be 
played back to incoming callers. 
Description:  Name recording in conjunction with Auto 
Attendant. A .WAV file is recorded via phone and then 
uploaded via the Verizon Customer Center Personal 
Dashboard web screen. 
Users can use any application to record the .wav file. The 
format should be a CCITT u-Law, 8.000 kHz, 8 bit Mono .wav 
file. 

Phone List Group Benefit:  This phone list enables subscribers to dial other 
member of their enterprise by selecting from a list of names 
on their Communication Manager. The list also serves as a 
searchable company directory, listing names, numbers and e-
mail addresses. 
Description:  Each subscriber added to the location is 
automatically added to this group list. Also included are the 
extensions for reaching the Auto Attendant(s), and Hunt 
Group(s), when applicable. Using the common Phone List 
Feature, the administrator can add additional phone numbers 
to the Group List by either adding them individually via their 
web portal or by importing them from a file. This flexibility 
would allow the administrator to create a directory that lists all 
subscribers in the entire enterprise. The list can not be edited 
by subscribers but it can be searched. 

Phone List Personal Benefit:  Enables subscribers to dial frequently called 
numbers by selecting from a searchable list of names on their 



Communication Manager. 
Description:  Each subscriber can add, delete, edit and re-
order numbers in their Personal Phone List, which serves as 
a personal speed dial list. Subscribers can add multiple 
numbers to this list by uploading them from a flat file. 

Phone List Call Log Benefit:  The Call Log enables subscribers to view and dial 
from the following lists of stored numbers: missed, received, 
and dialed. 
Description:  The call log is accessed through the 
Communication Manager and includes the most recent 
numbers registered for each category, as well as the 
respective call times and dates. 

Printable Group 
Directory 

Benefit:  Enables subscribers to view and print a directory 
listing of all the enterprise members included in the group 
directory that was set up by their administrator. All their 
respective contact information (e.g., extension, mobile phone 
number, e-mail address) would be included. 
Description:  The business group and contact information is 
displayed in one of two formats: Summary or Detailed. The 
Group Directory is accessible from the Verizon Customer 
Center Administrator Dashboard Portal or via each 
Subscribers Communication Manager. 

Priority Alert/Ringing Benefit:  Enables a subscriber to define criteria to have 
certain incoming calls trigger a different call waiting tone (i.e., 
alert) or a different ringing cadence than normal calls.  
Description:  The subscriber sets the criteria (e.g., incoming 
calling number, time of day, and day of week) for determining 
which calls require priority notification via their Verizon 
Customer Center Personal Dashboard web interface. Multiple 
criteria sets, or profiles, can be defined.  
The criteria for each Priority Alert entry can be a list of up to 
12 phone numbers or digit patterns, a time of day range and 
specified days of the week. All criteria for an entry must be 
true for the phone to ring with a different tone (phone number 
and day of week and time of day). 
Note: Available if the enterprise location is within Verizon local 
footprint. 

Private Dial Plans Benefit:  Companies can create their own virtual phone 
network for ease of use and long distance cost savings.  
Description:  Many corporate customers depend on private 
dial plans to facilitate intra-enterprise communications. 
Company can assign their own private number plan between 
locations. VoIP can support private numbers up to 32 digits or 
can utilize an existing DAP-based dial plan. 



It is possible to establish customer dial plans so that they may 
dial abbreviated numbers to reach off-net customer locations.  
For example, a customer can dial their traditional Centrex 
lines without dialing 10 digits.  Centrex to Hosted IP Centrex 
lines requires additional work.   

Remote Office 
(Additional Charge) 

Benefit:  This service is especially useful for tele-workers and 
mobile workers, as it enables them to use all of their 
Communication Manager features while working remotely 
(e.g., extension dialing, transfers, conference calls, Outlook 
Integration, directories, etc.). In addition, since calls are still 
originated from VoIP, the service provides an easy 
mechanism for separating personal and business phone 
expenses, as well as keeping alternate phone numbers 
private. This service must be set-up by the administrator. 
Description:  Enables subscribers to access and use their 
VoIP service from any end point, on-net or off-net (e.g., home 
office, mobile phone).  
Note: When using remote office, all feature codes must be 
entered using the Communication Manager rather than the 
home office or mobile phone.  Also note, when an off-net call 
is placed two simultaneous calls are being consumed if the 
end-user is using a PSTN/Cell phone. 

Ring Splash Enables subscribers to have a short ring burst played on their 
phone when the following services are triggered: Call 
Forwarding Always, Call Forwarding Selective, and Do Not 
Disturb. Ring Splash can be enabled for each of these 
services individually and serves as a reminder that the 
respective service is active. 

Selective Call 
Acceptance 

Benefit:  Enables a subscriber to define criteria that causes 
certain incoming calls to be allowed. 
Description:  If an incoming call meets subscriber specified 
criteria, the call is allowed to complete to the subscriber. All 
other calls are blocked and the caller is informed that the 
subscriber does not wish to receive their call. The subscriber 
controls the service via the Communication Manager 
interface, which provides the ability to set the criteria sets for 
determining which calls are allowed to complete. A criteria set 
is based on incoming calling line identity, time of day, and day 
of week. Multiple criteria sets can be defined. 
Up to 12 phones numbers or digit patterns can be defined. All 
criteria must be met in order to be activated. If the calling 
party's ANI is not one of the numbers listed on the selective 
call acceptance list, the caller is played a standard recording, 
"The party you are trying to reach is not accepting calls at this 
time." Administrators can not modify the recording.  
Note: This feature is only available if the enterprise location is 



within the Verizon local footprint. 

Selective Call Rejection Benefit:  Enables a subscriber to define criteria that causes 
certain incoming calls to be blocked. 
Description:  If an incoming call meets subscriber specified 
criteria, the call is rejected. All other calls are accepted. The 
subscriber controls the service via the Subscriber Web 
Interface, which provides the ability to set the criteria sets for 
determining which calls require blocking. A criteria set is 
based on incoming calling line identity, time of day, and day of 
week. Multiple criteria sets can be defined. 
Up to 12 phones numbers or digit patterns can be defined. All 
criteria must be met in order to be activated. If the calling 
party's ANI is one of the numbers listed on the selective call 
rejection list, the caller is played a standard recording, "The 
party you are trying to reach is not accepting calls at this 
time." Administrators can not modify the recording.  
Note: This feature is only available if the enterprise location is 
within the Verizon local footprint. 

Send to Voicemail 
Feature Access Code 

Benefit:  Offers end-users an alternative to handling a call 
after it is answered. 

Description:  Enables a user to transfer a post-answer call 
directly to voicemail via a new feature access code (FAC).  A 
user will be able to place a caller on hold, enter the FAC 
(*55), and follow a series of simple prompts to transfer the 
held party to the user’s voicemail or to another party’s 
voicemail.  Experienced users will be able to dial through and 
perform the transfer without waiting for the prompts.     
 

Shared Call 
Appearance 

Benefit:  Enables subscribers to have an incoming number 
ring on up to 35 phones simultaneously. 
Description:  All phones have the same extension on their 
phone and can view status of the line for all phones. Unlike 
alternate numbers which is a virtual termination, shared call 
appearance numbers must be physically provisioned on the 
subscribers phones.  
The first phone to be answered. If one of the phones is 
already hosting an active call under the Subscriber’s ID, 
incoming calls are delivered to the active phone and any 
outgoing calls from another phone using the same subscriber 
ID are blocked. Therefore, if one of the users is on the Shared 
call Appearance extension the other users with the same 
extension will not be able to use the line. Example: 
Applications of this service include setting-up a second line 
for an executive assistant or in a secondary workspace (e.g., 
lab). 



Speed Dial Benefit:  Enables subscribers to dial single digit codes to call 
up to eight different numbers. 
This feature is helpful for frequently dialed numbers or long 
strings of digits that are hard to remember. 
Description:  If required, customers can request to have up to 
100 frequently called numbers enabled for speed dial. Entry 
of the two-digit code is preceded by a configurable prefix: 0-9, 
A-D, *, or # (default). Subscribers can program the numbers 
in their directory via the Speed Dial page in their 
Communication Manager portal or directly through their 
phone using the respective feature access code (*75 default). 

Telephony User 
Interface 

Benefit:  Enables administrators and Subscribers to 
customize select features when they do not have Internet 
access. 
Description:  Enables subscribers to call from any phone and 
modify their call forwarding features, their Communication 
Manager Express features, or their Auto Attendant greeting. 
Administrators may also use the Telephony User Interface to 
record Auto Attendant greetings remotely. 

Telephony User 
Interface – Calling 

Benefit:  This feature is particularly useful for traveling users 
that already access the Telephony User Interface to retrieve 
voice messages and configure services. Traveling users 
typically access the Telephony User Interface using a toll-free 
number and this feature allows them to originate calls that 
eventually get charged against their account. For similar 
reasons, this feature can be useful for the employee working 
at home that needs to make long distance or international 
calls on behalf of the company. Dialing in to the Telephony 
User Interface first allows the subsequent long distance call to 
be charged to the company instead of the user's home line. 
Description:  This feature enhances the Communication 
Manager Telephony User Interface by allowing an 
authenticated user to originate calls. 

Once the Telephony User Interface authenticates the user, 
the user makes calls as if they were originated from their 
normal location. This means that services such as OCP, 
account/auth code and voice VPN will apply on the outgoing 
calls made from the Telephony User Interface. This also 
means that accounting records will be generated against the 
user's account.  
The user can make as many calls as desired. The user can 
either wait for the remote party to hang up, or hit an escape 
sequence to originate a new call from the Telephony User 
Interface. 

Three-Way Calling Benefit:  Enables a subscriber to make a three-way call with 



two parties, where all parties can communicate with each 
other. 
Description:  To initiate a three-way call while engaged in a 
regular two-party call, the subscriber depresses the flash 
hook and dials the third party. Before or after the third party 
answers, the subscriber depresses the flash hook and forms 
a three-way call with the two parties. To drop the third party, 
the subscriber depresses the flash hook and is reconnected 
with the original party in a regular two party call. If the 
subscriber hangs up, all parties are released. Subscribers 
also have the ability to execute three-way calls using the 
Communication Manager.  
Note: With Flash Call Transfer, the conference does not end 
when the phone is replaced on the hook, since the callers are 
transferred together. 

Time Schedule Benefit:  Eliminates the need to set schedules for individual 
features. 
Description:  Administrators and subscribers can now build 
predefined time schedules that can be applied to several 
incoming calling features including Call Forwarding Selective, 
Call Notify, Selective Call Acceptance and Selective Call 
Rejection.  The time schedules can contain up to 20 date and 
time ranges per week.  Time schedules created by an 
administrator are visible to both groups and users; schedules 
created by an individual subscriber are specific to the 
subscriber. 

Voicemail 
(Additional Charge) 

Network-based voicemail is provided. Voicemail accounts can 
be set up to provide company, per department and per 
subscriber accounts. Voicemail can be retrieved via phone, 
website or even e-mail. 

 

Administrative and Enterprise Network Features 

Features Description 

Account Codes 

(Additional Charge) 

Benefit:  Ability to manage costs and to generate revenue by 
providing the tools to bill back charges to clients. 
Description:  Enables the tracking of calls made outside of 
the location by prompting subscribers for an account code. 
With this service, codes are not validated (see Authorization 
Codes). Administrators manage their account codes via their 
Verizon Customer Center Location Dashboard web portal. 
There are three types of access: 

 Non-restricted Subscribers are exempted from 
providing an Account Code.  

 Restricted, Mandatory Usage Subscribers are 



automatically prompted for an Account Code 
whenever applicable.  

 Restricted, Optional Feature Access Code (FAC)-
based Usage Subscribers are not prompted for an 
account code and instead (optionally) dial a FAC to 
specify an account code. If a subscriber does not 
enter a FAC, their call proceeds as usual.  

Voluntary Account Code Provides the option for subscribers 
to enter an account code for a call by dialing a feature code 
before the call, or by flashing the switch-hook during a call 
and then dialing the feature code (e.g., to register an 
incoming call from a client).  

Code Length is 2 14 digits. 

Administrator Web 
Dashboard (Verizon 
Customer Center 
Enterprise Dashboard) 

Benefit:  Allows administrator easy access to configure, 
manage and monitor features and settings.  
Description:  Web portal that empowers a business 
administrator to provision services for subscribers, a location 
or the entire enterprise. 

Attendant Console 

(Additional Charge) 

Benefit:  Receptionist can view detailed subscriber 
information and current status at a glance. 
Attendant Console can be quickly assigned to specific 
Subscribers with limited disruption and can scale to support 
multiple subscribers at a location. 
Attendant Console is always up to date with the most current 
list of Subscribers and extensions built under the location. 
Description:  The web-based Attendant Console enables a 
subscriber (e.g., receptionist) to monitor a configurable set 
of subscribers. All must be built under the same location as 
the Attendant. The Attendant Console graphically displays 
subscribers status (busy, idle, do not disturb), as well as 
detailed call information. The Attendant Console window is 
integrated with the Communication Manager, thereby 
enabling the attendant to perform functions such as click-to-
transfer or click-to-dial. 

 Filter Subscriber List Ability to filter the displayed list 
of monitored subscribers by name or title.  

 Jump to Name Enhanced ability to enter multiple 
letters of name to be displayed in console window via 
automatic scrolling.  

 Sort List In addition to sorting list by name, 
subscribers may also sort by title.  

 Configure Display Columns Flexibility to select which 
columns will appear on the monitored subscriber 
table, and in which order (e.g., name, title, number, 
extension, mobile, pager, status, e-mail).  



 View Call Information Option to view duration of 
monitored subscribers calls and name and number of 
parties that they are talking to.  

Note: There is no limit to the number of subscribers an 
attendant console can monitor at a location. The number of 
concurrent calls an attendant can handle at any given time, 
however, is dictated by the number of call appearances their 
phone can support and by their geographic location. 

Authorization Codes 

(Additional Charge) 

Benefit:  Ability to manage costs by limiting calling 
capabilities to subscribers with specifically-assigned access. 
Description:  Prompts subscribers for an authorization code 
when making calls outside of the location. Calls will not be 
connected unless a valid code is entered. Administrators 
manage their authorization codes via their Verizon Customer 
Center Enterprise Dashboard web portal. A subscriber can 
not have this service and the Account Codes service 
enabled at the same time. 
There are two types of access: 

 Non-restricted – Subscribers are exempted from 
providing an Authorization Code.  

 Restricted – Subscribers are automatically prompted 
for an Authorization Code whenever applicable.  

Code Length can be from 2 to 14 digits. 

Auto Attendant 

(Additional Charge) 

Benefit:  The administrator can fully configure the Auto 
Attendant through any web browser in a few clicks of the 
mouse. 
Auto Attendant supports one-key dialing and operator dialing 
as well as name and extension dialing for subscribers at a 
location. Each is fully configurable by the location or 
administrator. 
Auto Attendant is always up to date with the subscribers for 
the associated location. 
Auto Attendant features an embedded night service profile 
that is automatically activated outside of business hours.  
The auto attendant also supports the flexibility to 
accommodate varying business hours within the work week. 
Description:  The Auto Attendant serves as an automated 
receptionist that answers the phone and provides a 
personalized message to callers with options for connecting 
to the operator, dialing by name or extension, or connecting 
to up to six configurable extensions (e.g., 1 = Marketing, 2 = 
Sales, etc.). Configuration via the Verizon Customer Center 
Administrator Dashboard web interface also allows for hours 



of operation to be modified, with different options available 
for hours that the company is open or closed.  
Each VoIP location can have its own Auto Attendant and 
using the transfer function, Auto Attendants can be nested 
together creating a seamless nationwide Auto Attendant. 
(e.g., enterprises main Auto Attendant is configured to 
seamlessly route to the Auto Attendant of a particular 
department or location).  
If using the dial by name or extension option, the 
subscribers listed will be those associated with the specific 
location Auto Attendant. 
The auto attendant can now be configured to allow callers to 
dial an extension from the first level menu. 
In addition, administrators can now allow name dialing from 
a combined first name and last name in addition to the last 
name and first name list. 

Auto Attendant – 
Enhanced Business 
Hours 

Benefit:  Customers have the added flexibility to treat calls 
via their Auto Attendant differently for different times of the 
day as well as days of the week. 

Description:  The Auto Attendant can be set with multiple 
time ranges for example (9 a.m. - 11 a.m. and 1 p.m. - 2 
p.m.) and support different hours on different days. 

Auto Attendant – Holiday 
Schedule 

Benefit:  Administrators do no have to manually enter dates 
for every holiday. 
Description:  An administrator can create an unlimited 
number of holiday schedules for their Auto Attendant. Up to 
a maximum of 20 dates or date ranges can be entered per 
schedule. 

Call Blast Hunt Group Benefit:  Hunt Groups can receive incoming calls at all 
possible locations and without having to set up routing to 
different devices. 
Description:  Enables all of the phones in a hunt group to 
ring simultaneously when calls are received on a virtual 
number. The first phone to be answered is connected. This 
function is a routing capability of the Hunt Group feature. 

Call Intercept Benefit:  Administrators can ensure that calls coming into 
non-working lines are not lost. 
Description:  Enables administrators to intercept calls routed 
to a non-working internal line with informative 
announcements and alternate routing options.  
Administrators can use a default intercept message that 
says, "The number you are trying to reach is out of service." 
If they prefer, administrators can opt to add language that 
says callers can press "0" to speak with an operator or they 



can provide callers with the new telephone number.  
The message can also be customized by the administrator. 
The service may be assigned to an individual subscriber's 
phone number (e.g., when they have left the company) or it 
can be assigned to all subscribers at a location. 

Call Trace – Malicious Benefit:  Such a trace can then be used to identify the 
originator of obscene or harassing calls. 
Description:  Malicious Call Trace (MCT) is a user service 
administered by a system level administrator. 
When assigned and active, calls originating from and/or 
terminating to a user generate an alarm. The alarm contains 
a large subset of information listed in a Call Detail Record 
(e.g. calling, called, and redirecting numbers, answer time, 
etc.) provided the information is available at the moment the 
alarm is generated. MCT can be configured in one of three 
ways: 

 Answered: an alarm is generated for all calls 
terminating on the user only when answered by the 
user. 

 Altering: an alarm is generated for all calls 
terminating on the user (answered or not, rejected or 
not). 

 All:  an alarm is generated for all of the user’s calls 
(originating and terminating), including originations 
resulting from a redirection done by the user (such 
as call forward). 

Calling Location ID 
Delivery 

Benefit:  Gives call recipient location-level information. 
Description:  Provides number of the location (or company) 
for outgoing calls from subscribers in the location, rather 
than providing the subscribers own name and number. The 
location number may be defined on a per subscriber basis. 
NOTE: Name is not supported today (inbound off-net not 
supported) 

Calling Line ID 
Configuration 

Benefit:  Administrators can manage the appearance of all 
calling line IDs. 

Description:  Enables the administrator to suppress the 
presentation of Calling Party Identification on outbound calls.  
This feature is enabled if you do not want the number 
displayed on Caller ID when making outbound calls. 

 

Calling Plan Incoming Benefit:  Enables administrators to block specified incoming 
calls to their company and/or individual subscribers. For 



example, some subscribers may be prevented from 
receiving calls from outside the company. For example, 
subscribers may be prevented from receiving calls from a 
competitor's number or a particular area code or country 
code. 
Description:  The Incoming Calling Plan is configured via the 
Verizon Customer Center Location Dashboard web interface 
(the administrative GUI). In addition to being able to 
configure which types of calls each subscriber is restricted 
from receiving (e.g., intra-location), administrators may 
regulate incoming calling by restricting specific digit patterns. 
This is done with the Digit String feature in the administrator 
web portal. 
If a profile has not been configured for a particular 
subscriber, the default set of incoming call privileges for the 
location is applied. Use of the Custom Check Box on the 
administrator screen allows that subscriber to use their own 
call settings which can override location restrictions. 
The Incoming Calling Plan also enables administrators to 
reject the following types of incoming calls: 

 Collect calls  
 Calls from within the location  
 Calls from outside the location  

Note: Calls can not be blocked by NPA-NXX. 

Calling Plan Outgoing Benefit:  Enables administrators to block subscribers from 
making certain types of outgoing calls, such as long 
distance, toll, or premium numbers. For example, 
subscribers may be prevented from calling a competitors 
number or a particular area code or country code. 
Description:  The Outgoing Calling Plan is configured via the 
Verizon Customer Center Administrator Dashboard web 
interface. In addition to being able to configure which types 
of calls each subscriber is restricted from making, 
administrators may regulate outgoing calling by restricting 
specific digit patterns. This is done with the Digit String 
feature in Administrator web portal. 
If a profile has not been configured for a particular 
subscriber, the default set of outgoing call privileges for the 
location is applied. Use of the Custom Check Box allows 
that subscriber to have separate call settings which can 
override the location level restrictions. 

Calling Plan Outgoing 
Enhanced 

Benefit:  The Enhanced Calling Plan provides administrators 
with even greater degree of control over outgoing calls made 
from within their location. 



Administrators can choose from different types of call 
restrictions including: 

 Location Calls from within the subscriber's location. 
 Local Calls within the same geographic region. 
 Toll Free Free calls to numbers beginning with 1, 

usually followed by 800, 877, or 888. 
 Toll Chargeable calls within the same geographic 

region. 
 International Chargeable calls to other countries. 

 Operator Assisted Calls made with the chargeable 
assistance of an operator. 

 Chargeable Directory Assistance Chargeable calls 
made to Directory Assistance such as 411 or 555-
1212. 

 Special Services I Calls to 700 numbers. These calls 
may or may not be chargeable. 

 Special Services II (Reserved for system 
administrators discretion.) 

 Premium Services I Chargeable calls to 900 
numbers. 

 Premium Services II Chargeable calls to 976 
numbers. 

 Casual 1010XXX chargeable calls, such as 1010321. 
 URL Dialing Calls made to URLs, which are outside 

of the location (for example, to an e-mail address 
outside of the location).  This call type is reserved for 
future VoIP product enhancements. 

Description:  In addition to blocking or allowing given call 
types and digit strings, administrators have the following 
options for configuring the outgoing calling profile of their 
location and individual subscribers: 

 Authorization Codes Selected subscribers can be 
prompted for an authorization code to allow specified 
call types or digit strings. Administrators can pre-
configure one or multiple authorization codes to be 
entered by subscribers. Use of this feature within the 
Enhanced Outgoing Calling Plan takes precedence 
over the standalone Authorization Code service.  

 Call Transfer Specified outgoing call types and digit 
strings can be automatically transferred to one of up 
to three transfer destinations that Administrators can 
pre-configure. For example, international calls made 
from a conference room may be transferred to a 



company operator who will validate the Subscribers 
identity and their purpose for making an international 
call.  

Existing configurations are retained when the Enhanced 
Outgoing Calling plan is assigned to replace the basic 
version of the service. 
Provides Subscribers with the option to enter a Sustained 
Authorization Code to unlock calling from their phone. When 
the feature is enabled, subscribers will not be prompted for 
an authorization code every time they make a call that 
requires an authorization code, as defined by the Enhanced 
Operations Channel (EOCP). Separate feature access 
codes are used to turn this feature on and off. Note: Custom 
Subscriber must be selected in the Dashboard. 

Calling Plan 
Forwarded/Transferred 

Benefit:  Enables administrators to prevent fraudulent 
calling, such as company employees calling their office 
number at night or on the weekend to make personal calls to 
international destinations. 
Description:  Enables administrators to prevent specified 
subscribers from forwarding or transferring calls to certain 
types of numbers, such as long distance, toll, or premium 
numbers. Calling plans are configured via the Verizon 
Customer Center Administrator Dashboard web interface. If 
a profile has not been configured for a particular subscriber, 
the default set of incoming call privileges for the location is 
applied. 

Configurable Extension 
Dialing 

Benefit:  Provides the ability to map directory numbers (DNs) 
within a location to unique extensions. 
Description:  The extensions can be of any length (2 to 6 
digits) as defined by the administrator and dialed via the 
Administrator Web Interface or by phone. All extensions 
within a location must be of the same length. 

Configurable Feature 
Codes 

Benefit:  Enables Administrators to control feature code 
commands. 
Description:  Provides each location administrator with the 
option to specify the feature codes (a.k.a., star codes) 
associated with their services (e.g., Last Number Redial, 
Call Return) via the Verizon Customer Center Administrator 
Dashboard web portal. Subscribers can see, but not edit, the 
star code associated with each service at any time by 
referencing their Verizon Customer Center Personal 
Dashboard web portal.  
Enables Administrators to configure two different feature 
access codes for the same service. For example, *69 and 
#81 could both be used to enable Call Return. 



Note: Feature access code can be two to five characters 
long; consist of digits (0-9) and the special characters * and 
#. The special characters can occur only in the first two 
positions; and the last character must be a digit. 

Configurable Feature 
Code Prefix 

Benefit:  Enables administrators to control feature code 
commands. 
Description:  Enables the administrator to define up to two 
different prefixes to precede their feature codes. Each prefix 
may include 1-2 characters, with the default being a single 
star (*). 

Configurable Time Zones Benefit:  Subscribers have the option of individually change 
their own effective time zone in cases where it differs from 
their locations default. 
Description:  A default time zone is specified for each 
location. The respective time zone is used for all services 
requiring date/time stamps, such as Auto Attendant and 
Selective Call Forwarding. 

Device Inventory Benefit:  Enables administrators to more effectively manage 
stock. 
Description:  Enables administrators to inventory their 
equipment including premise gateways and IP phones via 
their Verizon Customer Center Administrator Dashboard 
web interface. Devices may be easily added, deleted and 
modified. In addition, administrators can assign subscribers 
directly to a device and/or a port on a device. 

E911 Support 
Enhancement 

Benefit:  Provides 911 support in case of emergency. 
Description:  Enables routing of emergency calls to the 
correct tandem switch based on the caller's phone number. 
The system ignores subscriber disconnects and disallows 
features to be used when an emergency number (i.e., 911) 
is dialed. 
For more details, refer to Emergency (911) Service with 
Verizon VoIP. 

Enhanced Business 
Hours Support for Auto 
Attendant 

The feature offers a company the flexibility to accommodate 
varying business hours within the work week.   

Hunt Groups Hunt Groups allow users to be included in a specified hunt 
group to handle incoming calls received by an assigned 
Hunt Group phone number. This is a virtual number not a 
specific subscriber telephone number.  
Administrators can choose from any of the following hunt 
schemes, each of which rings the specified phones in a 
different manner: 

https://insite.mci.com/document.asp?DocID=09005dcc8044e896&CategoryKey=23&TopicKey=1021&SubtopicKey=45
https://insite.mci.com/document.asp?DocID=09005dcc8044e896&CategoryKey=23&TopicKey=1021&SubtopicKey=45


 Circular sends calls in a fixed order. The call is sent 
to the first available person on the list, beginning 
where the last call left off. The Circular option tries 
the agent after the last agent to take a call. The 
search continues including looping around the list 
until it reaches the agent it started with.  

 Regular sends calls to users in the order listed by an 
administrator. Incoming calls go to the first available 
person on the list, always starting with the first 
person on the list.  

 Call Blast all of the users in the group 
simultaneously; the first user to pick up the ringing 
phone is connected.  

 With Uniform, as a call is completed, the user moves 
to the bottom of the call queue in a shuffling fashion. 
The next incoming call goes to the user who has 
been idle for the longest. If a user receives a call that 
was not directed to them through the hunt group, the 
call will not be included in the receiving order for 
Uniform calls.  

 No Answer Timeout enables calls that have been 
distributed to a phone, but not answered in a specific 
number of rings, to be redirected to the next 
available phone. If all idle phones have been visited 
once without answer, there are two options for 
handling the call: forward call to an external number, 
or give the call a Temporarily Unavailable treatment, 
which can trigger a service such as voicemail.  

There is no limit to the number of users that can be included 
in a hunt group. 
Note: Call forwarding features will not apply to calls within 
the hunt group. Likewise, incoming calls to the hunt group 
are never forwarded to the voicemail service assigned to a 
member of the hunt group. Remote Office features, 
however, can be used in conjunction with a Hunt Group 
routing. 

Music on Hold Benefit:  Provides opportunity to play music and messages 
to enhance customer calling experience. 
Description:  Enables administrators to upload an audio file 
onto the system to be played to parties on hold. 
Users can use any application to record the .wav file. The 
format should be a CCITT u-Law, 8.000 kHz, 8 bit Mono 
.WAV file. There is a 10 minute maximum threshold or 
approximately (4.7 meg). 

Origination Fully 
Restricted 

Benefit:  Offers additional screening criteria for 
administrators 



Description:  Provides additional restrictions that can be 
enabled by an administrator in the Outgoing Calling Plan.  
The new functionality provides a new screening criterion that 
will prevent a specified user from being transferred to a party 
outside of his or her location. 

PS/ALI Benefit:  Provides advanced 911 support in case of 
emergency. 
Description:  Private Switch/Automatic Location Identification 
(PS/ALI) is an advanced form of E-911 service. It gives 
customers the ability to deliver station-level Automatic 
Number Identification (ANI) and exact location information to 
the Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP).  
For more details, refer to Insite for additional information on 
Emergency (911) service with Verizon VoIP. 
Note there is an additional charge for PS/ALI and it is not a 
part of HIPC proper just the ability to work with it 

Priority Alert for Hunt 
Groups 

Benefit:  Identifies incoming calls as part of the hunt group 
vs. another type of call. 
Description:  Assigns a distinctive ring tone to calls that meet 
a predefined criterion, can now be assigned to a hunt group.  
Previously the feature could only be assigned to individual 
users.  The administrator has the ability to create a set of 
criteria at the hunt group level which then impacts the ring 
pattern for all of the agents within the hunt group. 

Series Completion Benefit:  Supports key system functionality. 
Description:  The Series Completion service can be 
assigned to a selected series of lines to forward calls on a 
busy condition. It is a form of hunting in which the next line 
in the series completion group is tried in a prearranged 
order, without any limit on the number of sequential 
forwards. Unlike hunt group functionality, the lead number 
for a series completion is associated with a specific 
subscriber. The call is only forwarded if the subscriber's line 
is busy. If the user's line is not busy then the network will 
route the call according to the rules that have been 
configured for a "no answer" condition.  
This service is used to support Key System functionality. 
Key systems typically ring all available lines in a specified 
order for incoming calls, regardless of the number dialed to 
reach the company. For example, when calling a tech 
support hotline, the subscriber dials (800) 555-HELP. That 
number attempts to ring line 1 of company. If line 1 is busy, 
it will attempt to ring line 2. If line 2 is busy and so on. If all 
lines are busy, the call can be sent to or another assigned 
service of the series completion group. Similarly, if all lines 
or subscribers of this company were assigned to a Series 



Completion group, Verizon VoIP acts just like a key system. 

Termination Fully 
Restricted 

Description:  Provides distinctions for calls from outside the 
location found within the Incoming Calling Plan.  The 
screening criterion allows a distinction among the three 
following criteria:  allow calls from outside the location, allow 
calls from outside of the location only if transferred by 
specific users (partial), and block calls from outside the 
location.  The feature also provides support of Incoming 
Calling Plan over city-wide Centrex locations.  This will allow 
any city-wide Centrex call between different hosting 
applications servers to be treated as an intra-group call. 

 

Management Features 

Features Description 

Call reporting details 
via web screen 

Benefit:  Ease of administrative management.  

Description:  Billing reports can be generated daily, weekly, 
monthly for call detail and printable via website. 

Feature Reporting Benefit:  Provides usage information by code and by user. 

Description:  Feature reports can be generated for Accounting 
and Authorization Code usage. 

Customer-managed 
Routers 

Benefit:  Allows customer to select the amount of outsourced 
management they need. 

Description:  Verizon Business will design and implement 
service. Customer retains control of CPE management. 

Administrative site 
management via web 
screen 

Benefit:  Ease of administrative management and timely 
access to information. 
Description:  Via the Verizon Customer Center, VoIP provides 
administrator accounts on a central website for setting up 
default feature classes for a range of users. 

Supported Browsers  

 Microsoft Internet Explorer 5.0 or higher with the 
Microsoft Java VM installed. Verizon Business 
recommends 128 encryption for Secure Socket Layer 
(SSL) support on the browser.  

 Other versions of incoming exclusion (IE) or any 
version of Netscape Navigator may be compatible with 
the Communication Manager, but have not been 
tested.  

Recommended Screen Resolution 1024x768 resolution, 16-bit 
color depth. 



User self-provisioning 
and management via 
web screen 

Benefit:  Allows users the ability to manage their voice 
application needs including call forwarding and find-me, 
follow-me lists. 
Description:  Via the Verizon Customer Center, VoIP provides 
web access for users to set up their phones and administer 
features and calling treatments.  
Supported Browsers 

 Microsoft Internet Explorer 5.0 or higher with the 
Microsoft Java VM installed. Verizon Business 
recommends 128 encryption for SSL support on the 
browser.  

 Other versions of IE or any version of Netscape 
Navigator may be compatible with the Communication 
Manager, but have not been tested.  

 Recommended Screen Resolution:  1024x768 
resolution, 16-bit color depth. 
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A Message from David Gibson
Executive Director; Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region

The Tijuana River Valley (Valley) has a decades-long history of water quality issues. Significant improvements in the arena of wastewater 
treatment have in recent years improved water quality on both sides of the border. However, stormwater flows continue to bring substantial 
amounts of sediment and trash and other contaminants into the Valley from sources in both the United States (U.S.) and Mexico. The sediment 
and trash pollutants cause water quality impairments, threaten life and property from flooding, degrade valuable riparian and estuarine 
habitats, and impact recreational opportunities for residents and visitors.

Many public agencies and non-profit organizations have worked tirelessly on both sides of the border to resolve the Valley’s water quality issues.  They have held 
cleanups, built a sediment basin, piloted trash capture devices, executed ecosystem restoration activities, purchased land, and performed many other projects.  
The Tijuana River Valley Recovery Strategy (Recovery Strategy) represents the work of representatives from these and other agencies with operational or land 
management authority in the Valley to reach consensus on actions to resolve sediment and trash issues.  The Recovery Strategy has also been reviewed and shaped 
by the thoughtful comments from stakeholders who live, work, and/or regularly visit the Valley.  These individuals collectively represent the Tijuana River Valley 
Recovery Team (Recovery Team).  

From the perspective of the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Board), cleaning up sediment and trash in the Valley is a high priority. Since 
many of the sources of sediment and trash are outside of the jurisdiction of the agencies we regulate, the Regional Board has chosen to pursue a collaborative, 
stakeholder-led approach to address these problems. As the Regional Board’s Executive Officer, I firmly believe the approaches outlined in the Recovery Strategy 
can successfully reduce the sediment and trash currently degrading beneficial uses, including water quality, exacerbating flooding, affecting habitat and impacting 
recreation.  

The purpose of the Recovery Strategy is twofold.  First, it is intended to be a concise summary of the first phase of actions to cleanup the Valley and restore 
its beneficial uses.  Second, it is intended to outline the steps in a way that will allow stakeholders, policy makers, and potential funding sources have a clear 
understanding of both the problems and the solutions that will allow the Recovery Team to achieve its vision and mission.  Ultimately, members of the Recovery 
Team will implement the strategy through enhanced relationships and partnerships.  Finally, the Recovery Strategy acknowledges that resolution to the sediment 
and trash problems will require partnerships between the U.S. and Mexico to provide watershed-based solutions. The Recovery Team recognizes that source control 
and pollution prevention activities are often the best and most economically feasible long-term solutions to sediment and trash and other water quality problems. 
Accordingly, there is no time like the present to work together to build and enhance cross-border communication and relationships. This will lead to our common 
goals of a healthy Valley, free of pollutants, where plants and animals can thrive and residents, visitors, and landowners can enjoy the unique jewel that is the Tijuana 
River Valley. 

On behalf of the Regional Board, I would like to thank all of the members of the Recovery Team for the work that has been accomplished in developing this Recovery 
Strategy, and to offer our continuing support.  

David Gibson
Co-Chair, Tijuana River Valley Recovery Team
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The Condition of the Tijuana River Watershed
The Tijuana River watershed is a large and complex ecological system that 
straddles the international border between the U.S. and Mexico.  The watershed 
drains through a vibrant, urban environment adjacent to the border into the 
Valley, in the southwest corner of the U.S.  The Tijuana River flows from the 
watershed into the Tijuana Estuary and then into the Pacific Ocean. Sediment, 
trash, and other pollutants carried in stormwater runoff currently threaten the 
Valley’s valuable ecological, recreational and economic resources. This document 
provides a strategy for collaborative, bi-national efforts directed toward long-
term recovery and protection of this unique, irreplaceable resource. 

Valley is a Unique Resource
Estuaries are a hydrological and biological crossroads, defined as the 
portion of the coastal zone where there is interaction of ocean water, 
fresh water, land, and atmosphere. These areas are highly productive and 
support a wide range of biodiversity that includes rare and unique plants 
and animals. The Tijuana estuary is one of only two coastal estuaries 
in southern California large enough, and unimpeded by development,  
to be resilient to climate change. It is also the only coastal lagoon in southern 
California that is primarily under public ownership and not bisected by roads 
and railroads, which contributes to its ecological resiliency and value.  There 
are also important historical and cultural resources in the Valley. Accordingly, 
the estuary has been designated as a national research reserve (Tijuana River 
National Estuarine Research Reserve, or TRNERR) and is protected and managed 
through a federal-state cooperative effort for long-term research, education and 
interpretation.

The Valley is an important recreational resource, with more than 35 miles of 
multi-use trails for hiking, biking, equestrian and other uses. The surf offshore 
of the estuary is considered one of the best surf spots in southern California. 
Visitors can experience everything from dense riparian forests along the Tijuana 
River to coastal maritime sage scrub on top of Spooner’s Mesa to sandy beach 
habitat along the Pacific Ocean.  In addition to the Valley’s natural and cultural 
resources, there are active recreation fields, picnic areas, and a community 
garden.  

Several agencies have significant infrastructure investments in the Valley.  The 
U.S. Navy operates Navy Outlying Field Imperial Beach, which is one of its primary 
helicopter pilot training facilities on the West Coast on the northern periphery of 
the Valley at the Navy Outlying Field Imperial Beach.  
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Tijuana River Watershed drains 1,700 miles to the Pacific Ocean through the Tijuana River Valley in  
southern San Diego County

The Tijuana estuary at the end of the Tijuana River, is a valuable ecological, cultural, and recreational 
resource. Currently, the sediment and trash pollutants threaten its health

Recognized as a “high priority wetland of regional
significance” by the  Southern California Wetlands 
Recovery Project.

	T ijuana estuary is designated as one of only 25   

“wetlands of international importance”.
	                              	  - International Ramsar Convention on Wetlands 2005
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U.S. Customs and Border Protection conducts operations in the Valley to 
support its border protection mission. The U.S. International Boundary and 
Water Commission (U.S. IBWC) operates the South Bay International Wastewater 
Treatment Plant which provides secondary treatment for average daily flows of 
25 million gallons of sewage that originates in Mexico.  

Agriculture has had a long historical presence in the Valley. Agricultural activities 
on private and leased lands include sustainable, organic farms that serve as a 
local source of fresh produce.  In addition, a Community Garden operated by the 
County of San Diego (County) allows local residents to grow their own produce.

Finally, there are many programs that utilize Valley resources for hands-on 
environmental education programs. From grade school to college level there 
are educational opportunities and interpretative programs developed to appeal 
to a wide audience. It is widely recognized that effectively communicating the 
value of and the issues facing the Valley will lead to broad public support for its 
protection. Communication combined with scientific knowledge serve as the 
ultimate foundation for long-term resource stewardship and funding. 

It is of critical importance to protect the Valley’s diverse and unique ecological, 
recreational, cultural, and educational opportunities and preserve this natural 
jewel that is located within a binational metropolitan area. This will lead to 
improved habitat, water quality, and ocean protection for citizens of both the 
U.S. and Mexico.

Trash and Sediment Threaten Valley Resources
Unfortunately, the Valley is increasingly threatened by stormwater flows that  
contain trash and high concentrations of other urban, agricultural, and industrial 
pollutants in the Tijuana River and its tributaries. Additionally, the soils in the 
watershed are highly susceptible to erosion, especially when disturbed. Due 
to urbanization, even moderate storms can bring significant flows of sediment 
downstream. As stormwater 
flows to the ocean, the 
intermixed sediment, trash and 
other debris are deposited in 
channels, among vegetation 
in the Valley floodplain, and in 
the estuary. These conditions 
create an environment where 
mosquitoes and other vectors 
can impact human health and 
the environment.  Also, storm 
flows transport exotic invasive 
plant species that threaten 
native  plant communities and 
negatively affect habitat for 
native wildlife. The interaction 
of sediment and trash deposits 
severely threaten habitat, water quality and other resources in the region. 

Vision for the Valley
The next step in protecting and restoring the Valley is to manage sediment 
and eliminate unwanted trash.  The collaborative approach promoted by the 
Recovery Team to integrate the diverse perspectives of scientific, environmental, 

The Tijuana River Valley is a unique 
resource with important salt marsh  
and riparian habitat, recreational  
opportunities, and operational base  
for border patrol and U.S. Navy  
operations
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regulatory and private stakeholders is intended to solve these problems. This 
Recovery Strategy identifies a path forward for implementing a collaborative, 
mutually beneficial plan across ownership and jurisdictional boundaries. It is 
intended to cost-effectively address sediment and trash issues while respecting 
natural and cultural resources, the roles and responsibilities of agency managers, 
and the needs of landowners residents, recreational users and visitors. The 
Recovery Strategy also thoughtfully considers existing policies and planning 
documents developed by local, regional, state and federal stakeholders. 

Past Successes and Future Challenges
Efforts to protect and restore Valley resources are not new; sediment management, 
land preservation and habitat restoration have been conducted in the Tijuana 
River watershed for many years.  Local, state, and federal management agencies, 
along with non-governmental organizations and other stakeholders have 
invested significant effort and funding in project planning and implementation 

both in the U.S. and in Mexico to improve conditions. Investments to improve 
wastewater treatment began in the 1980s and ‘90s. Recent activities have 
included pollution prevention and source control for sediment and trash, water 
quality improvements, flood control, improved recreational opportunities, and 
public education and outreach. These projects demonstrate the dedication and 
wealth of experience that the various operating agencies and stakeholders have 
invested in the Valley and watershed.  

The future brings many challenges for the Recovery Team. The bi-national nature 
of the watershed is one major obstacle.  It is well known that source control 
and pollution prevention activities can be the most cost-effective solutions to 
reduce sediment and trash loading. With the majority of the watershed situated 
in Mexico, planning and implementing source control and other projects across 
the international border present an added challenge to an already complex 
problem. Other challenges include: 

»» identifying long-term funding for operation and maintenance of sediment 	
	 and trash management facilities,

»» coordinating agencies in project review and approval, and

»» scheduling projects to meet short-term sediment and trash control needs 	
	 with long-term restoration goals while maximizing funding opportunities. 

»»U.S. Border 2020: U.S.-Mexico Environmental Program (Draft)
	 Environmental Protection Agency 2011

»»Tijuana River National Estuarine Research Reserve Comprehensive  
	 Management Plan
	 California State Parks, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, 		
	 U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 2010

»»Tijuana River Valley Regional Park - Area Specific Management 		  	
	D irectives 
	 County of San Diego 2007

»»A Binational Vision for the Tijuana Watershed 
	 Binational Watershed Advisory Council for the Tijuana River Watershed 2005

»»Local Coastal Program Land Use Plan 
	 City of San Diego 1999

»»Multiple Species Conservation Program Subarea Plan
	 City of San Diego 1997

»»Water Quality Control Plan for the San Diego Basin (9)
	 California Regional Water Quality Control Board Water San Diego Region 1994

Key Tijuana River Valley Planning Documents:

Activity Project Type

Approximate 
Expenditure 

Amount

U.S. Mexico

Wastewater  
Improvements

Treatment and reclamation plant 
design and construction $600M $100M

Sediment Control Basin design and construction, road 
paving, community projects $18M Unknown

Trash Control Cleanups, waste tire removal, studies $3M $0.5M

Flood Control Channel clearing, berm construction 
and removal $10M Unknown

Ecosystem  
Restoration and 
Protection

Habitat restoration, invasive control, 
land acquisition $33M Unknown

Summary of protection and restoration activities and expenditures in the Tijuana River watershed since the 1980s

                Attachment 3



5

Tijuana River Watershed Description
The Tijuana River Watershed is an approximately 1,700-square mile area that 
straddles the U.S./Mexico international border. The watershed is a diverse 
and complex drainage system ranging from 6,000-foot pine forest-covered 
mountains to the tidal saltwater estuary at the mouth of the Tijuana River.  
Nearly three-quarters of the watershed is located in Mexico, but the watershed 
drains to the Pacific Ocean through the 8-square mile valley located adjacent to 
the border. The Valley is home to tidally flushed wetland, riparian, and upland 
habitats supporting a broad range of organisms, including threatened and 
endangered species.  In addition, a number of federally listed historical and 
archaeological sites exist in the Valley, some dating back 8,000 years.

A diversity of land uses are present in the watershed, from largely undeveloped 
open space in the upper watershed to highly-urbanized, residential, commercial, 
military, and industrial areas in the lower watershed. Rapid urbanization has 
occurred over the past several decades, most dramatically in the city of Tijuana 
where more than 2.7 million people currently reside.  Several large dams (Barrett 
and Morena in the U.S., and Rodríguez and El Carrizo in Mexico) control a large 
majority of the surface water flow in the watershed.  While these dams provide 
reservoirs of potable water to support residents and associated infrastructure 
on both sides of the border, they also serve as traps for the downstream 
movement of sediment and trash to the lower watershed.  Therefore, the 
sediment and trash produced in the 462-square mile area downstream of the 
dams are responsible for impacts to the Valley.   

Current land uses in the watershed include: A) urban areas B) semi-urban development  C) ranches in the Valley
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Diverse binational watershed with varied habitats: A) pine forest B) riparian habitat  C) salt marsh

a b c

c

Storm flows from nearly 75% of the watershed are controlled by four major dams. A significant portion of the area 
downstream of the dams is urbanized, especially in the city of Tijuana

Watershed Boundary
Watershed Area 
Downstream of Dams
Dam
Urbanized Area

Tijuana River Watershed Statistics U.S. Mexico

Population within Watershed 11,000 2.7M

Watershed Area 468 mi2 1,256 mi2

Annual Precipitation 5.9 to 25.6 inches per year
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The Mission is to bring together the governmental, administrative, 
regulatory, and funding agencies in tandem with advice from the scientific 
community, the environmental community, and affected stakeholders to 
protect the Tijuana River Valley from future accumulations of trash and 
sediment, identify, remove, recycle or dispose of existing trash and sediment, 
and restore the Tijuana River floodplain to a balanced wetland ecosystem.

The Vision is a Tijuana River Valley free of historical trash and sediment, 
protected from future deposits of trash and sediment, restored to a sustained 
physical, chemical and biological integrity, and performing its hydrologic 
functions, while respecting the interests of current and future landowners 
and users.

»» Bi-national collaboration

»» Operation and maintenance of sustainable trash and sediment controls

»» Flood control to protect life and property

»» Hydrologically connected, naturally functioning habitats

»» Maintenance of recreation opportunities

»» Informed and engaged community

»» Long-term plan to restore the floodplain and estuary 

»» Respect existing uses

General Recovery Team Goals

Recovery Team Signatory Members
Non-Pro�t

Organizations & Public
Public Agency

Stakeholder Input
Existing Planning

Documents

Tijuana River Valley Recovery Team (TRVRT)

V I S I O N

INTEGRATED IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY

}  }

TIJUANA RIVER VALLEY RECOVERY TEAM 
RECOVERY STRATEGY

What is the Tijuana River Valley Recovery Team?
The Recovery Team is a collaboration of more than 30 federal, state and local 
agencies and other interested parties from both sides of the border focused 
on addressing sediment, trash, and associated environmental issues. The 
collaborative stakeholder-led approach to integrate the diverse scientific, 
environmental, regulatory and private stakeholder perspectives with the 
existing planning documents of this Recovery Strategy is intended to reduce 
the impacts of anthropogenic (human caused) sediment and trash on the 
Valley’s resources.  

The activities described in this document summarize the Recovery Team’s 
efforts to combine the collective knowledge, enthusiasm, and resources of 
the many agencies and groups that are seeking solutions to sediment and 
trash issues. The management areas of sediment and trash, flood control, 
ecosystem management, and recreation and education, described on the 
following pages, present the current conditions as we consider the future of 
the Valley. The Recovery Team utilized its collaborative approach to analyze 
these various management needs and develop and prioritize projects in a 
manner consistent with the future vision for the Valley.
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community programs and cleanups on the Mexican side of the international 
border will have a positive impact in downstream areas. 

Sediment
The approach to sediment management varies by drainage into the Valley and 
estuary. Sediment discharged from Goat Canyon directly impacts salt marsh 
habitat, which has been steadily degraded. 

Sediment and Trash
Goal: Utilize partnerships among public land owners, public operating 
agencies, non-governmental organizations, residents and volunteers 
in the U.S. and Mexico to reduce sources of and cost-effectively manage 
sediment and trash pollutants.

Current Situation
Sediment and trash are degrading the Valley and estuary and threatening public 
health and safety throughout the Tijuana River watershed.  Stormwater flows 
transport sediment and trash from urban areas downstream into the Valley. The 
urban population in the city of Tijuana continues to grow rapidly as jobseekers 
from throughout Latin America seek opportunity near the international border. 
Infrastructure improvements, such as paved roadways and waste management 
services, have been unable to keep pace with growth. Often this situation can 
lead to problems such as accelerated erosion and illicit disposal of trash and 
other waste materials in canyons and neighborhoods both in incorporated and 
unincorporated areas of the city. In addition, basic development practices in 
many areas of the watershed have resulted in disturbance of natural drainage 
patterns and vegetation removal from slopes, making them unstable and prone 
to erosion. Storm flows mobilize and then transport the sediment and trash 
downstream, threatening the health of riparian and estuarine habitats in both 
the U.S. and Mexico and reducing the flow capacity of the river and tributary 
channels.  While sediment and trash are linked because both are transported by 
storm flows, these pollutants behave differently in the water column and must 
be managed differently. 

Organizations on both sides of the border recognize that source reduction 
can provide the most cost-effective means of addressing these issues. 
Community programs have been initiated to improve source control of these 
materials through generating awareness, changing trash disposal practices and 
conducting cleanups with volunteers. Further infrastructure improvements,  

Three major tributaries, Yogurt Canyon, 
Goat Canyon and Smuggler’s Gulch, 
and the main Tijuana River each con-
tribute sediment and trash to the Valley 
in different ways

U.S. Project Area
Yogurt Canyon Watershed 
(Cañon los Sauces)
Goat Canyon Watershed 
(Cañon de los Laureles)
Smuggler’s Gulch Watershed 
(Cañon de los Mataderos)
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Smuggler’s Gulch

Pilot Channel
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	 Management of sediment and trash can be accomplished through cross-border  
	 partnering, collaboration and exchange of knowledge at all levels in government  
	 and among agencies on both sides of the border.

To control degradation, California State Parks (State Parks) constructed two 
sediment basins just downstream of the international border in 2006. The basins 
were designed to provide maximum sediment storage capacity within the space 
available for construction.  In most wet seasons, the basins intercept a majority 
of the sediment. In very wet seasons, as in 2005, the basins filled and 18 acres of 
salt marsh was smothered by up to 4 feet of sediment in a single storm event.

In Smuggler’s Gulch, excessive sediment loads reduce the capacity of natural 
channels to carry storm flows, which exacerbates flooding that adversely 
impacts residential, agricultural and recreational property in the Valley. When 
resources are available, the City of San Diego (City) and County clear sediment 
from Smuggler’s Gulch to maintain its capacity to carry storm flows and minimize 
the effects of flooding. The County removes approximately 15,000 cubic yards of 
trash, waste tires, and accumulated sediment each time it clears the channel from 
Smuggler’s Gulch south of Monument Road.  Also, in the early 1990s,  the City 

excavated an earthen channel (known as 
the Pilot Channel) to direct larger storm 
flows away from the northern portion of 
the Valley where flooding has resulted 
in  significant damage to public and 
private property. Since then, the City 
has frequently cleared the Pilot Channel 
and Smuggler’s Gulch channel north of 
Monument Road to reduce flood risk. 
Each channel clearing results in the 
removal of approximately 30,000 to 
60,000 cubic yards of sediment, trash and waste tires. Despite this costly ongoing 
maintenance to control flooding, it continues to negatively affect residents and 
infrastructure. Sedimentation is also rapidly changing the topography which has 
a negative impact on the ecology of the Valley.

The main Tijuana River channel is where the majority of the stormwater, sediment 
and trash enters the U.S. Historically, much of the sediment has been carried 
downstream into the Valley. Over time, the downstream areas have served as 
a sink for accumulated sediment, resulting in an increase in vegetation.  This 
causes storm flows to flood and deposit additional  sediment and trash.  For the 
first time, U.S. IBWC has allocated funds in its 2012 budget to remove sediment 
and trash from the upper part of the U.S. IBWC Tijuana River Valley Flood Control 
Project area adjacent to the border.  

Over the years, sediment management operations have increased in frequency 
and cost.  Operations entail excavating material from the basins or managed 
channels, sorting trash and tires from sediment, and disposing of all material 
properly. Annual costs vary widely depending on volumes excavated and 
availability of local disposal options. For example, disposal of sediment from the 
Goat Canyon basins alone ranges from $250,000 when a material operator uses 

Periodic storm events can cause up to several feet of sediment to deposit in the Valley
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Sediment and Trash Management in Cañon de Los Laureles
In Cañon de Los Laureles, a California Coastal Conservancy-funded watershed 
diagnostic was prepared by a team of scientists at the Mexican Institute of 
Water Technology. This work guided implementation of several community-
based source control projects and urban policy changes using significant bi-

national investment from local, state and federal agencies.

»» Master Plan - The first watershed-based urban plan in Mexico was prepared  
	 for Los Laureles Canyon.  The plan was signed into Baja California public law in 	
	 2007. 

»» Re-vegetation – 96 acres of previously bare slopes were re-vegetated using 		
	 native drought-tolerant plants.

»» Permeable Paving – A permeable paver manufacturing and installation 		
	 program was developed for  public walkways and roads to reduce runoff and 		
	 erosion.  

»» Reuse of Tires and Plastic Bottles – A demonstration project for construction  
	 using waste tires and eco-bricks made from plastic water bottles was installed  
	 in a public park. 

»» Trash Pickup – Over 700 tons of trash was collected from the Canyon through  
	 a temporary employment program for local residents. 

Funding Agencies
The City of Tijuana and the Federal Social Development Agency- $200,000

Southern California Wetlands Recovery Project- $50,000 

U.S. EPA Border 2012 - Cañon Lumpio Project - $50,000

SEMARNAT (Secretaría de Medio Ambiente y Recursos Naturales) - $112,500
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the material in local building projects to $1.2M when it is transported to a local 
landfill. These costs exceed local, state, and federal operating budgets, and grant 
programs are reluctant to fund ongoing operation and maintenance activities. 
In an effort to stabilize and reduce costs, City, County, State Parks and U.S. IBWC 
began investigating a suite of alternative local reuse options, including using 
the sediment to replenish beach sand and restore upland areas. In addition, 
the mayor of Tijuana has provided $1M of funding for sediment removal from 
channels in the city of Tijuana.

Trash
Trash is only incidentally addressed through current management practices. 
Heavier trash, such as tires, are imbedded in the sediment excavated from basins 
and channels. Floatable trash behaves differently; it is more easily transported 
even in low flows and can be transported by wind.  As part of the Goat Canyon 
sediment basin project, trash nets were installed to trap surficial trash and 
debris. These nets are thought to be effective in areas where flow velocities 

are relatively low.  However, maintaining the nets can be difficult and labor 
intensive, especially during particularly wet years, since sediment and trash also 
accumulate upstream of the nets.

Cleanup of trash is important to minimize the impact from transport throughout 
the Valley.  Several non-governmental organizations conduct cleanups of trash 
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and waste tires in the Valley.  However, the timing and frequency of these activities 
are limited due to permit restrictions related to threatened and endangered 
species’ breeding season(s), access constraints during the wet weather season, 
and health and safety concerns to volunteers. 

Looking to the Future
A watershed approach to sediment and trash management that simultaneously 
reduces pollutant sources, actively captures at key watershed locations, and 
uses ecosystem processes to naturally transport sediment through the Valley to 
the ocean is an ultimate goal. The Recovery Team has initiated dialogue with its 
counterparts in Mexico to jointly plan, conduct and operate a suite of source 
reduction and capture measures throughout the bi-national watershed. The 
projects in Cañon de Los Laureles demonstrate that such a partnership can be 
mutually beneficial and effective.

Since source reduction and capture may never be completely sufficient, the 
river and estuary fluvial geomorphology need to be used to increase sediment 
transport capacity.  TRNERR, with State Parks, the US Fish and Wildlife Service, 
the Coastal Conservancy and the Southwest Wetlands Interpretative Association, 
have conducted a feasibility study to restore the southern portion of the estuary 
to enhance the tidal prism to accommodate elevated sediment loads.  Similarly, 
past changes to the watershed’s hydrology can be reversed to re-establish 
the natural capacity of the river to carry storm flows and sediment and more 
naturally connect waterways throughout the Valley.

Despite reducing costs by sharing facilities and contractors and creating options 
for local sediment reuses, a sustainable financing mechanism for operations 
and maintenance must be secured in order to responsibly invest in additional  
infrastructure.

Construction of retaining walls using waste tires may be a way to beneficially reuse waste and reduce sources of trashSediment basins constructed in Goat Canyon capture up to 60,000 cy of sediment from the Cañon de Los Laureles 
watershed each year
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Since the 1920s, urban expansion and associated infrastructure development in 
the watershed increased significantly. Major changes are described below.

»»Four dams, which control upstream flows from approximately 73% of the 
watershed, were constructed to provide water supply reservoirs to both 
the U.S. and Mexico. 

»»The Tijuana River Valley Flood Control Project was constructed to contain 
an approximate 500-year storm event in the main river as it enters the 
U.S. from Mexico.

»»A one-mile-long earthen “pilot” channel was constructed to direct flows 
away from a northern channel that formed during a flooding event in 
1993.    

»»Conagua has nearly completed construction of a concrete-lined channel 
on the Rio Alamar for an upstream distance of approximately 6 miles 
(10km).

These changes have led to management challenges for the  federal and local 
agencies, including U.S. IBWC, County, and City, responsible for flood control 
in the Valley. Based on the current channel configuration and condition, 
an approximately 5-to 10-year flood, representing a flow of between 7,000 
and 14,000 cubic feet per second (cfs), can cause localized flooding along  
Monument Road and Hollister Street, 
and on private and leased properties 
in the Valley. During these flooding 
events, vehicular access in and out of 
the Valley is limited, residences and 
other infrastructure are impacted, 
and border protection operations 
can be impeded.

In order to address localized flooding issues, the City and U.S. IBWC perform 
channel maintenance and clearing activities to remove accumulated sediment 
and trash. These costly operation and maintenance activities are needed on 

Stormwater (Flood) Control
Goal: Foster natural hydrological connectivity between estuarine 
and riparian habitats while minimizing flooding of public and private 
infrastructure.

Current Situation
The Tijuana River has historically functioned as a dynamic river system in its 
natural state. In a dynamic system, channels that convey water during major 
storm events shift location over time, depending on channel and vegetation 
stability, storm event size and frequency, large-scale climatic dynamics and other 
factors.  Development related to agriculture, ranching and residential activities 
in the watershed and Valley over the past 100 years has significantly changed 
the hydrology of the river and made flood control a major issue in managing 
this dynamic system. Further, as a result of major flood events in the 1980s and 
‘90s, berms were constructed on several properties to direct floodwaters away 
from existing infrastructure. In some cases, these changes have reduced channel 
capacity and may be responsible for an increase in upstream flooding.
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nearly an annual basis to control flooding. In order to conduct the channel 
clearing operations, public notification, environmental permitting, and 
biological and cultural monitoring are necessary-at considerable cost.  It is 
estimated that these costs, including disposal fees, are approximately $100-
$120 per cubic yard of material removed. 
 
Looking to the Future
Future goals regarding flood control activities in the Valley include balancing 
short-term needs to reduce flood risk, prevent property damage, and protect 
life with long-term ecosystem restoration, recreation and public use activities.  
The need for this balanced approach in the Valley has been discussed in various 
planning documents where, in general, man-made flow constraints such as 
berms are prohibited without comprehensive agency review and cost-benefit 
analysis. The Recovery Team also recognizes that controlling flooding in the 
Valley is dependent upon partnership and coordination with Mexican and U.S. 
agencies responsible for dam operations. Given the relative amount of dam-
controlled watershed area and water storage capacity of existing dams, ill-timed 
and/or large releases of water could cause significant flooding in the Valley.

It is understood that conducting 
focused hydrological and hydraulic 
studies is key to the Valley recovery 
process. Understanding existing 
conditions, including the capacities of 
channels, will lead to cost-effective and 
environmentally-sound flood control 
and stormwater management strategies 
that are in balance with long-term 
ecosystem restoration goals.  

Focused hydrology and hydraulic studies will allow:

»»floodplain delineation to inform policy and project implementation 
decisions,

»»detailed mapping of existing berms, dense vegetation, and other flow 
impediments that influence stormwater flows, and identification of 
current vegetation conditions and other physical characteristics that 
influence stormwater flows, and

»»improved understanding of processes that naturally transport sediment 
from the watershed to the ocean through the riparian and estuarine 
habitats in the Valley.

Additionally, sediment and trash source control and pollutant capture activities 
in the watershed are likely to reduce the need for costly ongoing operations 
and maintenance activities designed to reduce flooding risk in the Valley.  The 
coordination and prioritization of these activities through the Recovery Team 
are key to providing sustainable, long-term solutions to effective stormwater 
management.
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Floodplain delineation and flow modeling are key needs to inform policy and project decisions

U.S. Project Area
Estimated 25-Year 
Floodplain
Estimated 100-Year 
Floodplain

Future goals for flood control activities in the Valley include balancing short-term needs 
to reduce flood risk, prevent property damage, and protect life with long-term ecosystem 
restoration, recreation and public use activities
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Ecosystems
Goal: Creation of a sustainable, interconnected complex of natural habitats 
that supports native species, provides valuable ecosystem services, and 
offers opportunities for education and research.

Current Situation
The Tijuana River watershed historically has consisted of well-developed 
estuarine, riparian, transitional, and upland habitats. Although the physical 
footprint of the Valley today is similar to what existed historically, its ecosystems 
have changed over time. 

The Valley was largely agricultural from the 1920s through the 1960s, especially 
in the eastern, non-tidal areas.  Since then, many agricultural fields have been 
retired and marked habitat recovery has occurred in many parts of the Valley. 
These changes are reflected  in the broad, ecosystem-based goals outlined in 
resource planning documents prepared for the Valley. Activities performed 

in support of these planning documents have resulted in many habitat 
improvements in recent years, including:

»» active habitat and species protection,
»» invasive species management,
»» public acquisition of property,
»» shifting agricultural practices and transition to sustainable, organic 		

	 farming,
»» ecosystem restoration, particularly in the tidal salt marsh,
»» compensatory mitigation, particularly in the riparian zone,
»» other “passive” restoration, such as roads and trails being retired and 		

	 restored, and

»» water quality improvements related to advances in wastewater treatment 	
	 and infrastructure.

The Valley’s intrinsic habitat, coupled with continuing ecosystem recovery 
efforts over recent decades make it one of the largest, least developed, and 
best-studied coastal wetland ecosystems in southern California.  Also, the 
recent establishment of the Tijuana River Mouth State Marine Conservation 
Area, offshore of the estuary, presents an opportunity to foster a truly unique 
integration of habitats and ecosystem-based programs in coastal California.  

Unlike most other coastal wetlands in southern California, the footprint of the 
Valley today is similar to what existed in the 1850s  
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Invasive species control and habitat restoration programs have helped restore hundreds of acres of habitat in the 
Valley over the past 20 years 
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Despite the improvements in the overall extent and quality of habitats in the 
Valley, significant issues remain. These stem in large part from the influx of 
sediment and trash, altered hydrology, continued pollution during wet weather, 
and invasive species. These issues must be addressed to continue the ongoing 
improvement in the health of the Valley ecosystem and make the habitats less 
vulnerable to future adverse changes, particularly sea level rise associated with 
climate change.

Looking to the Future
From an ecosystem perspective, the broad ecological visions for the Valley 
espoused in existing planning documents—that of a largely natural, 
interconnected complex of habitats that support native plants and animals, as 
well as passive recreation opportunities for people—are fundamental goals.  
This vision was designed to maximize natural processes and respect existing 
stakeholders and landowners, while allowing for the need to adapt to changing 
environmental conditions, such as those due to climate change. 

The key benefits of restoring the ecosystem include minimizing flood risk, 
improving water quality in the estuary and ocean, providing environmental 
buffering, supporting sensitive species, improving recreational value, 
supporting education and outreach, and providing research opportunities 
leading to adaptive management strategies.  Such efforts will also make the 

	 The Recovery Strategy is aligned with the broad ecological vision espoused in prior  
	 planning documents - that of a largely natural, interconnected complex of habitats that 	
	 support native plants and animals, as well as passive recreation opportunities for people.

system more resilient to sea level rise and changing watershed inputs. This 
is particularly important in the Valley, as it is the wetland system in southern 
California most likely to be able to adapt to changing climate due to its limited 
development, relatively intact habitats, and broad buffer areas.

The strategies that have been offered to achieve these goals rely on past  
successes in the Valley. The strategy includes: conserving and protecting the 
healthy aspects of the ecosystem, restoring the degraded portions of the 
ecosystem; adapting land use practices to align with broad ecosystem-based 
goals on publicly owned land; restoring habitat damaged by redundant and 
unnecessary roads and trails, restoring abandoned sites (e.g., quarries); assessing 
the continuation of agricultural and other leases; continuing to engage private 
property owners in the restoration process; purchasing properties from willing 
sellers for public use; and obtaining conservation easements and development 
rights on private and public lands.

One of the focus areas for the future is resolving the hydrologic problems 
that preclude the natural flow of water. Obstructions to flow in the Valley  
compromise both the healthy functioning of the intact tidal / riparian wetland 
complex, as well as exacerbate flood risk to properties and businesses in the 
Valley.  A key principle for ecological restoration in the Valley is the recognition 
that improving hydrologic connectivity and increasing tidal exchange will not 
only benefit habitats, but also enhance the natural ability of the ecosystem to 
convey flood waters and effectively transport sediment through the system to 
the ocean, where it is needed to replenish sand on beaches.

Institutions Performing Research and Monitoring Activities  
in and around the Valley 

»» Tijuana River National Estuarine Research Reserve 
»» San Diego State University 
»» University of California San Diego
»» University of California Santa Barbara
»» University of San Diego
»» Scripps Institution of Oceanography
»» Over 15 public and private educational institutions, federal partnerships, 	

	 and other organizations
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Recreation Systems and Education
Goal: Coordinate recreation and education activities in the Valley with 
trash and sediment management in order to provide social, economic and 
environmental benefits for residents, visitors and land managers.

Current Situation
The Valley has a long history of use as a resource and recreational area.  The 
Valley and the estuary is a premier recreational resource for hikers, bird 
watchers, naturalists, equestrians, school children and other members of the 
public. These users recognize and value the Valley’s unique setting and serve 
as stewards to improve and enhance the recreational experience in the Valley. 
There is evidence that the Valley was used by native people and hunters for 
hundreds of years. Since the early 20th century, the region around the Valley, 
particularly Imperial Beach, has served as a summer retreat for Imperial Valley 
residents and other visitors. Horse racing became popular in the city of Tijuana 
in the 1920s; the Valley served as a location for stables for horse breeders and 
owners. In 1964, California voters approved funding to acquire the property 
that later became Border Field State Park. 

During the same period, developers lobbied the federal government and 
local landowners to build a marina in the estuary.  In 1971, President Nixon 
announced that Border Field would be developed for recreational use as part 
of his “Legacy of Parks” program, and 372 acres became part of Border Field 
State Park, preserving the southern flank of the estuary and mesa area adjacent 
to the international border. Meanwhile, local biologists Joy Zedler and Paul 
Jorgensen, along with Dr. Mike McCoy, a wildlife veterinarian, organized local 
environmentalists and Imperial Beach residents to build support for the estuary’s 
preservation. While Imperial Beach residents voted in favor of the marina project 
in 1980, the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service purchased the northern 500 acres of 
the estuary, establishing the Tijuana Slough National Wildlife Refuge. Despite 
opposition from developers, the estuary (both State Parks and National Wildlife 

Refuge land) became part of the U.S. Department of Commerce’s National 
Estuarine Sanctuary Program in 1982, and was designated a National Estuarine 
Research Reserve.  

Currently, recreational opportunities within the Valley are managed by multiple 
agencies. TRNERR is managed under a partnership between the U.S. and the State 
of California that links the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, 
State Parks, and the U. S. Fish & Wildlife Service. State Parks operates the Visitor 
Center and maintains Border Field State Park. The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
manages the Tijuana Slough National Wildlife Refuge. Several regional agencies 
and local municipalities share ownership and management responsibilities at 
the Reserve. 

The Tijuana River Valley Regional Park (Regional Park) occupies more than 1,700 
acres and is the largest recreational area in the Valley. It was established in 1996 
by the County.  Through grants and other funding mechanisms, the County 
has spent over $20 million in the acquisition of properties for open space. The 
Regional Park’s 35 miles of trails connect to an extensive system of trails that 
provide visitors access to the Valley from Dairy Mart Road to the beach.  This 

Students can learn valuable lessons about the environment through educational programs conducted in the Valley
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  ... a wealth of recreation and education opportunities exist for hikers, bird watchers,  
	 naturalists, equestrians, school children and other members of the public.

trail network is the only place along the southern California coastline where 
horseback riding is allowed on the beach.  In addition, a County sports facility is 
located north of the main river channel east of Hollister Street. 

The Valley provides many opportunities for public education about the 
importance of wetlands ecosystems and the many facets of the Valley’s 
current uses and history. The combination of salt marsh and riparian wetlands, 
complemented by upland habitat, mixed human uses, and cultural resources, 
provide interpretive opportunities for these resources.  The Tijuana Estuary 
Visitor Center incorporates educational and volunteer opportunities for 
students from local schools and the general public. These activities include 
everything from classes and bird walks to planting native vegetation and 
removing non-native plants. The Tijuana River National Estuarine Research 
Reserve has been providing educational and interpretive opportunities to pre-
kindergarten to college age students. The Tijuana Estuary Explorers and Junior 
Rangers programs are examples of ecology-based curriculum designed to 
inform future stewards of the watershed. Non-government organizations also 
provide educational tours and volunteer opportunities in the Valley.

Looking to the Future
The agencies and non-government organizations that provide recreation will 
continue their efforts and plan to expand programs. Expansion of volunteer 
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                    Kimley Horn, 2010, FWS, 2010.

planting and restoration programs, improvement of equestrian facilities and 
construction of the planned recreational facility and playing fields on the 
north edge of the Valley are all part of enhancing recreational and educational 
opportunities. Community-based social marketing would be an excellent tool 
to help reach the community in order to meet the behavior change goals of this 
Strategy and develop the best techniques to influence community members on 
both sides of the border.

The trail system, which is beneficial to multiple users, is continually revaluated 
in order to provide a high quality experience and access to the Valley while 
protecting habitat value.  Picnic tables, benches, and small-scale horticultural 
and gardening areas will be developed where appropriate.  The alignment of 
the southernmost segments of the California Coastal Trail is the final planning 
stages and is expected to culminate at Monument Mesa. This will eventually 
provide trail users coastal trail access from the international border to the 
Oregon coast.  

The extensive system of trails in the Valley, is one of the few places in southern California where recreational users 
can walk from riparian habitat to the beach

The Valley provides a unique opportunity where equestrians can ride from picturesque riparian habitat to the beach

                Attachment 3



17

This Strategy, and the overall Recovery Team, recognize that there are several specific areas or parcels where existing or planned uses conflict 
with the long-term Recovery Concept. As an example, existing planning documents, public agency stakeholders, and others have recognized 
the importance of preserving the region’s cultural heritage and respecting existing residential, agricultural, and other land uses in areas of the 
Valley subjected to frequent flooding. However, agencies responsible for cost-efficient floodplain management have also recognized the need 
to balance flood protection for properties and infrastructure within the 25-year floodplain in the short-term with long-term strategies to reduce 
flooding risk and enhance natural ecosystems and processes. Accordingly, the Recovery Team has developed this Strategy to document the iterative,  
integrated, multi-stakeholder planning and implementation approach to coordinate and maximize the cost efficiency of recovery efforts in the Valley.
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Mapping the Recovery Strategy
As part of the Recovery Strategy, a Proposed Recovery Concept (Recovery Concept) 
was developed. The Recovery Concept integrates the basic principles for flood 
control, recreation, protection of cultural and natural resources, and ecosystem 
restoration previously adopted in the region’s planning documents while 
recognizing the need for sediment and trash control areas, and maintaining U.S. 
Navy operations, border security, and other needs. Consistent with the region’s 
planning documents, the Recovery Concept integrates river flow improvements, 
such as removal of man-made impediments, and water quality improvement 
practices, balanced with flood management, ecosystem restoration, compatible 
agriculture and recreational uses.

EXISTING HABITAT:
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Key Components of the Proposed Recovery Concept include:

ECOSYSTEM AREAS
•	 A large tidal salt marsh area in the western portion of the Valley.
•	 A broad, central riparian forest within the 25-year floodplain (Note: several privately owned parcels are located within this area).
•	 A mesa habitat bordering the southern edge of the Valley with chaparral, sage scrub and grasslands. 
•	 A mixed-buffer habitat between the upland/mesa habitat and the lowland riparian/salt marsh areas.  This area could provide eco-

system resiliency to potential sea-level rise by providing raised topographic areas where salt marsh habitat can migrate in periods 
of inland sea water inundation. 

HUMAN USE AREAS
•	 Two agriculture and active recreation areas to accommodate existing residential and recreation uses.
•	 A transitional/mixed-use area with existing residences, ranches and other uses.

INFRASTRUCTURE AND OPERATIONS AREAS
•	 Three managed channels envisioned for sediment and trash control in the main river and two major tributaries to the Valley.
•	 Existing and future infrastructure, primarily the Valley’s two wastewater plants and a planned sediment repository.
•	 Border security area along the southern portion of the Valley.
•	 Military operations NAS Imperial Beach Outlying Field.
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Priority Action Areas
By combining the goals required for successful sediment and trash management, 
flood control, ecosystem restoration, and recreation and education needs with 
the broad, integrated management themes captured in the Proposed Recovery 
Concept, the Recovery Team identified seven Priority Action Areas for work in 
the initial phase of Recovery. The Priority Action Areas are described below.

A.	 Partner with Mexico to Implement Optimum, Watershed-based Solutions

B.	 Understand How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow

C.	 Reduce Sources of Sediment and Trash

D.	 Implement Sediment and Trash Capture Devices in the Watershed

E.	 Fund and Perform Ongoing Operations and Maintenance (O&M) 

F.	 Involve and Inform the Community in Mexico and U.S.

G.	 Protect and Enhance Natural Resources

  

Priority Action Area Linkage
The results of projects described in each of the Priority Action Areas affect 
what future work will be needed to restore the Valley. There is a level of 
interdependence between each of the Priority Action Areas, and each may be 
conducted concurrently to meet the vision for the Valley. First and foremost, 
identifying and developing a team approach between the U.S. and Mexico  
to address the sediment and trash issues will be of the highest priority. The 
interconnectivity of the Priority Action Areas is described below. 

Interconnection of Priority Action Areas - Project Outcomes Inform Future Work
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Project Execution Lifecycle Description
Projects within each Priority Action Area will be executed by individual Recovery 
Team stakeholders. The range and extent of implementation will depend on 
the project scope, timing, and internal organizational needs. Generally, capital 
improvement project implementation consists of  four main components:

»» data collection and feasibility assessment,

»» permitting and design,

»» implementation, and

»» operation and maintenance.

Non-capital projects may not require each of the project lifecycle components. 
A brief description of the main project life cycle components is presented below.

Data Collection and Feasibility Assessment
Projects begin with a problem that needs to be solved. Prior and during project 
initiation, Recovery Team members will coordinate with each other to assess 
available data and perform appropriate feasibility assessments to evaluate 
alternatives. Activities may include:

»» background data collection and coordination,

»» feasibility assessment — background data leading to a defined project  
	 scope, cost estimate, may be combined with permitting and design, and 

»» consideration of capital and long-term operation and maintenance 		
	 funding mechanisms, if applicable.

Permitting and Design
Federal, state, and environmental approvals, as well as consensus from project 
stakeholders and the public are required at the permitting and design stage. 
Contract plans and specifications, cost estimates, and contracting processes are 
also required. Permit components include:

»» environmental permitting documents,

»» draft environmental document and public review and comment, and

»» final environmental document certification and approval.

Engineering studies support design, environmental evaluation, and address 
stakeholder input and include:  

»» base maps, plan sheets (e.g., 30, 60 and 100% designs),
»» plans, specifications, and estimate package, and
»» construction contract(s) and other agreements.

Implementation
For capital projects, the implementation component includes:

»» constructed physical improvement — follows the applicable federal, state,  
	 and local guidelines,

»» as-built plans — includes plan changes during construction, and

»» environmental compliance certificates.

Operate and Maintain
Many capital projects envisioned in the Valley will need ongoing operation and 
maintenance that will require:

»» dedicated, reliable sources of funding,
»» maintenance agreement(s), and
»» planning to assess the long-term effectiveness of the project.

Summary
The following section presents a preliminary schedule for possible projects 
associated with each of the seven Priority Action Areas identified by the Recovery 
Team.  These actions are required to successfully and cost-efficiently implement 
the diverse array of projects identified in this Recovery Strategy that will have 
benefits across the multiple management areas previously described.

Interconnection of Priority Action Areas - Project Outcomes Inform Future Work
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A. Partner with Mexico to Implement Optimum, Watershed-based Solutions       
Specific projects to be determined through bi-national partnerships and the Recovery Team

B. Understand How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow
1. Watershed Hydrological and Hydraulic Modeling

2. Sediment and Trash Load Calibration Study

3. Bi-national Sediment and Trash Control Plan

C. Reduce Sources of Sediment and Trash
4. Sediment Source Control Implementation Program

5. Trash Source Control Implementation Program

6. Regular Trash Removal - U.S.

7. Trash Removal Programs - Mexico

D. Implement Sediment and Trash Capture Devices in Watershed
8. Design and Implementation of Sediment Basin in Smuggler’s Gulch

9. Sediment Capture Implementation - Mexico

10. Design and Implementation of Floatable Trash Capture Device(s)

11. Storm Drain System Trash Capture Device(s) Assessment - U.S.

12. Trash Capture Implementation - Mexico

E. Fund and Perform Ongoing Operations and Maintenance Work
13. Local Integrated Sediment and Trash Processing Site

14. Nearshore Sediment Reuse/Beach Replenishment Project In Progress

15. Nelson and Sloan Quarry Reclamation In Progress (Feasibility phase)

16. Reuse Construction Grade Material - Contract Terms and Conditions Recommendations

17. Long-term Operations and Maintenance Financing

F. Involve and Inform Community in Mexico and U.S.
18. Recovery Team Administration, Website Management and Media Support

19. Cross-border Notification Network

G. Protect and Enhance Natural Resources
20. Climate Change Analysis and Planning

21. Integrated Floodplain Management Alternatives Analysis

22. Restore River Hydrology

23. Restore Estuary

24. Implement the Tijuana River Valley Invasive Plant Control Program In Progress

25. Establish Native Plant Cover and Weed Control on Border Infrastructure System In Progress

26. Acquire Private Property from Willing Sellers In Progress

27. Agricultural Land Management Strategy

ESTIMATED Project Schedule 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020
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The international border serves as both a challenge and an opportunity in 
developing and implementing integrated programs to address sediment and 
trash issues.  In practice, a watershed approach to source control and pollution 
prevention is often the most cost-effective management measure strategy 
to control stormwater-borne pollutants. The Recovery Team recognizes that 
although “end-of-pipe” solutions and cleanup can be done in the U.S. portion 
of the watershed, it may not be sufficient to reduce sediment and trash inputs 
to reduce flooding and prevent further degradation of the Valley and estuary.  
Accordingly, effective treatment of sediment and trash requires a combination 
of pollutant source reduction, capture, cleanup activities, policy enhancements, 
and restoration of hydrologic processes in both the U.S. and Mexico portions of 
the watershed. 

A number of mechanisms currently exist for coordinating and funding work 
in Mexico.  Existing mechanisms include the U.S. EPA Border 2020 program,  

U.S. IBWC, San Diego Association of Governments Borders Committee, and 
others. The Recovery Team will work to fully engage the appropriate agencies 
and organizations in Mexico in identifying and implementing an optimum 
suite of source reduction and capture measures in the watershed, as outlined 
below, and utilize existing collaborative bi-national funding mechanisms. In 
practice, this entails jointly advising and reviewing data, and identifying and 
implementing projects through cooperative data sharing. In addition, education 
and coordination activities will be needed among Recovery Team member 
agencies to understand the structure, function and jurisdictional responsibility 
of Mexican agencies tasked with sediment and trash controls.  This will improve 
communication and allow the Recovery Team to recognize and integrate with 
work currently being conducted in Mexico to control sediment and trash.

It is critical to understand how water and sediment flow in order to develop an 
effective, integrated program for cost-efficient sediment and trash management 
and long-term recovery for the Valley. Sediment and trash accumulation and 
associated flood risk to public infrastructure and private property present costly 
environmental and management issues for Valley stakeholders. Many hydrology 
and hydraulic studies have been conducted in the Valley to understand how 
water flows for a variety of specific purposes, but some of this work is outdated 
or not relevant.  In addition, only recently have studies focused on analysis 
of peak flows in the main Tijuana River, runoff volume and duration during 
extreme storm events, and assessed production and distribution of sediment 

in the main river and tributary canyon drainages specifically for the purpose 
of reducing sediment, trash and flood risk. Focused hydrological and hydraulic 
studies will jointly inform and allow collaborative bi-national solutions to be 
developed for:  (1) restoration of the river and estuary to optimize flows for 
flood control and natural sediment transport to the ocean, (2) cost-benefit 
analysis of optimum management actions to control sediment and trash at the 
source(s) in the watershed and in the Valley, and (3) development of design, 
siting and sizing criteria for sediment and trash capture infrastructure in both 
the U.S. and Mexico portions of the watershed. 

B. Understand How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow
1. Watershed Hydrological and Hydraulic Modeling

2. Sediment and Trash Load Calibration Study

3. Bi-national Sediment and Trash Control Plan

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

A. Partner with Mexico to Implement Optimum, Watershed-based Solutions       
Specific projects to be determined through bi-national partnerships and the Recovery Team.

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020
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1. Watershed Hydrological and Hydraulic Modeling
Project will perform hydrology and hydraulics modeling based on current 
conditions.  Project will re-evaluate the extent of the 25- and 100-year floodplains 
using LIDAR and other available data. Expected results: identification of current 
flow characteristics that may be used for sediment and trash management, 
delineation of 25- and 100-year floodplain boundaries, and data to inform other 
policy and project implementation decisions. 

2. Sediment and Trash Load Calibration Study 
Desktop and field measurement study of sediment and trash loads in the Tijuana 
River watershed at key locations. Project will inform source reduction and 
management practice implementation planning and cost-benefit analysis for 
activities such as erosion, sediment, and trash control education and outreach, 
slope/road stabilization, and siting for sediment basins and/or trash capture. 
Expected results: data to calibrate sediment transport model(s). 

3. Bi-national Sediment and Trash Control Plan
Watershed-based study to determine the feasibility, expected benefits, and 
operations and maintenance requirements for various types of sediment and 
trash management activities and/or capture devices. Project will include cost-
benefit analysis for site-specific and watershed-based alternatives.  Expected 
results: coordinated source control, conceptual design, siting options and 
preliminary (30%) engineering design for selected capture devices. 

Sources of sediment and trash derived from both sides of the border contribute 
to ecosystem degradation, water quality concerns, and other problems that 
threaten the watershed. Education and outreach, and pollution prevention and 
source control projects are required to stop impacts from sediment and trash. The 
success of these types of programs depends on planning and implementation 
that will require time and significant political and economic investment on both 
sides of the border.  Accordingly, results from partnership projects conducted 
under Priority Action Area A (Partner with Mexico to Implement Optimum, 
Watershed-based Solutions) will be used to identify specific watershed-based 
source reduction activities. 

C1. Sediment
Sources of anthropogenic sediment exist on both sides of the border. In the U.S., 
significant effort has been directed toward development and implementation 
of land development, construction practice, and post-construction erosion 
control and sediment management policies over the past several decades.  
While this work has resulted in significant reductions in sediment loads from 
human activities, more work can be done.  
    
4. Sediment Source Control Implementation Program 
Informed by results of projects conducted under Priority Action Area A 
(Partner with Mexico to Implement Optimum, Watershed-based Solutions) and  

Watershed hydrology and hydraulic modeling informs many Recovery Strategy components

C. Reduce Sources of Sediment and Trash
4. Sediment Source Control Implementation Program

5. Trash Source Control Implementation Program

6. Regular Trash Removal - U.S.

7. Trash Removal Programs - Mexico

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020
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B (Understand How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow), implement actions 
such as: road and slope stabilization, erosion/sediment control guidance and 
incentives for development projects, legislation to enhance municipal codes and 
enforcement activities, and outreach for effective erosion control and sediment 
management practices. Expected results: source reduction of sediment.

C2. Trash
Traditional source control activities include education and outreach efforts 
focused on proper disposal, various activities to reduce litter and illegal disposal  
and policy improvements to encourage recycling and other beneficial activities.  
Recently, in the U.S., efforts to ban products have emerged as a potentially 
viable pollution prevention strategy.  

5. Trash Source Control Implementation Program
Informed by the results of projects conducted under Priority Action Area A 
(Partner with Mexico to Implement Optimum, Watershed-based Solutions) and 
B (Understand How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow), implement actions such 
as: improved trash collection services, illegal disposal abatement, legislation 
to provide incentives for recycling and disposal, and community-based social 
marketing outreach. Expected results: source reduction of trash.

6. Regular Trash Removal- U.S.
Fund and continue to implement partnership program for Recovery Team 
stakeholders and volunteer groups/non-governmental organizations to perform 
manual trash and tire removal activities in the Valley. Project to include disposal 
costs. Expected results: removal of quantifiable amounts of accumulated trash. 

7. Trash Removal Programs- Mexico
Informed by results of projects conducted under Priority Action Area A (Partner 
with Mexico to Implement Optimum, Watershed-based Solutions), implement 
actions such as: trash collection enhancements, plastic and tire recycling 
program improvements, illegal dumping abatement/enforcement, community-
based social marketing outreach, and regular trash removal programs. Expected 
results: removal of quantifiable amounts of accumulated trash.

In addition to source control, capture of sediment and trash pollutants is a 
necessary component for the long-term recovery of the Valley. The Recovery 
Team recognizes that source control and pollution prevention on both sides of 
the border are the first steps in reducing the amount of sediment and trash that 
will need to be treated to protect the designated beneficial uses of receiving 
waters.  However, successful implementation of sediment and trash reduction 

activities will improve the cost-effectiveness, but not eliminate the need for 
implementing capture devices at strategic locations in the watershed.  Factors 
such as land use, drainage area, and configuration of stormwater conveyance 
systems will determine the effectiveness of capture devices and/or strategies. 
In addition, the effectiveness of capture devices is dependent on performance 
of regular operation and maintenance activities. Sediment and trash capture 

Trash removal programs such as manual trash removal can cost-effectively reduce trash sources

D. Implement Sediment and Trash Capture Devices in Watershed
8. Design and Implementation of Sediment Basin in Smuggler’s Gulch

9. Sediment Capture Implementation - Mexico

10. Design and Implementation of Floatable Trash Capture Device(s)

11. Storm Drain System Trash Capture Device(s) Assessment - U.S.

12. Trash Capture Implementation - Mexico

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020
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implementation  projects  in both the U.S. and Mexico will depend on the 
outcome of Priority Project Areas A (Partner with Mexico to Implement Optimum, 
Watershed-based Solutions) and B (Understand How Water, Sediment and Trash 
Flow). The success of these types of programs is dependent on understanding 
that planning and implementation will require time and significant resource 
investment from partners in both the U.S. and Mexico. 

D1. Sediment
Sediment capture alternatives include on-site detention basins, regional basins 
designed to treat at the sub-watershed level, and large end-of-drainage area 
basins in the Valley.  

8. Design and Implementation of Sediment Basin in Smuggler’s Gulch
Informed by results of work conducted under Priority Action Area B (Understand 
How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow), this project will develop engineering 
design and permitting for sediment capture device(s) for low-medium flows 
provided this approach is deemed feasible and cost-effective. This project will 
ultimately include construction. Expected results: siting, permitting, 100% 
engineering design, and construction for sediment removal device(s).

9. Sediment Capture Implementation- Mexico
Informed by results of work conducted under Priority Action Areas A  (Partner 
with Mexico to Implement Optimum, Watershed-based Solutions) and B 
(Understand How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow), implement actions such 
as road paving/stabilization, non-vegetated slope stabilization, local/regional 
sediment basin implementation. Expected results: sediment load reduction.

D2. Trash
Trash capture alternatives include: mechanized removal of trash and litter from 
urban areas, improvements to urban drainage conveyance systems to reduce 
trash transport, and trash capture nets or screens located within drainage 
conveyances.  

10. Design and Implementation of Floatable Trash Capture Device(s)
Informed by results of work conducted under Priority Action Area B (Understand 
How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow), provide engineering design and 
permitting for trash capture device(s) for low-medium flows, provided this 
approach is deemed feasible and cost-effective. This project will ultimately 
include construction. Expected results: siting, permitting, 100% engineering 
design, and construction for trash removal device(s) and associated trash load 
reduction.

11. Storm Drain System Trash Capture Device(s) Assessment - U.S.
Storm drain system capture devices can include hydrodynamic separators (flow-
through structures with a settling or separation unit to remove trash, sediment, 
and other pollutants), catch basin inserts, inlet filters and other devices. Project 
aims to assess feasibility, design and potentially construct storm drain system 
capture devices in key locations.  Expected results: sediment and trash pollutant 
load reductions. Expected results: trash load reductions.

12. Trash Capture Implementation - Mexico
Informed by results of projects conducted under Priority Action Areas A  
(Partner with Mexico to Implement Optimum, Watershed-based Solutions) and 
B (Understand How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow), implement actions such 
as: storm drain system trash capture devices, improved street sweeping, trash 
capture nets and screens in channels and/or drainages. Expected results: trash 
load reductions.

Trash capture devices can include nets (left) or concrete and steel structures (right)
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The major challenge of capturing sediment and trash material in basins and 
managed natural channels is budgeting and funding the annual O&M activities 
that include:  excavation, sorting, and disposal. While source reduction measures 
throughout the watershed will reduce the volume and frequency of this work, 
operation and maintenance of existing and new sediment and trash capture 
infrastructure must be considered as a long-term, ongoing need. Initial work to 
fund operations and maintenance activities can generally be divided into two 
major components, as described below. 

E1. Reduce Annual O&M Costs with Joint Operations and Local 
Reuse of Sediment 
The members of the Recovery Team that conduct annual O&M activities have 
joined forces to reduce annual costs by creating local uses for sediment and 
by implementing joint sediment processing. To expedite these methods taking  
effect, collaborative environmental permitting review and joint operation 
agreements will be imperative. These projects are summarized below.

13. Local Integrated Sediment and Trash Processing Site 
Joint sediment and trash management location for the sediment captured in 
the Goat Canyon sediment basins and resulting from other excavation activities 
elsewhere in the Valley.   Expected results: centralized cost-efficient processing 
of excavated material. 

14. Nearshore Sediment Reuse/Beach Replenishment Project In Progress

Continue placing sediment on the beach adjacent to Border Field State Park and 
TRNERR.  This project originated as a pilot under the Tijuana Estuary Sediment 

Fate and Transport Study and is currently authorized under Department 
of Army Permit (SPL-2008-00812-RRS). Sediment may also be placed in the 
nearshore environment through an agreement with the City of Imperial Beach 
in accordance with the Sand Compatible Opportunistic Use Project (SCOUP) 
Plan. Expected results: cost-efficient reuse and environmentally beneficial 
placement of captured sediment for beach replenishment. 

15. Nelson and Sloan Quarry Reclamation In Progress 

Implement the Reclamation Plan for the Nelson and Sloan property (also known 
as the Border Highlands Borrow Pit) using sediment excavated from Valley 
sources. Expected results: beneficial reuse of captured sediment to reclaim 
sand and gravel mine in conformance with the original conditional use permit 
and reclamation plan, cost-efficiently place sediment excavated from Valley 
sources, and improve habitat through revegetation of severely eroded slopes.  

16. Reuse Construction Grade Material- 
Contract Terms and Conditions 
Recommendations 
Development of standardized terms and 
conditions for contracts with material operators 
to responsibly distribute construction grade 
material obtained from sediment operation and 
maintenance activities in the Valley.  Expected 
results: increase beneficial reuse of material 
and improve sediment placement tracking. 

E. Fund and Perform Ongoing Operations and Maintenance Work
13. Local Integrated Sediment and Trash Processing Site

14. Nearshore Sediment Reuse/Beach Replenishment Project In Progress

15. Nelson and Sloan Quarry Reclamation In Progress (Feasibility phase)

16. Reuse Construction Grade Material - Contract Terms and Conditions Recommendations

17. Long-term Operations and Maintenance Financing

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

                Attachment 3



27

E2. Secure Long-term Financing for O&M Activities
Development of a sustainable financing mechanism must occur to ensure 
that O&M can be accomplished annually, and to responsibly invest in future 
infrastructure. Traditional O&M mechanisms include establishing an endowment 
or cooperative agreements for management; however, identifying sources for 
capitalizing the fund will require consultation with financial and legal advisors.

17. Long-term Operations and Maintenance Financing
Develop government, philanthropic, and/or other innovative sponsorship and 
revenue-generating activities to secure long-term O&M funding for sediment 
and trash control activities. Expected results: dedicated funding for various 
sediment and trash control projects.

Effective and fully functional bi-national partnerships are integral to 
successfully reducing sediment and trash-related problems and improving the 
quality of the environment along the international border. Given the key role 
that source control and pollution prevention activities have in reducing costs to 
protect and cleanup the Valley, a collaborative and comprehensive education 
and outreach program is needed.  Stakeholders may then leverage existing 
education and outreach activities bi-nationally and work together to develop 
new and more effective programs to increase awareness, change behavior and 
improve conditions contributing to sediment and trash issues on both sides of 
the border.

18. Recovery Team Administration, Website Management and Media 
Support
Develop ongoing administrative support for the Recovery Team with provisions 
for development and maintenance of its website, popular media support and 
technical information exchange between U.S. and Mexico resource agencies. 
Expected results: continuous  Recovery Team administrative support to improve 
project implementation/coordination opportunities.

19. Cross-border  Notification Network
Develop an effective, streamlined cross-border project coordination and 
notification network and a process to advise key agencies/staff on the status of 
water quality and other issues affecting human and ecosystem health. Expected 
results: improved international communication; potential to reduce various 
environmental and human health impacts from pollutants in the Tijuana River 
watershed.

Recovery Team administrative support is needed to facilitate communication

F. Involve and Inform Community in Mexico and U.S.
18. Recovery Team Administration, Website Management and Media Support

19. Cross-border Notification Network

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020
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The Valley and estuary is one of the largest and least developed coastal wetland 
ecosystems in southern California. Despite significant disturbance from 
human activities in the Valley and adjacent metropolitan areas, protection and 
restoration efforts have resulted in an improvement in habitat and ecological 
function over the past several decades. Informed by results of projects 
conducted under Priority Action Area B (Understand How Water, Sediment and 
Trash Flow), projects are needed to restore the river flows and estuary tidal 
prism to reduce flooding, re-establish natural sediment transport to the ocean, 
and regain the productivity and resilience of the ecosystem.  
 
20. Climate Change Analysis and Planning
Analysis to assess the potential 
impacts of sea level rise and 
changing watershed inputs to 
develop long-term planning 
needs. Expected results: 
prediction of habitat migration; 
identification of potential 
impacts to infrastructure and 
property; development of 
climate change adaptation 
plans. 

21. Integrated Floodplain Management Alternatives Analysis
Develop a feasibility-stage alternatives analysis to determine the technical 
viability of integrated flood control, vegetation maintenance, and invasive 
species management alternatives in the Valley.  Expected results: development 
of cost-efficient alternatives to reduce flood risk for residents and infrastructure 
in the Valley, improve ecosystem function and transport of sediment from river 
to ocean, reduce the presence of invasive plant species and plan for river and 
estuary resiliency to climate change. This project may also lead to management 
alternatives for flow impediments such as berms, the Brown Fill and other flow-
impeding obstacles.  

22. Restore River Hydrology
Develop plans to restore the Valley to a naturally connected system of estuarine, 
riparian, transitional and upland habitats allowed to function as a braided river 
system with the associated capacity to naturally transport stormwater flows 
and sediment to the ocean.  It is recognized that this goal will be balanced with 
flood protection of infrastructure, respect for existing land uses, and recreational 
opportunities. Expected results: sustainable hydrological connectivity between 
land and ocean with ecosystem capacity to beneficially manage sediment 
transport. 

G. Protect and Enhance Natural Resources
20. Climate Change Analysis and Planning

21. Integrated Floodplain Management Alternatives Analysis

22. Restore River Hydrology

23. Restore Estuary

24. Implement the Tijuana River Valley Invasive Plant Control Program In Progress

25. Establish Native Plant Cover and Weed Control on Border Infrastructure System In Progress

26. Acquire Private Property from Willing Sellers In Progress

27. Agricultural Land Management Strategy

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020
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23. Restore Estuary 
A Feasibility and Preliminary Design Study was completed in 2008.  The next 
phase will include design and environmental compliance with products such 
as engineering cost estimates, designs and specifications, environmental 
compliance documents, and permit applications. Expected results: ecosystem 
restoration to improve tidal prism and overall ecosystem value.

24. Implement the Tijuana River Valley Invasive Plant Control Program In 

Progress

Implementation of the ongoing Program is guided by mapping of target 
species distributions, a control plan, programmatic environmental permits, and 
ongoing research and monitoring of treatment methods. Since its inception in 
2002, the Program has treated invasive plants within 1,752 acres. A Technical 

Advisory Group meets annually to prioritize work. Current high priorities 
include eradicating tamarisk from the main river channel through the estuary, 
establishing protocols to minimize spread of Arundo donax by ground disturbing 
maintenance activities, and providing a means to check whether completed 
control/revegetation areas exist in the footprint of planned work in the Valley. 
Expected results: prevent the spread of invasive species and reduce the impacts 
caused by invasive species to the Valley’s sensitive ecological habitats.

25. Establish Native Plant Cover and Weed Control on Border 
Infrastructure System In Progress

In October 2011, U.S. Customs and Border Protection began a perennial 
enhancement revegetation effort in Smuggler’s Gulch using native shrub 
species and a drip irrigation system.  The primary goals of the revegetation are 
to prevent erosion and reduce the invasive species on the staging areas, access 
routes, and cut-and-fill slopes temporarily disturbed during the construction of 
the Border Infrastructure System (BIS).   Plant and irrigation system installation 
is expected to be completed by March 2012, with monitoring and management 
expected to last through 2015. Expected results: reduction of sediment loads 
and improved water quality.

26. Acquire Private Property from Willing Sellers In Progress

A coordinated effort by federal, state, and local governments to purchase private 
property in the Valley from willing sellers has resulted in the purchase of over 
1,700 acres since the 1980s. This effort is complemented by ongoing efforts 
in Mexico to secure conservation easements in open space areas. Expected 
results: reduced risks to public health and safety from flooding and erosion and 
improved natural habitat connectivity.

27. Agriculture Land Management Strategy
Develop a management strategy for agricultural land as it becomes available 
through acquisition from willing sellers or retirement of existing leases. 
Expected results:  reduce soil erosion and loading of pesticides and fertilizers 
that could negatively affect sediment and water quality.

Preliminary designs for restoration in 
the southern portion of the estuary 
were completed in 2008
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Recovery Team Actions in the Regulatory Environment

A primary driver for the formation of the Recovery Team was the listing of the 
Tijuana River as impaired for sediment, trash and several other water quality 
pollutants under Section 303(d) of the Clean Water Act.  Federal law requires that 
Total Maximum Daily Loads be developed to reduce the sources of impairment 
in 303(d)-listed waterbodies.  However the bi-national nature of the Tijuana 
River watershed, the number of agency and private stakeholders and other 
factors led the Regional Board to consider the collaborative stakeholder-led 
Recovery Strategy approach.  

In response to the need for an increased understanding of the Tijuana River 
Valley and watershed within the context of resource management agency 
responsibilities/missions and across the U.S.-Mexico Border, a stakeholder 
workshop series was conducted. The three workshop series:

»» informed the development of the Recovery Strategy,

»» served as a collaborative process vehicle to inform stakeholders and  
	 integrate recovery strategies in the Valley,

»» linked policy and science with agency stakeholder responsibility roles, and

»» allowed sharing of multiple perspectives of recovery goals across  
	 stakeholder groups.

Over 50 stakeholders attended each workshop and post-workshop surveys 
were delivered by TRNERR’s Coastal Training Program.  The surveys reported a 
95% increase in awareness of collaboration opportunities.  

The Regional Board is one of a number of governmental agencies established 
to enforce regulations pertaining to maintaining and restoring water quality, 
protecting habitat and sensitive species, and managing cultural and other 
resources. Within the Recovery Team, these agencies include: U.S. IBWC, the 
EPA, U.S. Army Corp of Engineers, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the California 
Department of Fish and Game, the California State Water Resources Control Board, 
the Regional Board, and others.  Each of these agencies has specific, and often 
independent processes to review and approve projects conducted under their  
jurisdictional authority. 

The Recovery Team provides a forum for coordinating regulatory processes 
and project review that can meet the needs of individual stakeholders while 
benefitting the overall recovery of the Valley and the watershed.  Communication 
and early collaboration among project stakeholders and regulatory agencies is 
key to this process.  The collaborative nature of the Recovery Team promotes 
the development of a comprehensive permitting approach for projects that will 
restore the Valley in a manner consistent with existing laws and regulations and 
in concert with the overall vision of the Recovery Team.  

30

Collaborative Recovery Team visioning workshop to identify priority action areas 

Participants in the stakeholder workshops contribute to the development of strategies for Valley recovery
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»» Assessment - Includes the collection and assessment of data and other  
	 information to determine priority project implementation needs. 

»» Planning - Identifies and prioritizes measures to effectively and cost- 
	 efficiently reduce sediment and trash sources while balancing flood risk,  
	 ecosystem management, and recreational opportunity needs. 

»» Implementation - Employs priority projects in an integrated and  
	 collaborative approach that may include bi-national cooperation,  
	 interagency coordination, and/or cost-sharing components. 

»» Effectiveness Assessment - Evaluates project implementation activities 	
	 to refine future planning and implementation efforts.

It is anticipated that the adaptive management strategy will be applied both to 
specific project implementation assessments as well as assessment of overall 
progress toward long-term recovery goals. Approximately six months prior to 
the end of this initial phase of recovery, the Recovery Team will begin a planning 
process to evaluate findings and to develop an action plan for additional 
implementation activities and priority projects. 

The Recovery Team recognizes the importance of continuing to work 
collaboratively to implement actions to achieve its vision. The member agencies 
of the Recovery Team have developed a Letter of Commitment, a simple 
formalization of the relationship between the land managers and operating 
agencies that serves as a basis for collaboration in implementing priority 
projects. The Letter of Commitment recognizes that collaboration can be 
limited to individual agency responsibilities, jurisdictions, and legal mandates 
and is subject to the availability of funding. 

Moving forward, the land managers and operating agencies will be signatories 
to the Letter of Commitment and will serve as the Steering Committee for the 
Recovery Team.  Other Recovery Team stakeholders that are not signatories to 
the Letter of Commitment will be Members of Good Standing. These include: the 
environmental community, scientific community, and Valley stakeholders, such 
as private land owners and users. Additionally, the Recovery Team recognizes 
the importance of collaboration with agencies and organizations in Mexico and 
has agreed to jointly communicate common messages regarding its activities. 
Mexican agencies, environmental groups, and scientific organizations are also 
welcomed to the Recovery Team.

The Regional Board will serve as sponsor signatory to the Recovery Team and 
believes the Recovery Team is an innovative model that could demonstrate how 
water quality improvements can be made without the contentious and costly 
regulatory and legal remedies typically employed. The Regional Board also 
agrees to hold in abeyance its legal and regulatory options relevant to addressing 
sediment and trash issues while the Recovery Team pursues implementation 
of the priority projects identified in this document. This in no way limits the 
Regional Board’s regulatory and legal options, but, instead, shows a reciprocal 
respect for progress, provided that the signatories below are making a good 
faith effort to work collaboratively to implement the priority projects.  Progress 
toward implementing the priority projects to achieve the vision for the Valley 
will be assessed after a two-year period.  At that time, the Letter of Commitment 
will be renewed and/or revised by employing an iterative planning cycle. The 
planning cycle will include a four-part adaptive management strategy: 

Next Steps for the Recovery Team 
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The Recovery Strategy is intended to initiate the first phase of actions 
required to cleanup the Valley so its beneficial uses can be restored and 
the environmental and human values that the Valley supports can be 
maintained in perpetuity.  Through this document, the Recovery Team 
has taken a significant step to document the existing conditions related 
to sediment and trash issues in the Valley, and outline solutions that 
will allow beneficial uses of the Valley and its resources to be achieved. 
Resolution to the sediment and trash problems will require alignment 
of enhanced relationships, partnerships, and funding mechanisms in the 
U.S. and in Mexico to provide watershed-based solutions. Accordingly, the 
Recovery Team stakeholders recognize the benefit of using a collaborative 
approach to build and enhance cross-border communication and 
relationships that will lead to our common goals of a healthy Valley and 
watershed.

For more information please contact:
Charles Cheng, Ph.D., P.G.
California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region
9174 Sky Park Court, Suite 100
San Diego, CA 92123-4340
Phone 858-627-3930
Fax 858-571-6972
Email: ccheng@waterboards.ca.gov

 
Or visit the Regional Board website at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sandiego/

Recovery Strategy Summary

Images contained in the Recovery Strategy
have been provided by:

California Coastal Conservancy
California State Parks
Carl Nettleton (OpenOceans Global)
City of San Diego
County of San Diego
Tijuana River National Estuarine Research Reserve
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
URS Corporation
WiLDCOAST

Photo Credits

»» Audubon Society
»» California Coastal Commission
»» California Coastal Conservancy
»» California Department of  

Conservation, Office of Mining  
and Reclamation

»» California Department of Fish and 	
Game

»» California Department of Resources 	
Recovery and Recycling (CalRecycle)

»» California Environmental Protection 	
Agency

»» California State Parks
»» California State Water Resources  

Control Board
»» City of Imperial Beach
»» City of San Diego
»» County of San Diego
»» International Boundary and Water  

Commission
»» National Marine Fisheries Service
»» National Oceanic and Atmospheric  

Administration 
»» OpenOceans Global

»» San Diego Coastkeeper
»» San Diego County Water Authority
»» San Diego Regional Water Quality  

Control Board
»» San Diego State University
»» Scripps Institution of Oceanography 
»» Southern California Coastal Water  

Research Project
»» Southwest Wetlands Interpretive  

Association
»» State Coastal Conservancy
»» Surfrider
»» Tijuana River National Estuarine 

Research Reserve
»» Tijuana River Valley Equestrian  

Association (TRVEA)
»» U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
»» U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
»» U.S. Customs and Border Patrol
»» U.S. Department of Agriculture
»» U.S. Environmental Protection 

Agency
»» U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
»» U.S. Navy

Tijuana River Valley Recovery Team
The Recovery Team consists of the following member agencies 
and organizations:
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The TRVRT would like to especially thank:

 
for providing funding to support the development of the Strategy.

Sempra Energy FoundationCalifornia State Water 
Resources Control Board
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December 16,2014 

Tyler Foltz 
Senior  Planner 
Community Development Department 
City of Imperial Beach  
825 Imperial Beach Blvd. 
Imperial Beach , CA 91932 
Send Via Email: tylerfoltz@imperialbeachca.gov 

RE: Demolition of Buildings on  Seacoast Dr. and Ocean Lane 

Good Morning Tyler: 

Thank you for speaking with me . 

While I have no objections to the demolishing of the buildings contained in the permit , I would like to 
voice my concerns about the hours  of the teardown, lighting ,dust,  traffic and noise. 

 I own two units at  Sea Village located at 1111 Seacoast Drive. Unit #32 faces  west and is the end unit 
on the corner of Seacoast and Imperial Beach Blvd. The other unit #34 faces Imperial Beach Blvd. ,about 
two doors down from Seacoast Dr. 

I would request that the hours of work should not be earlier than 7 am with a finishing time each  day no 
later than dusk. That trucks and vehicles should not be able to  run engines before that hour. Idling 
engines earlier  then  7am will wake many of the residents at Sea Village as well as at my units. If 
Possible, not working on weekends would be ideal, but if that cannot happen, perhaps a starting time of 
9am or later? I would think that dust  and dirt will be mitigated in some way within the permit. Lighting 
is a concern as well. I would appreciate lighting that does  not impact residents with brightness or spots 
pointing directly toward Sea Village.  

I look forward to the public hearing to see what the developer has planned for the property. 

Again Tyler,  thank you for your time. 

CC: Tyco Property Management Co. 
 Sea Village Condo Association 
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The  statement  of  activities presents  information  showing how  the City’s net  position  changed 

during  the most  recent  fiscal  year. All  changes  in  net  position  are  reported  as  soon  as  the 

underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, 

revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will only result in cash flows in future 

fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

 
Both  of  the  government‐wide  financial  statements  distinguish  functions  of  the City  that  are 

principally  supported  by  taxes  and  intergovernmental  revenues  (governmental  activities)  from 

other  functions  that are  intended  to  recover all or a significant portion of  their costs  through 

user  fees and  charges  (business‐type  activities). The governmental activities of  the City  include 

general  government,  public  safety,  highways  and  streets,  sanitation,  and  culture  and 

recreation. The business‐type activities of the City include sewer operations. 

 
The government‐wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary 

government), but also a legally separate agencies  including  the Successor Agency of  the  former 

RDA. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the financial 

information presented for the primary government itself.  

 

Fund Financial Statements. A  fund  is a grouping of related accounts  that  is used  to maintain 

control over resources  that have been segregated  for specific activities or objectives. The City, 

like  other  state  and  local  governments,  uses  fund  accounting  to  ensure  and  demonstrate 

compliance with finance‐related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided 

into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

 
Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions re‐ 

ported as governmental activities in the government‐wide financial statements. However, unlike 

the  government‐wide  financial  statements, governmental  fund  financial  statements  focus  on 

near‐term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources avail‐ 

able at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful  in assessing a government’s 

near‐term financing requirements. 

 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government‐wide financial 

statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for  governmental funds with similar 

information presented for governmental activities in the government‐wide financial statements. By 

doing so, readers may better understand  the  long‐term  impact of  the government’s near‐term 

financing  decisions.  Both  the  governmental  fund  balance  sheet  and  the  governmental  fund 

statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes  in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 

facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

 
The  City’s  basic  financial  statements  display  four  individual  governmental  funds  (General 

Fund, Housing Authority, 2010 Bond Fund, and Other).  Information  is presented separately in 

the  governmental  fund  balance  sheet  and  in  the  governmental  fund  statement  of  revenues, 

expenditures, and changes  in  fund balances  for  the general  fund, housing authority, and 2010 

bond.  Data  from  the  other  governmental  funds  are  combined  into  a  single  aggregated 

presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non‐major governmental funds is provided 

in  the  form  of  combining  statements  in  the  combining  and  individual  fund  statements  and 

schedules section of this report. 
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The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for  its general  fund. A budgetary comparison 

statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 
 

Proprietary Funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds 

are used  to  report  the  same  functions presented as business‐type  activities  in  the  government‐

wide  financial  statements.  The  City  uses  enterprises funds to account for its Sewer operation. 

Internal service funds are an accounting device used  to accumulate and allocate costs  internally 

among  the  City’s  various  functions.  The City  uses  internal  service  funds  to  account  for  the 

management  of  its  retained  risks  and  for  its  fleet  of vehicles. Because  both  of  these  services 

predominantly  benefit  governmental  rather  than  business‐type  functions,  they  have  been 

included within governmental activities in the government‐wide financial statements. 

 
Proprietary  funds  provide  the  same  type  of  information  as  the  government‐wide  financial 

statements,  only  in more  detail.  The  proprietary  fund  financial  statements  provide  separate 

information  for  the  Sewer  operation  and   internal  services   fund  which are  considered 

to be major funds of the City.  

 
Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 

outside of the government. Fiduciary funds are not reported in the government‐wide financial 

statements  because  the  resources  of  those  funds  are not  available  to  support  the City’s  own 

programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 

 
The City maintains two different types of fiduciary funds. The Private‐purpose trust fund is used 

to report resources held in trust  for other entities. The Agency  fund  reports resources held by 

the City in a custodial capacity for individuals, private organizations and other governments. The 

City  current has  one  agency  fund,  and  one Private Trust  fund  (the  Successor Agency  of  the 

Former RDA). 

 
Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is necessary to 

acquire a  full understanding of  the data provided  in  the government‐wide and  fund  financial 

statements.  
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Government‐wide Overall Financial Analysis 
 

As  noted  earlier,  net  position  over  time, may  serve  as  a  useful  indicator  of  a  government’s 

financial position.  In  the case of  the City, assets and deferred outflows of  resources exceeded 

liabilities by $86,702,190 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 
 

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH; Net Position 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Just over half of  the City’s net position  (56%)  reflects  investment  in  capital  assets  (e.g.,  land, 

buildings, machinery,  equipment,  vehicles,  and  infrastructure),  less  any  related  outstanding 

debt  that  was  used  to  acquire  those  assets. The  City  uses  these  capital  assets  to  provide  a 

variety  of  services  to  its  citizens.  Accordingly,  these  assets  are  not  available  for  future 

spending.   

 

An  additional  portion  of  the  City’s  net  position,  $7,952,067  (9%)  represents  resources  that 

are  subject  to  external  restrictions  on  how  they  may  be  used.  The  remaining  balance  of 

$30,065,416 (35%) is unrestricted and may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations 

to its citizens and creditors. 

 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances  in all reported 

categories  of  net  position,  both  for  the  government  as  a whole,  as well  as  for  its  separate 

governmental and business‐type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 
 

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Current and Other Assets 40,851,522$  40,564,090$  2,862,648$   2,657,759$   43,714,170$  43,221,849$ 

Capital Assets 42,533,566    41,453,331    6,151,141     6,078,158     48,684,707    47,531,489   

Total Assets 83,385,088    82,017,421    9,013,789     8,735,917     92,398,877    90,753,338   

Current Liabilities 2,872,710      2,846,158      259,840        89,876          3,132,550      2,936,034     

Long‐term Liabilites 2,501,970      2,526,982      62,167          62,932          2,564,137      2,589,914     

Total Liabilities 5,374,680      5,373,140      322,007        152,808        5,696,687      5,525,948     

Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital 42,533,566    41,453,331    6,151,141     6,078,158     48,684,707    47,531,489   

Restricted 7,952,067      15,655,189    ‐                   ‐                   7,952,067      15,655,189   

Unrestricted 27,524,775    19,535,761    2,540,641     2,504,951     30,065,416    22,040,712   

Total Net Position 78,010,408$  76,644,281$  8,691,782$   8,583,109$   86,702,190$  85,227,390$ 

Governmental Activities Business‐type Activities Total
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH; Changes in Net Position 

 

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

REVENUE

Program Revenue

Charges for Services 2,111,942$     6,648,285$    4,129,946$    3,988,249$    6,241,888$    10,636,534$  

Operating Grants 5,403,493       4,687,393      ‐                     ‐                     5,403,493      4,687,393      

Capital Grants 1,971,701       2,548,551      ‐                     ‐                     1,971,701      2,548,551      

General Revenue ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

Property Tax 4,594,215       4,050,421      ‐                     ‐                     4,594,215      4,050,421      

Other tax 5,858,143       5,843,150      ‐                     ‐                     5,858,143      5,843,150      

Other 941,198          ‐                     32,691           52,761           973,889         52,761           

Total Revenue 20,880,692     23,777,800    4,162,637      4,041,010      25,043,329    27,818,810    

EXPENSE

General Government 3,680,695       10,975,086    ‐                     ‐                     3,680,695      10,975,086    

Public Safety 10,520,799     10,742,085    ‐                     ‐                     10,520,799    10,742,085    

Community Development 613,085          ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     613,085         ‐                     

Pulic Works 2,875,724       2,278,148      ‐                     ‐                     2,875,724      2,278,148      

Sanitation ‐                      ‐                     4,053,964      4,149,335      4,053,964      4,149,335      

Culture and Recreation 1,821,723       1,791,244      ‐                     ‐                     1,821,723      1,791,244      

Total Expense 19,512,026     25,786,563    4,053,964      4,149,335      23,565,990    29,935,898    

Restatement of Net Position (2,539)             85,507           ‐                     ‐                     (2,539)            85,507           

Increase in net position 1,366,127       (1,923,256)     108,673         (108,325)        1,474,800      (2,031,581)     

Net position beginning 76,644,281     78,567,537    8,583,109      8,691,434      85,227,390    87,258,971    

Net position ending 78,010,408$   76,644,281$  8,691,782$    8,583,109$    86,702,190$  85,227,390$  

 
 

Business‐type Activities. For the City’s business‐type activities, the results for the current fiscal 

year were positive, overall net position increased slightly reaching an ending balance of $8,691,782. 

The total increase in net position for business‐type activities (sewer fund) was $108,673 or 1% from 

the prior fiscal year.  

 

Financial Analysis of Governmental Funds 
 

As noted  earlier,  the City uses  fund accounting  to  ensure  and demonstrate  compliance with 

finance‐related legal requirements. 

 
Governmental Funds. The  focus of  the City’s governmental  funds  is  to provide  information on 

near‐term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information  is useful  in 

assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned  fund balance may  serve 

as  a  useful measure  of  a  government’s  net  resources available for discretionary use as they 

represent  the portion of  fund balance which has not  yet  been  limited  to  use  for  a  particular 

purpose  by  either  an  external  party,  the City  itself,  or  a  group  or  individual  that  has  been 

delegated authority to assign resources for use for particular purposes by the City Council. 
 

10



 

 
 

 

 

At  June 

$23,502,

primaril

Revenue

which  is

balance 

spendab

particul

 

The gen

unassig

measure 

balance 

represen

while  to

amount. 

 
Propriet

the gove

Total ne

net posit

30,  2014, 

641,  a  decr

y due to an 

. Approxim

s  available 

s either non

le  form ($2,

ar purposes 

eral  fund  is 

ed  fund  b

of  the  gene

and  total  f

ts  approxi

tal  fund  ba

ary Funds. 

rnment‐wi

t position of 

ion was $91

the  City’s 

ease  of  $6,7

accounting e

ately  25%  o

for  spending

spendable,  re

622,885), 2) 

($5,205,604), 

the chief op

alance  of  the

eral  fund’s 

und balance 

mately  thirt

lance  repres

The City’s pr

e financial s

the Sewer F

,817. The unr

governmen

700,277  in  c

entry to re‐cl

of  this  amou

g  at  the  gov

estricted,  com

restricted fo

or 4) assigne

perating  fun

e  general  fu

liquidity,  it

to  total gen

ty‐three  pe

sents  appro

roprietary fu

statements, b

Fund at the

restricted fu

ntal  funds

comparison

lass Housing

unt  ($5,873,

vernment’s

mmitted,  or  a

or  particular

ed for parti

nd of  the Cit

und was  $5

may  be  us

neral  fund  e

ercent  (33%

oximately  eig

unds provid

but in more 

end of the 

und balance 

reported  c

with  the 

g Authority 

897)  constitu

discretion.

assigned  to 

r purposes (

cular purpo

ty. At the e

5,932,087,  an

seful  to  com

expenditure

%)  of  total

ghty‐seven

e the same 

detail. 

year was $9,

is $3,182,80

ombined  fu

prior  year.  T

 loans receiv

utes  unassig

The  remain

indicate  tha

$7,952,067), 

ses ($1,848,1

nd of  the cu

n  increase  o

mpare  both u

s. Unassigne

general  fun

percent  (87

type of infor

333,950. The

9. 

und  balance

The  reducti

vable as Def

gned  fund  ba

nder  of  the

at  it  is  1)  n

3) committe

188). 

urrent fiscal

of  $321,018.

unassigned

ed  fund  ba

nd  expendit

7%)  of  that 

rmation foun

e total increa

es  of 

ion  is 

ferred 

alance, 

fund 

not  in 

ed for 

year, 

As  a 

fund 

alance 

tures, 

same 

nd  in 

ase in 

11



 

 

 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 

Original budget compared to final budget. During the year there was no need for any significant 

amendments  to  increase  either  the  original  estimated  revenues  or  original  budgeted 

appropriations. However, there was a need to make an amendment to reallocate appropriations 

among departments when  it  became  clearer which  departments would  actually  be  charged 

for  certain  employee  benefits  such  as  pensions  and  other  postemployment  benefits. 

Generally,  the movement of the appropriations between departments was not significant.  

 

Final budget compared to actual results. The differences between estimated and actual revenues 

(resources) and expenses (outflows) were as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The positive variance in resources came primarily from additional Redevelopment Property Tax 

Trust Fund (RPTTF) pass‐thru revenue received as part of the Recognized Obligation Payment 

Schedule.  

 

The  favorable  variance  in  outflows  is  primarily  due  to  a  conservative  spending  budget  and 

strict fiscal control. The negative transfer out variance was triggered by the partial repayment of 

the City  Loan  to  the  Former Redevelopment Agency. A  portion  of  the  loan  repayment was 

transferred to the Housing Authority per state law.   
 

Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance

Positive

(Negative) 

Resources (Inflows)

Taxes 8,161,388$       8,940,810$        779,422$         

Licenses and Permits 536,100            578,949             42,849             

Intergovernmental 584,553            659,169             74,616             

Charges for Services 7,213,605         7,205,627          (7,978)              

Use of Money and Property 457,000            408,537             (48,463)            

Fines and Foreitures 143,500            190,099             46,599             

Miscellaneous 493,000            214,994             (278,006)          

Transfers 871,000            779,240             (91,760)            

517,279$         

Charges (Outflows)

General Government 3,547,966$       3,177,886$        370,080$         

Public Safety 10,782,538       10,616,637        165,901           

Parks and Recreation 1,590,354         1,610,610          (20,256)            

Public Works 2,415,561         2,216,667          198,894           

Capital Outlay 315,265            267,563             47,702             

Transfers Out ‐                       345,713             (345,713)          

416,608$         
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 

Capital assets. The City’s net  investment  in capital assets  for  its governmental  and  business‐

type  activities as of  June 30,  2014,  amounts  to $48,648,707  (net of accumulated depreciation). 

This  investment  in  capital  assets  includes  land,  buildings, machinery,  equipment,  vehicles, 

park  facilities, roads, highways, bridges, and  the sewer  system. The  total  increase in capital 

assets for the current fiscal year was $1,153,218 (1%). 
 

City of Imperial Beach; Capital Assets (net of depreciation) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Long‐term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, City did not have any outstanding debt. 

The City does recognize other long term liabilities (listed below).  

 

The Successor Agency of the former RDA, which is a legally separate agency had outstanding 

long  term  debt  totaling  $38,347,735  at  the  end  of  the  fiscal  year.  In  addition,  the  Successor 

Agency has a loan due to the City in the amount of $2,622,885. 
 

City of Imperial Beach; Long‐term liabilities   

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
The City’s total long‐term  liabilities decreased by $25,777  (1%) reflecting  the current  liability  for 

Post‐Employment Benefits, Compensated Absences and Claims. 

 
Requests for Information 

 
This  financial  report  is designed  to provide  a  general  overview  of  the City’s financials for all 

those with  an  interest  in  the  government’s  fiscal  health.  Questions  concerning  any  of  the 

information provided  in  this  report or requests  for additional  financial  information should be 

addressed  to  the City  of  Imperial Beach, Office  of  the  Finance Director,  825  Imperial Beach 

Blvd., Imperial Beach, CA 91932. Or visit www.imperialbeachca.gov 

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Land 1,638,532$    1,638,532$    ‐$                   ‐$                   1,638,532$    1,638,532$   

Right of Way 12,406,327    12,406,327    826,591         589,341         13,232,918    12,995,668   

Construction in Progress 4,213,937      9,487,275      ‐                     ‐                     4,213,937      9,487,275     

Structures 4,356,788      3,985,396      ‐                     ‐                     4,356,788      3,985,396     

Equipment and Vehicles 1,508,346      694,659         ‐                     ‐                     1,508,346      694,659        

Infrastrucutre 18,409,636    13,241,142    ‐                     ‐                     18,409,636    13,241,142   

Sewer Systsem ‐                     ‐                     5,324,550      5,488,817      5,324,550      5,488,817     

42,533,566$  41,453,331$  6,151,141$    6,078,158$    48,684,707$  47,531,489$ 

Governmental Activities Business‐type Activities Total

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Other Post Employment Benefits 127,108$       111,026$       ‐$                   ‐$                   127,108$       111,026$      

Compensated Absences 777,688         797,473         62,167           62,932           839,855         860,405        

Claims & Judgments 1,597,174      1,618,483      ‐                     ‐                     1,597,174      1,618,483     

2,501,970$    2,526,982$    62,167$         62,932$         2,564,137$    2,589,914$   

Governmental Activities Business‐type Activities Total
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Assets:
Cash and investments 25,673,349$    3,338,456$      29,011,805$    
Receivables:

Accounts 790,265           1,062               791,327           
Notes and loans 8,551,552        -                       8,551,552        

Internal balances 642,168           (642,168)          -                       
Due from other governments 2,322,925        165,298           2,488,223        
Inventories 1,088               -                       1,088               
Restricted assets:

Cash and investments 247,290           -                       247,290           
Due from Successor Agency 2,622,885        -                       2,622,885        
Capital assets not being depreciated 18,258,796      826,591           19,085,387      
Capital assets, net of depreciation 24,274,770      5,324,550        29,599,320      

          Total Assets 83,385,088      9,013,789        92,398,877      

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,646,831        51,796             1,698,627        
Accrued liabilities 388,293           20,828             409,121           
Unearned revenue 547,623           -                       547,623           
Deposits payable 289,963           -                       289,963           
Due to other governments -                       187,216           187,216           
Noncurrent liabilities:
    Due within one year 732,624           16,949             749,573           
    Due in more than one year 1,769,346        45,218             1,814,564        

          Total Liabilities 5,374,680        322,007           5,696,687        

Net Position:
Investment in capital assets 42,533,566      6,151,141        48,684,707      
Restricted for:
    Community development projects 5,258,343        -                       5,258,343        
    Public safety 33,687             -                       33,687             
    Public works 2,660,037        -                       2,660,037        
Unrestricted 27,524,775      2,540,641        30,065,416      

          Total Net Position 78,010,408$    8,691,782$      86,702,190$    

JUNE 30, 2014

Primary Government

See Notes to Financial Statements 15



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Operating Capital
Charges for Contributions Contributions

Expenses Services and Grants and Grants

Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

General government 3,680,695$      736,179$         469,636$         -$                     
Public safety 10,520,799      662,584           4,492,309        -                       
Community development 613,085           -                       75,000             -                       
Parks, recreation and senior center 1,821,723        52,094             -                       -                       
Public works 2,875,724        661,085           366,548           1,971,701        

      Total Governmental Activities 19,512,026      2,111,942        5,403,493        1,971,701        

Business-Type Activities:
Sewer 4,053,964        4,129,946        -                       -                       

Total Business-Type Activities 4,053,964        4,129,946        -                       -                       

Total Primary Government 23,565,990$    6,241,888$      5,403,493$      1,971,701$      

General Revenues:
Taxes:
   Property taxes, levied for general purpose
   Transient occupancy taxes
   Sales taxes
   Franchise taxes
   Business licenses taxes
   Utility users tax
Motor vehicle in lieu - unrestricted
Use of money and property
Other

Extraordinary gain

   Total General Revenues and Extraordinary Items

   Change in Net Position

Net Position at Beginning of Year

Restatement of Net Position

Net Position at End of Year

Program Revenues

See Notes to Financial Statements 16



Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

(2,474,880)$     -$                     (2,474,880)$     
(5,365,906)       -                       (5,365,906)       

(538,085)          -                       (538,085)          
(1,769,629)       -                       (1,769,629)       

123,610           -                       123,610           

(10,024,890)     -                       (10,024,890)     

-                       75,982             75,982             

-                       75,982             75,982             

(10,024,890)     75,982             (9,948,908)       

4,594,215        -                       4,594,215        
386,421           -                       386,421           

1,877,902        -                       1,877,902        
1,867,869        -                       1,867,869        

373,935           -                       373,935           
1,352,016        -                       1,352,016        

12,167             -                       12,167             
502,005           21,297             523,302           
215,223           11,394             226,617           
211,803           -                       211,803           

11,393,556      32,691             11,426,247      

1,368,666        108,673           1,477,339        

76,644,281      8,583,109        85,227,390      

(2,539)              -                       (2,539)              

78,010,408$    8,691,782$      86,702,190$    

 Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net 
Position 

See Notes to Financial Statements 17



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS     
JUNE 30, 2014

 Special 
Revenue Fund 

General
Assets:
Pooled cash and investments 13,038,235$    365,181$         4,527,612$      
Receivables:

Accounts 790,265           -                       -                       
Notes and loans -                       8,551,552        -                       

Due from other governments 1,652,068        -                       150,000           
Due from other funds 418,725           -                       -                       
Inventories 1,088               -                       -                       
Restricted assets:

Cash and investments -                       247,290           -                       
Due from Successor Agency 2,622,885        -                       -                       

     Total Assets 18,523,266$    9,164,023$      4,677,612$      

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,411,499$      963$                29,971$           
Accrued liabilities 351,638           586                  220                  
Unearned revenues 547,623           -                       -                       
Deposits payable 289,963           -                       -                       
Due to other funds -                       -                       -                       

     Total Liabilities 2,600,723        1,549               30,191             

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues 313,779           8,551,552        -                       

     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 313,779           8,551,552        -                       

Fund Balances:
  Nonspendable:
    Inventory 1,088               -                       -                       
    Due from Successor Agency 2,622,885        -                       -                       
  Restricted for:
    Community development projects -                       610,922           4,647,421        
    Public safety -                       -                       -                       
    Public works -                       -                       -                       
  Committed to:
    Community development projects 3,705               -                       -                       
    Economic Uncertainty Reserve 1,800,000        -                       -                       
    Strategic Capital Reserve 3,129,588        -                       -                       
    Regional Communication System 272,311           -                       -                       
  Assigned to:
    Public works 1,848,188        -                       -                       
  Unassigned 5,930,999        -                       -                       

     Total Fund Balances 15,608,764      610,922           4,647,421        

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
     Resources, and Fund Balances 18,523,266$    9,164,023$      4,677,612$      

 C.I.P. 2010 
Bond 

 Housing 
Authority 

 Capital 
Projects Fund 

See Notes to Financial Statements 18



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables:

Accounts
Notes and loans

Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Inventories
Restricted assets:

Cash and investments
Due from Successor Agency

     Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenues
Deposits payable
Due to other funds

     Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues

     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
  Nonspendable:
    Inventory
    Due from Successor Agency
  Restricted for:
    Community development projects
    Public safety
    Public works
  Committed to:
    Community development projects
    Economic Uncertainty Reserve
    Strategic Capital Reserve
    Regional Communication System
  Assigned to:
    Public works
  Unassigned

     Total Fund Balances

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
     Resources, and Fund Balances

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

Funds Funds

2,735,097$         20,666,125$       

-                         790,265              
-                         8,551,552           

495,742              2,297,810           
-                         418,725              
-                         1,088                  

-                         247,290              
-                         2,622,885           

3,230,839$         35,595,740$       

175,041$            1,617,474$         
1,539                  353,983              

-                         547,623              
-                         289,963              

418,725              418,725              

595,305              3,227,768           

-                         8,865,331           

-                         8,865,331           

-                         1,088                  
-                         2,622,885           

-                         5,258,343           
33,687                33,687                

2,660,037           2,660,037           

-                         3,705                  
-                         1,800,000           
-                         3,129,588           
-                         272,311              

-                         1,848,188           
(58,190)              5,872,809           

2,635,534           23,502,641         

3,230,839$         35,595,740$       

See Notes to Financial Statements 19
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014

Fund balances of governmental funds 23,502,641$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are 
different because:

    Capital assets net of depreciation have not been included as financial resources
    in governmental fund activity. 41,253,136        

    Long-term debt and compensated absences 
    that have not been included in the governmental fund activity:

Compensated Absences (724,111)            

    Governmental funds report all OPEB contributions as expenditures,
    however in the statement of net position any excesses or deficiencies 
    in contributions in relation to the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) are 
    recorded as a asset or liability. (127,108)            

    Revenues reported as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds and recognized
    in the statement of activities. These are included in the intergovernmental revenues
    in the governmental fund activity. 8,865,331          

    Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
    activities, such as equipment management and self-insurance, to individual funds.
    The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds must be added to the
    statement of net position. 5,240,519          

Net Position of governmental activities 78,010,408$      

See Notes to Financial Statements 21



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS     
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

 Special 
Revenue Fund 

     General    
Revenues:
Taxes 8,940,810$      -$                     -$                     
Assessments -                       -                       -                       
Licenses and permits 578,949           -                       -                       
Intergovernmental 659,169           -                       -                       
Charges for services 7,205,627        -                       150,000           
Use of money and property 408,537           6,074               29,329             
Fines and forfeitures 190,099           -                       -                       
Contributions from Successor Agency -                       75,000             -                       
Miscellaneous 214,994           -                       -                       

               Total Revenues 18,198,185      81,074             179,329           

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government 3,177,886        -                       56,899             
   Public safety 10,616,637      -                       -                       
   Community development -                       613,085           -                       
   Parks and recreation 1,610,610        -                       -                       
   Public works 2,216,667        -                       -                       
Capital outlay 267,563           -                       382,301           

               Total Expenditures 17,889,363      613,085           439,200           

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                 Over (Under) Expenditures 308,822           (532,011)          (259,871)          

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 779,240           223,043           -                       
Transfers out (345,713)          -                       -                       

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses) 433,527           223,043           -                       

Extraordinary gain/(loss) -                       211,803           -                       

               Net Change in Fund Balances 742,349           (97,165)            (259,871)          

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as
 previously reported 14,866,415      8,411,645        4,907,292        

Restatements -                       (7,703,558)       -                       

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated 14,866,415      708,087           4,907,292        

Fund Balances, End of Year 15,608,764$    610,922$         4,647,421$      

 C.I.P. 2010 
Bond 

 Housing 
Authority 

Capital Projects 
Fund

See Notes to Financial Statements 22



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

 
Revenues:
Taxes
Assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions from Successor Agency
Miscellaneous

               Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government
   Public safety
   Community development
   Parks and recreation
   Public works
Capital outlay

               Total Expenditures

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                 Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses)

Extraordinary gain/(loss)

               Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as
 previously reported

Restatements

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated

Fund Balances, End of Year

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

Funds Funds

-$                     8,940,810$      
11,638             11,638             

-                       578,949           
2,259,469        2,918,638        

45,953             7,401,580        
20,074             464,014           

-                       190,099           
-                       75,000             

229                  215,223           

2,337,363        20,795,951      

23,100             3,257,885        
-                       10,616,637      
-                       613,085           

24,817             1,635,427        
20,538             2,237,205        

994,370           1,644,234        

1,062,825        20,004,473      

1,274,538        791,478           

443,584           1,445,867        
(1,100,154)       (1,445,867)       

(656,570)          -                       

-                       211,803           

617,968           1,003,281        

2,017,566        30,202,918      

-                       (7,703,558)       

2,017,566        22,499,360      

2,635,534$      23,502,641$    

See Notes to Financial Statements 23



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 1,003,281$         

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

    Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
    of activities, the costs of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
    as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
    depreciation in the current period.

Capital outlay 1,355,988$       
Depreciation (1,004,659)        351,329              

    Compensated absences expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
    require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as 
    expenditures in governmental funds. 16,772                

    Governmental funds report all contributions in relation to the annual required
    contribution (ARC) for OPEB as expenditures, however in the statement
    of activities only the ARC is an expense. (16,082)               

    Revenues reported as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds and recognized
    in the statement of activities. These are included in the intergovernmental revenues
    in the governmental fund activity. (165,053)             

    Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
    activities, such as equipment management and self-insurance, to individual funds.
    The net revenues (expenses) of the internal service funds is reported with
    governmental activities. 178,419              

Change in net position of governmental activities 1,368,666$         

See Notes to Financial Statements 24



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS   
JUNE 30, 2014

Governmental
Activities-

Internal
 Sewer Service Funds

Assets:
Current:

Cash and investments 3,338,456 $       5,007,224 $       
Receivables:

Accounts 1,062               -                       
Due from other governments 165,298           25,115             

Total Current Assets 3,504,816        5,032,339        

Noncurrent:
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation 6,151,141        1,280,430        

Total Noncurrent Assets 6,151,141        1,280,430        

Total Assets 9,655,957$      6,312,769$      

Liabilities and Net Position:

Liabilities:
Current:

Accounts payable 51,796             29,357             
Accrued liabilities 20,828             34,310             
Due to other governments 187,216           -                       
Accrued compensated absences 16,949             8,323               
Accrued claims and judgments -                       526,174           

Total Current Liabilities 276,789           598,164           

Noncurrent:
Accrued compensated absences 45,218             45,254             
Accrued claims and judgments -                       1,071,000        

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 45,218             1,116,254        

Total Liabilities 322,007           1,714,418        

Net Position:
Investment in capital assets 6,151,141        1,233,236        
Unrestricted 3,182,809        3,365,115        

Total Net Position 9,333,950        4,598,351        

Total Liabilities and Net Position 9,655,957$      6,312,769$      

Reconciliation of Net Position to the Statement of Net Position

Net Position per Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds 9,333,950$      

Prior years' accumulated adjustment to reflect the consolidation of
  internal service funds activities related to the enterprise funds (659,024)

Current years' adjustments to reflect the consolidation of internal 
  service activities related to enterprise funds 16,856 

Net Position per Statement of Net Position 8,691,782$      

Enterprise 
Fund

See Notes to Financial Statements 25



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS   
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Governmental
Activities-

Internal
 Sewer Service Funds

Operating Revenues:
Sales and service charges 4,129,946$      1,440,024$      
Miscellaneous 11,394             228,236           

Total Operating Revenues 4,141,340        1,668,260        

Operating Expenses:
Source of supply 3,605,803        684,703           
Claims expense -                       26,214             
Depreciation expense 164,267           118,425           
Personnel and Administrative 300,750           681,634           

Total Operating Expenses 4,070,820        1,510,976        

Operating Loss 70,520             157,284           

Nonoperating Revenues:
Interest revenue 21,297             37,991             

Total Nonoperating  
   Revenues (Expenses) 21,297             37,991             

Loss Before Transfers 91,817             195,275           

Changes in Net Position 91,817             195,275           

Net Position:
Beginning of Year, as
 previously reported 9,242,133        4,405,615        

Restatements -                       (2,539)              

Beginning of Fiscal Year, as restated 9,242,133        4,403,076        

End of Fiscal Year 9,333,950$      4,598,351$      

Reconciliation of Changes in Net Position to the Statement of Activities:

Changes in Net Position, per the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position - Proprietary Funds 91,817$           

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of current fiscal year
internal service funds activities related to enterprise funds 16,856             

Changes in Net Position of Business-Type Activities per Statement of Activities 108,673$         

Enterprise 
Fund

See Notes to Financial Statements 26



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS   
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Governmental
Activities-

Internal
 Sewer Service Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers and users 4,186,807$      -$                     
Cash received from/(paid to) interfund service provided -                       1,669,748        
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (3,620,864)       (827,135)          
Cash paid to employees for services (303,706)          (588,092)          

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 262,237           254,521           

Cash Flows from Non-Capital
Financing Activities:

Advance from other funds 187,216           -                       

Net Cash Provided by
    Non-Capital Financing Activities 187,216           -                       

Cash Flows from Capital 
and Related Financing Activities:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (237,250)          (847,331)          

Net Cash Used in
   Capital and Related Financing Activities (237,250)          (847,331)          

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received 21,297             37,991             

Net Cash Provided by
Investing Activities 21,297             37,991             

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents 233,500           (554,819)          

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 3,104,956        5,562,043        

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 3,338,456$      5,007,224$      

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating loss 70,520$           157,284$         
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
  net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 164,267           118,425           
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (258)                 -                       
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments 45,725             1,488               
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (15,061)            (4,665)              
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (2,191)              -                       
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable -                       6,311               
Increase (decrease) in claims and judgments -                       (23,848)            
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (765)                 (474)                 

Total Adjustments 191,717           97,237             
Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
   Operating Activities 262,237$         254,521$         

 Enterprise 
Fund 

See Notes to Financial Statements 27



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014

Agency
Funds

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments 387,593$         2,455,150$      
Land held for resale -                       17,048,281      
Restricted assets:

Cash and investments with fiscal agents -                       2,811,290        

Total Assets 387,593$         22,314,721      

Liabilities:
Accounts payable -$                     35,739             
Accrued liabilities -                       2,648               
Accrued interest -                       152,631           
Due to bondholders 387,593           -                       
Due to City -                       2,622,885        
Long-term liabilities:

Due in one year -                       235,000           
Due in more than one year -                       38,112,735      

Total Liabilities 387,593$         41,161,638      

Net Position:
Held in trust for other purposes (18,846,917)     

Total Net Position (18,846,917)$   

 Private-
Purpose Trust 

Fund 
 Successor 

Agency of the 
Former RDA 

See Notes to Financial Statements 28



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Additions:
Taxes 1,862,118$        
Interest and change in fair value of investments 20,020               
Miscellaneous 63,357               

Total Additions 1,945,495          

Deductions:
Project Costs 117,568             
Administrative expenses 315,703             
Contractual services 575,235             
Interest expense 2,287,681          

Total Deductions 3,296,187          

Changes in Net Position (1,350,692)        

Net Position - Beginning of the Year (17,406,526)      

Restatements (89,699)             

Net Position - Beginning of Year, as Restated (17,496,225)      

Net Position - End of the Year (18,846,917)$    

 Private-
Purpose Trust 

Fund 
 Successor 

Agency of the 
Former RDA 

See Notes to Financial Statements 29
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
JUNE 30, 2014 
 

 

 
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

a. Description of the Reporting Entity 
 

The City of Imperial Beach, California (the City), was incorporated July 18, 1956, and 
operates as a General Law City. The City operates under a Council/Manager form of 
government and provides the following services: general government, fire, highways and 
streets, planning and zoning, and public improvements. Police services are contracted 
through the County of San Diego Sheriff’s Department. The City is not subject to federal 
or state income taxes. 

 
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements 
present the City (the primary government) and its component units. The component units 
discussed below are included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of 
their operational or financial relationship with the City. These entities are legally separate 
from each other. However, the City’s elected officials have a continuing full or partial 
accountability for fiscal matters of the other entities. The financial reporting entity consists 
of: 1) the City, 2) organizations for which the City is financially accountable, and  
3) organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City 
are such that exclusions would cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete. 

 
An organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government if it is unable to adopt its 
budget, levy taxes or set rates or charges, or issue bonded debt without approval by the 
primary government. In a blended presentation, component units’ balances and 
transactions are reported in a manner similar to the balances and transactions of the City. 
Component units are presented on a blended basis when the component unit's governing 
body is substantially the same as the City's or the component unit provides services 
almost entirely to the City. A description of these component units and the method of 
incorporating their financial information in the accompanying financial statements are 
summarized as follows: 

 
Blended Component Units 

 
Imperial Beach Public Financing Authority 
 
The Imperial Beach Public Financing Authority was established on  
November 20, 2003, by a joint exercise of powers agreement between the City of 
Imperial Beach and the former Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency pursuant to 
the Community Redevelopment Law (commencing with Section 33000) of the Health 
and Safety Code of the State of California.  Separate financial statements are not 
prepared for the Authority. 
 
Imperial Beach Housing Authority 
 
The Imperial Beach Housing Authority was established on January 14, 2011, by 
Council resolution to transact business and exercise powers in the City of Imperial 
Beach and to accept any appropriate funds from the former Imperial Beach 
Redevelopment Agency. The Authority also acts as the Housing Successor Agency. 
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2014 
 

 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

b. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the 
primary government and its blended component units. All fiduciary activities are reported 
only in the fund financial statements. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has 
been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for 
support. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment, are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues 
include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from 
goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, 
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide 
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise 
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The fund 
financial statements provide information about the government’s funds, including its 
fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund 
category – governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary – are presented. 
 

c. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 
 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and 
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants 
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the 
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within one year of 
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded 
only when payment is due. Agency funds are purely custodial (assets equal liabilities) 
and thus do not involve measurement of results of operations. The private-purpose trust 
funds are reported using the economic resources management focus and the full accrual 
basis of accounting. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal 
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as 
revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable 
due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue 
of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the government. 
 
All proprietary funds are accounted for using the flow of economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized 
when they are earned and become measurable; expenses are recognized when they are 
incurred. Unbilled service receivables are recorded as accounts receivable and as 
revenue when earned. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
 The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 

resources of the general government except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

 
 The Housing Authority Fund accounts for the transactions of the City’s Housing 

Authority which was established to for the development of low and moderate income 
housing within the City. 
 

 The C.I.P. 2010 Bond Capital Projects Fund accounts for projects funded with the 
proceeds of the 2010 Tax Allocation Bonds. 

 
The City reports the following major proprietary fund:  

 
 The Sewer Fund is an Enterprise Fund that accounts for the revenues and expenses 

associated with providing wastewater treatment services to residents of the City. 
 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 
 

 Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that 
are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. 
 

 Capital Projects Funds account for the financial resources to be used for the capital 
improvement projects of the City. 

 
 Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services related to 

repair, replacement and maintenance of City-owned equipment, the City's  
self-insurance programs, the City's general information systems and 
telecommunications hardware, software and the repair, replacement and 
maintenance of City-owned facilities. These services are provided to other 
departments or agencies of the City on a cost reimbursement basis. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

 The Private Purpose Trust Fund accounts for the assets and liabilities of the former 
redevelopment agency and is allocated revenue to pay estimated installment 
payments of enforceable obligations until obligations of the former redevelopment 
agency are paid in full and assets have been liquidated. 

 
 Agency Funds are used to report resources held by the City in a purely custodial 

capacity, which involves only the receipt, temporary investment and remittance of 
fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations or other governments. They 
do not involve measurement of results of operations.  The City’s agency funds 
account for its special assessment districts. 

 
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the 
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges 
between the government's proprietary funds function and various other functions of the 
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program 
revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. 
The principal operating revenues of the Enterprise Funds and of the Internal Service 
Funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for 
Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

 
d. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity 

 
Cash and Investments 

 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers cash and cash 
equivalents to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with 
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. For cash flow 
purposes, cash and cash equivalents are shown as both restricted and unrestricted 
cash and investments in the Proprietary Funds. 

 
Investments for the City, as well as for its blended component units, are reported at 
fair value. The City's policy is generally to hold investments until maturity or until 
market values equal or exceed cost. The State Treasurer's Investment Pool operates 
in accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations. The reported value of the 
pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares. 

 
Receivables and Payables 

 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/due from 
other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other 
funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances 
between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds."  Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are 
reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for 
uncollectibles. 

 
Functional Classifications 

 
Expenditures of the Governmental Funds are classified by function. Functional 
classifications are defined as follows: 

 
 General Government includes legislative activities that have a primary objective 

of providing legal and policy guidelines for the City. Also included in this 
classification are those activities that provide management or support services 
across more than one functional area. 

 
 Public Safety includes those activities that involve the protection of people and 

property. 
 
 Parks, Recreation and Senior Center include those activities that involve 

community park maintenance and recreational activities within the community. 
 
 Public Works includes those activities that involve the maintenance and 

improvement of City streets, roads and park department development and 
maintenance. 

 
 Capital outlay includes those activities that account for the purchase of fixed and 

capital assets.  
 
Inventories and Prepaid Items  

 
All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The 
General Fund inventory is accounted for on the consumption method. Certain 
payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.  

 
Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets 
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual 
cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded). Such assets are recorded at 
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 
 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City has reported general 
infrastructure assets acquired in prior and current years. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of 
business-type activities are included as part of the capitalized value of the assets 
constructed. 

 
Property, plant and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component 
units, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated 
useful lives: 

 
Assets   Years 
   
Buildings & Improvements  25 - 50 
Improvements Other than Buildings  10 - 50 
Sewer lines and Pump Stations  35 - 50 
Equipment  3 - 20 
Vehicles  5 - 10 
   
Infrastructure  Years 
   
Pavement  33 
Curb and Gutter  50 
Sidewalk  50 

 
Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and governmental fund balance 
sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. 
This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents 
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then.  
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and governmental fund balance 
sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This 
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has 
only one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting 
that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, 
is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds 
report unavailable revenues from the following sources: property taxes, revenues from 
housing loans, and special assessments. These amounts are deferred and 
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. 

 
Compensated Absences 

 
All permanent employees of the City are permitted to accumulate a maximum of  
two times their annual accrual rate (annual leave). Maximum sick leave accrual for 
miscellaneous employees is 1,000 hours and for safety employees is 1,400 hours. 
Upon termination of employment, an employee is paid for accumulated annual leave 
but forfeits accumulated sick leave unless the employee has over five years of 
service. After five years of service, upon termination, the employee is paid for half the 
accumulated sick leave.  Compensated absences are paid out of the General Fund 
and are reported there as a liability when they have matured. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Accumulated vested sick pay and vacation pay for employees of the Proprietary 
Funds have been accrued. All accumulated compensated absences are accrued 
when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial 
statements. 

 
Long-Term Obligations 

 
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities 
in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund 
type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and 
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds 
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.  

 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums 
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face 
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on 
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 

 
Fund Equity 

 
In the fund financial statements, government funds report the following fund balance 
classification: 

 
Nonspendable includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either 
(a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. 

 
Restricted includes amounts that are constrained on the use of resources by 
either (a) external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws of regulations of other 
governments or (b) by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation.  

 
Committed includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council.  The formal 
action that is required to be taken to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance 
commitment is a City Council resolution. 
 
Assigned includes amounts that are constrained by the government’s intent to be 
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Resolution 
No. 2011-7039 authorizes the City Manager to assign amounts to a specific 
purpose.  
 
Unassigned includes the residual amounts that have not been restricted, 
committed, or assigned to specific purposes. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

An individual governmental fund could include nonspendable resources and amounts 
that are restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned, or unassigned) or any 
combination of those classifications. Restricted amounts are to be considered spent 
when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted fund balance is available and committed, assigned, and then unassigned 
amounts are considered to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for 
purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications 
can be used. 

 
Net position flow assumption 

 
Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted 
(e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to 
calculate the amounts to report as restricted – net position and unrestricted – net 
position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow 
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to 
be applied. It is the City’s policy to consider restricted – net position to have been 
depleted before unrestricted – net position is applied. 
 

Fund balance flow assumptions 
 

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and 
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund 
balance). In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, 
assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial 
statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources 
are considered to be applied. It is the City’s policy to consider restricted fund balance 
to have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund 
balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for 
the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned 
fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last. 

 
Adopted Accounting Pronouncement 
 

The City implemented GASB Statement 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets 
and Liabilities. GASB 65, among other things, amends prior guidance with respect to 
the treatment of debt issuance costs.  Debt issuance costs should be recognized in 
the period incurred rather than reported on the statement of net position as deferred 
charges and recognized systematically over the life of the debt.   

 
Encumbrances  

 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other 
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that 
portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal 
budgetary integration. The City uses a modified encumbrance system in which only 
significant, select encumbrances are carried over at year-end. All other 
encumbrances lapse at year-end and are re-encumbered in the following fiscal year. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Property Tax Revenue 
 

Property tax revenue is recognized on the basis of NCGA Interpretation No. 3; 
(adopted by GASB) that is, in the fiscal year for which the taxes have been levied 
providing they become available.  Available means then due, or past due and 
receivable within the current period and collected within the current period or 
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter (not to exceed 60 days) to be used 
to pay liabilities of the current period.  The County of San Diego collects property 
taxes for the City.  Tax liens attach annually as of 12:01 A.M. on the first day in 
January preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.  The tax levy covers 
the fiscal period July 1 to June 30.  All secured personal property taxes and one-half 
of the taxes on real property are due November 1; the second installment is due 
February 1. All taxes are delinquent, if unpaid, on December 10 and April 10, 
respectively. Unsecured personal property taxes become due on the first of March 
each year and are delinquent, if unpaid, on August 31. 

 
II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

 
Note 2: Cash and Investments 
 

As of June 30, 2014, cash and investments were reported in the accompanying financial 
statements as follows: 
 

Governmental activities 25,920,639$    
Business-Type activities 3,338,456       
Fiduciary funds 5,654,033       

Total Cash and Investments 34,913,128$     
 

 
The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds except for funds 
required to be held by fiscal agents under provisions of bond indentures.  Interest income 
earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated monthly to the various funds based on 
monthly cash and investment balances.  Interest Income from cash and investments with 
fiscal agents is credited directly to the related fund. 
 
Deposits 

 
At June 30, 2014, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $6,573,689 and the 
bank balance was $6,684,593. The $110,904 difference represents outstanding checks 
and other reconciling items. 
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Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan 
associations to secure a city’s deposits by pledging government securities with a value of 
110% of a city’s deposits.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure city 
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of a city’s 
total deposits.  The City Treasurer may waive the collateral requirement for deposits that  
are fully insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC.  The collateral for deposits in federal and 
state chartered banks is held in safekeeping by an authorized Agent of Depository 
recognized by the State of California Department of Banking.  The collateral for deposits 
with savings and loan associations is generally held in safekeeping by the Federal Home 
Loan Bank in San Francisco, California as an Agent of Depository. These securities are 
physically held in an undivided pool for all California public agency depositors.  Under 
Government Code Section 53655, the placement of securities by a bank or savings and 
loan association with an “Agent of Depository” has the effect of perfecting the security 
interest in the name of the local government agency.  Accordingly, all collateral held by 
California Agents of Depository are considered to be held for, and in the name of, the 
local governmental agency. 

 
Investments 

 
Under provisions of the City’s investment policy, and in accordance with the California 
Government Code, the following investments are authorized: 

 
 U.S. Treasury Obligations (bills, notes and bonds) 

 
 Bonds, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by agency of 

the United States government 
 

 Certificates of Deposit or Time Deposits placed with commercial banks and savings 
and loans 

 
 Medium-term Corporate Notes with an “A” or comparable ratings 

 
 Instruments of other California Government Entities with an “A” or comparable 

rating 
 

 Banker’s Acceptances 
 

 Repurchase Agreements 
 

 Local Agency Investment Fund Demand Deposits (State Pool) 
 

 County of San Diego Treasury (County Pool) 
 

 California Arbitrage Management Program (Bond Pool) 
 

 Passbook Savings Account Demand Deposits 
 

 Money Market funds, which invest solely in securities issued by the U.S. Treasury 
and agencies of the Federal government, and repurchase agreements 
collateralized with U.S. Treasury and Federal agency obligations 
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 Overnight Sweep accounts as managed by the depository bank as part of the 
checking account packaged contracted by the City, provided the sweep account is 
collateralized in accordance with state law 

 
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 

 
The above investments do not address investment of debt proceeds held by a bond 
trustee.  Investments of debt proceeds held by a bond trustee are governed by provisions 
of the debt agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government 
Code or the City’s investment policy. 

 
Investments in State Investment Pool 

 
The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is 
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the 
Treasurer of the State of California.  LAIF is overseen by the Local Agency Investment 
Advisory Board, which consists of five members, in accordance with State statute.   The 
State Treasurer’s Office audits the fund annually.  The fair value of the position in the 
investment pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. 

 
GASB Statement No. 31 

 
The City adopted GASB Statement of No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, as of July 1, 1997.  GASB 
Statement No. 31 establishes fair value standards for investments in participating interest 
earning investment contracts, external investment pools, equity securities, option 
contracts, stock warrants and stock rights that have readily determinable fair values. 
Accordingly, the City reports its investments at fair value in the balance sheet. All 
investment income, including changes in the fair value of investments, is recognized as 
revenue in the operating statement. 

 
Credit Risk 

 
The City's investment policy limits investments in medium-term notes (MTN’s) to those 
rated “AA” or higher by Standard and Poor’s (S&P) or by Moody's. As of June 30, 2014, 
the City had no investments in medium-term notes.  In addition, the City’s investments in 
Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank and Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation were rated “AAA” by Moody’s and by S&P. All securities were investment 
trade and were legal under State law. Investments in U.S. Treasuries are not considered 
to have credit risk; therefore, their credit quality is not disclosed.  
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The City also invests in LAIF which invests in various underlying securities, including 
the federal agency securities.  While LAIF is not rated, the federal agency securities 
are, and these have been affected by this rating change as well. 
 
As of June 30, 2014, the City's investments in external investment pools, money market 
mutual funds and investment agreements are unrated. 
 

Custodial Credit Risk 
 

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a 
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will 
not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of 
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The City 
does not have a specific policy addressing custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2014, 
none of the City’s deposits or investments was exposed to custodial credit risk. 
 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
 

The City’s investment policy imposes restrictions for certain types of investments with any 
one issuer to 25% of the total investment pool.  With respect to concentration risk, as of 
June 30, 2014, the City has not invested more than 25% of its total investments in any 
one issuer. In addition, GASB 40 requires a separate disclosure if any single issuer 
comprises more than 5% of the total investment value.  As of June 30, 2014, the City has 
investments with the following issuers, which exceed 5% of the total investment value: 

 
Federal Farm Credit Bank 2,667,416$    9%
Federal Home Loan Bank 2,455,677     9%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 2,510,697     9%
Federal National Mortgage Assoc. 3,319,169     12%
US Treasury Notes 5,443,358     19%
JP Morgan Chase 2,046,920     7%

 
 
Investments guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in mutual funds and 
external investment pools are excluded from this requirement. 

 
Interest Rate Risk 

 
The City's investment policy limits investment maturities as a means of managing its 
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The City's investment 
policy states that the City's investment portfolio will not directly invest in securities 
maturing in more than five years. The City has elected to use the segmented time 
distribution method of disclosure for its interest rate risk. 

 

42



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2014 
 

 

Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

As of June 30, 2014, the City had the following investments and original maturities: 
 

1 year 1 to 3 5 and more Fair
or less years years Value

California Local Agency 
   Investment Fund 1,071,945$    -$                   -$                   1,071,945$    
Federal Farm Credit Bank 501,255         2,166,161      -                     2,667,416      
Federal Home Loan Bank -                     2,455,677      -                     2,455,677      
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. -                     2,007,980      502,717         2,510,697      
Federal National Mortgage Assoc. 325,897         2,496,047      497,225         3,319,169      
US Treasury Notes 500,625         4,942,733      -                     5,443,358      
Medium Term Notes -                     2,661,359      -                     2,661,359      
Corporate Bonds 1,357,593      3,100,300      940,994         5,398,887      
Money Market Mutual Funds - 

held by fiscal agent 2,810,931      -                     -                     2,810,931      
6,568,246$    19,830,257$  1,940,936$    28,339,439$  

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investments

 
 
Note 3: Capital Assets 

 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014, was as follows: 

 
Beginning Ending
Balance Transfers Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 1,638,532$    -$                 -$                 -$                 1,638,532$    
Infrastructure right-of-way 12,406,327    -                   -                   -                   12,406,327    
Construction-in-progress 9,487,275      (6,460,928)   1,187,590    -                   4,213,937      

Total Capital Assets,
  Not Being Depreciated 23,532,134    (6,460,928)   1,187,590    -                   18,258,796    

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Structures and improvements 7,710,709      650,952       -                   -                   8,361,661      
Equipment and vehicles 4,105,463      -                   1,015,729    -                   5,121,192      
Infrastructure 18,453,395    5,809,976    -                   -                   24,263,371    

Total Capital Assets,
  Being Depreciated 30,269,567    6,460,928    1,015,729    -                   37,746,224    

Less accumulated depreciation:
Structures and improvements 3,725,313      -                   279,560       -                   4,004,873      
Equipment and vehicles 3,410,804      -                   202,042       -                   3,612,846      
Infrastructure 5,212,253      -                   641,482       -                   5,853,735                                              
Total Accumulated Depreciation 12,348,370    -                   1,123,084    -                   13,471,454    

Total Capital Assets,
  Being Depreciated, Net 17,921,197    6,460,928    (107,355)      -                   24,274,770    

Governmental Activities
  Capital Assets, Net 41,453,331$  -$                1,080,235$ -$                 42,533,566$  
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       Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as 
       follows: 

 
Governmental Activities:

General Government 141,217$         
Public Safety 27,530             
Public Works 649,167           
Parks, Recreation and Senior Center 186,745           
Internal Service Funds 118,425           

Total Governmental Activities 1,123,084$      
 

 
Beginning Ending
Balance Transfers Increases Decreases Balance

Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction-in-progress 589,341$       -$                  237,250$      -$                  826,591$      

Total Capital Assets,
  Not Being Depreciated 589,341         -                    237,250        -                    826,591        

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Sewer Lines and Pump Stations 9,192,865      -                    -                    39,200          9,153,665     

Total Capital Assets,
  Being Depreciated 9,192,865      -                    -                    39,200          9,153,665     

Less accumulated depreciation:
Sewer Lines and Pump Stations 3,704,048      -                    164,267        39,200          3,829,115     

Total Accumulated Depreciation 3,704,048      -                    164,267        39,200          3,829,115     

Total Capital Assets,
  Being Depreciated, Net 5,488,817      -                    (164,267)       -                    5,324,550     

Business-Type Activities
  Capital Assets, Net 6,078,158$   -$                 72,983$       -$                  6,151,141$  

 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

 
Business-Type Activities:

Sewer 164,267$         
 

 
Note 4: Loans Receivable  

 
Loans receivable consist of the following: 

 
 South Bay Community Services Loan – Hemlock Ave. 
 

In April 2006, the Agency entered into a loan agreement for an amount not-to-exceed 
$540,425 with South Bay Community Services (SBCS) to loan low and moderate income 
housing set-aside funds to rehabilitate a seven-unit apartment complex located at  
1360 Hemlock Avenue.  This loan agreement was amended in October 2007, and 
increased the loan agreement by $89,183, creating a total not-to-exceed amount of 
$629,608.  SBCC intends to rent all seven units to families earning 50% or below of the 
area median income, for a term of fifty-five years. 
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Note 4: Loans Receivable (Continued) 
 

Beginning May 31, 2006, and continuing through 2061, simple interest accrues at 3% per 
annum on the principal balance.  Monthly principal and interest payments are not 
required to be paid if the rental and occupancy conditions are met for the property.  All 
principal and accrued interest on the Loan shall be due in full on (i) the date of any 
transfer not authorized by the Agency; (ii) the date of any Default; or (iii) the expiration of 
the Loan Term, whichever occurs first.  However, upon expiration of the Loan Term, the 
Loan amount pursuant to the Note and accrued interest shall be forgiven provided all 
covenants and conditions were met over the Loan Term.  Accrued interest at  
June 30, 2014, amounts to $140,247 and is offset by unavailable revenue.  The loan has 
not been fully disbursed at June 30, 2014.  The outstanding balance at June 30, 2014, is 
$769,855, including accrued interest. 
 

 South Bay Community Services Loan – Calla Ave. 
 
In April 2006, the Agency entered into a loan agreement for an amount not-to-exceed 
$491,271 with South Bay Community Services (SBCS) to loan low and moderate income 
housing set-aside funds to rehabilitate an eight-unit apartment complex located at  
1260 Calla Avenue.  SBCC intends to rent all seven units to families earning 50% or 
below of the area median income, for a term of fifty-five years.  Beginning May 31, 2006, 
and continuing through 2061, simple interest accrues at 3% per annum on the principal 
balance.  Monthly principal and interest payments are not required to be paid if the rental 
and occupancy conditions are met for the property.  All principal and accrued interest on 
the Loan shall be due in full on (i) the date of any transfer not authorized by the Agency; 
(ii) the date of any Default; or (iii) the expiration of the Loan Term, whichever occurs first.  
However, upon expiration of the Loan Term, the Loan amount pursuant to the Note and 
accrued interest shall be forgiven provided all covenants and conditions were met over 
the Loan Term.  Accrued interest at June 30, 2014, amounts to $115,276 and is offset by 
deferred revenue.  The loan has not been fully disbursed at June 30, 2014.  The 
outstanding balance at June 30, 2014, is $601,731, including accrued interest. 

 
 Tax Increment Loan - 12th Street 
 

In August 2008, the Agency entered into a loan agreement for an amount not-to-exceed 
$1,945,000 with Beachwind Court, LP to loan low and moderate income housing  
set-aside funds to rehabilitate a fifteen-unit apartment complex located at  
624 12th Street.  Beachwind Court, LP intends to rent seven units to families earning 
50% or below of the area median income and to rent all seven units to families earning 
60% or below of the area median income, for a term of fifty-five years.  Beginning on the 
date of disbursement, simple interest accrues at 3% per annum on the principal balance.  
Monthly principal and interest payments are required to be paid within 30 days of 
completion of the annual audit equivalent to 50% of the residual receipts generated by 
the projects audited records. Accrued interest at June 30, 2014, amounts to $325,971 
and is offset by deferred revenue.  The outstanding balance at June 30, 2014, is 
$2,270,971, including accrued interest. 
 

45



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2014 
 

 

Note 4: Loans Receivable (Continued) 
 
 American Legion Loan 
 

The Imperial Beach Housing Authority and Hitzke Development Corporation entered into 
an Affordable Housing Agreement for the development of a mixed-use affordable housing 
development project and new American Legion Post.  The Authority authorized financing 
for the Project for an amount not to exceed $4,100,000 to construct thirty (30) units of 
affordable housing consisting of twenty-nine (29) affordable residential rental units and 
one manager’s unit. Monthly principal and interest payments are required to be paid 
within 30 days of completion of the annual audit equivalent to 50% of the residual 
receipts generated by the projects audited records. Accrued interest at June 30, 2014, 
amounts to $266,500 and is offset by deferred revenue.  The outstanding balance at  
June 30, 2014, is $4,366,500, including accrued interest. 
 

 Habitat for Humanity, 10th and Donax 
 

The Imperial Beach Housing Authority and the San Diego Habitat for Humanity entered 
into a note secured by deed of trust agreement, whereas the Housing Authority sold to 
Habitat for Humanity in exchange for a loan receivable and cash in the amount of 
$211,495. The Loan bears 0% and is forgivable upon Habitat’s for Humanities timely 
completion of Affordable Units. As of June 30, 2014, the loan amount outstanding was 
$542,495.  
 
Total loans receivable at June 30, 2014, amounts to $8,551,552. 

 
Note 5: Interfund Receivable, Payable and Transfers 
 

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2014, is as follows: 
 

Due To/Due From Other Funds 

Non-major
Governmental 

Funds Funds Total
Due From Other Funds:

General Fund 418,725$      418,725$      

      Total 418,725$      418,725$      

Due to Other Funds

 
Due from Successor Agency 

 
In previous fiscal years, the City made loans to the former redevelopment agency; now 
assumed by the Successor Agency (See Note 12 for further discussion). These loans bear 
interest at rates up to 12% per annum depending upon when the loan was initiated. The 
City may demand payment of all or a portion of the principal balance at any time as funds 
become available; however, such demands are not anticipated with the next fiscal year. As 
of June 30, 2014, loans made from the General Fund to the former Redevelopment Agency 
Capital Projects Fund, including accrued unpaid interest owed on those loans, were 
$2,622,885. 

 

46



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2014 
 

 

Note 5: Interfund Receivable, Payable and Transfers (Continued) 
 

Interfund Transfers 

Non-Major
 General  Housing Governmental

 Fund  Authority Fund  Total 

Transfers Out:
  General Fund -$                 223,043$          122,670$            345,713$      
  Nonmajor Govt Funds 779,240       -                        320,914              1,100,154     

 Total 779,240$     223,043$          443,584$            1,445,867$   

 Transfers In 

 

 
The City received $1,115,215 as payment of the City Loan to the Successor Agency as 
per the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 13-14B. As per California Department 
of Finance regulations, the General Fund transferred 20% of that amount, or $223,043, to 
the Housing Successor.  Transfers into the General Fund were made from the Gas Tax 
Fund and Prop A Tax Fund to support street maintenance and transportation costs.  
Transfers were made from the Gas Tax Fund to the C.I.P. 2010 Bond Fund for street 
projects.  Transfers between the Transnet Prop A Fund and the CIP ECO Bikeway Fund 
to meet TDA Grant match requirements. 

 
Note 6: Unavailable Revenue and Unearned Revenue 
 

The General Fund recorded unavailable revenue of $138,227 and $10,176 related to sales 
tax and DUI revenue.  Additionally, the General Fund recorded unavailable revenue of 
$165,376 related to parking ticket revenue. The total, $313,779, represent revenue that has 
been accrued but not yet received within the recognition periods.   
 
General Fund unearned revenue consists of $520,000 relating to a lease with the Unified Port 
District of San Diego and $27,623 of other miscellaneous grant revenues received but not 
earned.  The City entered into an agreement with the Port District in 1993 whereby the Port 
District leases the Pier Plaza and a parking lot from the city.  The District paid the City 
$1,800,000 at the beginning of the lease.   Each year of the 30-year contract, the City 
recognizes $60,000 of income and reduces the unearned revenue.  As of June 30, 2014, 
$520,000 remains of this unearned lease revenue. 
 

Note 7: Long-Term Debt 
 
 a. Long-Term Debt – Governmental Activities 
 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt of the City for the year ended 
June 30, 2014: 

 

Balance 
6/30/2013 Additions Deletions

Balance 
6/30/2014

Due Within 
One Year

Other Post-Employment 
   Benefits Obligation 111,026$       31,414$         15,332$         127,108$       -$                
Compensated Absences 797,473         517,639         537,424         777,688         206,450      
Claims & Judgments 1,618,483      183,571         204,880         1,597,174      526,174      

2,526,982$    732,624$      757,636$      2,501,970$   732,624$    
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Note 7: Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 

Other Post-Employment Benefits Obligation 
 

 The City’s policies relating to other post-employment benefits are described in  
Note 9 of the Notes to Financial Statements.  

 
Compensated Absences 

 
 The City’s policies relating to compensated absences are described in Note 1 of the 

Notes to Financial Statements. 
 
Claims and Judgments 

 
 The City’s liability regarding self-insurance is described in Note 10 of the Notes to 

Financial Statements. The liability will be paid in future years from the Self Insurance 
Fund. 

 
b. Long-Term Debt – Business-Type Activities 

 
The following is a summary of changes in Proprietary Fund long-term debt for the year 
ended June 30, 2014: 

 
Balance Balance Due Within 

July 1, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 One Year
Enterprise Fund:
  Compensated absences 62,932$      20,998$ 21,763$ 62,167$          16,949$    

 

 
c. Special Assessment Bonds 

 
The City has four assessment districts that issued bonds from 1981 through 2004 that 
are outstanding with no City obligation. The bonds were issued to finance alley paving 
within the City. The bonds are secured by the unpaid assessments levied against the 
private property within the assessment districts. The bonds are not general obligations of 
the City, and neither the faith and credit, nor the taxing power of the City, is pledged to 
the payment of the bonds.  
 
The liability of property owners for unpaid principal assessments at June 30, 2014, was 
$94,000. This bond liability has not been recorded in the accompanying financial 
statements in compliance with GASB Statement No. 6. 

 
d. Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds 

 
On March 21, 2005, the City of Imperial Beach Assessment District No. 71 issued 
$70,000 in limited obligation improvement bonds with interest rates varying from 5.00% to 
5.50% pursuant to the provisions of the Improvement Bond Act of 1915.  The bonds were 
issued to finance certain public improvements to benefit property within the City’s 
Assessment District No. 71. The issues described above are not reflected in the liabilities 
on the statement of net position because they are special obligations payable solely from 
and secured by specific revenue sources described in the resolutions and official 
statement of the issues.  Neither faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City, the 
Redevelopment Agency, the State of California or any political subdivision thereof is 
pledged for the payment of these bonds. 
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III. OTHER INFORMATION 

 
Note 8: City Employees Retirement Plan 
 
  Plan Description 
 

The City of Imperial Beach contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement 
System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. 
CalPERS provide retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, 
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS act as a common 
investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of 
California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute 
and city ordinance. Copies of CalPERS' annual financial report may be obtained from 
their executive office: 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814. 

 
  Funding Policy 
 

 Participants are required to contribute 8% (9% for safety employees) of their annual 
covered salary. The City makes the contributions required of City employees on their 
behalf and for their account. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially 
determined rate; the current rate is 15.685% for miscellaneous employees, 26.149% for 
fire employees and 20.742% for ocean lifeguards, of annual covered payroll. The 
contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be 
amended by CalPERS. 

 
 Required Contribution 
 

For 2014, the City's required contribution of $872,248 for CalPERS was equal to the 
City's actuarial required contributions.  The required contribution was determined as part 
of the June 30, 2011, actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial costs 
method.  The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.50% investment rate of return (net of 
administrative expenses), (b) projected salary increases range from 3.30% to 14.20% 
depending on age, service, and type of employment, and (c) 3.25% per year cost-of-living 
adjustments. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 2.75%. The actuarial 
value of CalPERS assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of 
short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a three year period. CalPERS 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (or surplus) is being amortized as a level percentage 
of projected payrolls on a closed basis over 19, 18 and 16 years. 

 

Actual &
Required Percentage 

Contribution Contributed

6/30/2012 497,428$         100%
6/30/2013 557,282           100%
6/30/2014 570,439           100%

6/30/2012 267,811$         100%
6/30/2013 286,670           100%
6/30/2014 301,809           100%

Miscellaneous Members

Safety Members

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Fiscal Year 
Ending
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Note 8: City Employees Retirement Plan (Continued) 
 

For fiscal year 2013-2014, the City participated in risk pooling.  Risk pooling consists of 
combining assets and liabilities across employers to produce large groups where the 
impact of a catastrophic demographic event is shared among all employers of the same 
risk pool.  Participation in risk pools is mandatory for all rate plans with less than  
100 active members.  Mandated participation in risk pools was initially based on the 
active membership of each rate plan as of June 30, 2003.  The implementation of risk 
pools was done in a way that minimizes the impact on employer contribution rates.  The 
first year in risk pools, the employer contribution rates are almost identical to what the 
rates would have been outside pools.  Future rates will be based on the experience of 
each pool. Pooling will reduce the volatility of future employer rates.  Mandated 
participation will occur on an annual basis.  If on any valuation date, starting with the 
June 30, 2003, valuation, a rate plan has less than 100 active members, it will be 
mandated in one of the risk pools effective on that valuation date. 
 

Note 9: Other Post-Employment Benefits 
 
Plan Description 
 

The City provides other post-employment benefits (OPEB) through a single-employer 
defined benefit healthcare plan by contributing up to a maximum of $75.75 per month for 
of all premiums charged under the health benefit plan for all eligible employees and 
qualified family members.  These benefits are provided per contract between the City and 
the employee associations.  A separate financial report is not available for the plan. 

 
Funding Policy 
 

The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be 
amended by the City, City Council, and/or employee associations.  Currently, 
contributions are not required from plan members.  A contribution of $15,332 was made 
during the 2013-2014 fiscal year and was not included in the October 1, 2012, actuarial 
study.  The purpose of the contribution was to pay current year premiums for retirees. 

 
As a result, the City calculated and recorded a Net OPEB Liability, representing the 
difference between the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) and actual contributions, as 
presented below: 
 

Annual required contribution (ARC) 34,496$          
Interest on net OPEB obligation 2,076              
Adjustments to ARC (5,158)             
Annual OPEB cost 31,414            
Contributions made 15,332            
(Decrease) increase in Net OPEB obligation 16,082            
Net OPEB obligation (asset)  - beginning of year 111,026          

Net OPEB obligation (asset) - end of year 127,108$        
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Note 9: Other Post-Employment Benefits (Continued) 
 

The City contributed 48.81% or $15,332 of the Annual OPEB Cost of $31,414; an amount 
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45.  
The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to 
cover the annual normal cost and the amortization of unfunded actuarial liabilities (or 
funding excess) over a thirty year period. 

 
The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the 
plan and the net OPEB obligation for 2013-2014, and the two preceding years were as 
follows: 
 

Actual Percentage
Fiscal Annual Contribution of Annual Net OPEB
Year OPEB (Net of OPEB Cost Obligation
End Cost Adjustments) Contributed (Asset)

6/30/2012 32,781$     8,089$         24.68% 89,058$     
6/30/2013 32,000       10,032         31.35% 111,026     
6/30/2014 31,414       15,332         48.81% 127,108      

 
Funded Status and Funding Progress 
 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the 
future.  Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the 
healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and 
the annual required contributions of the City are subject to continual revision as actual 
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the 
future. 

 
The schedule of funding progress below presents multiyear trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to 
the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.  Only one year is presented as this is the first 
year of the plan. 
 

Unfunded UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Percent of
Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Covered

Date Assets (a) Liability (b) Liability (b-a) Ratio Payroll Payroll
9/1/2009 -$                238,144$  238,144$    0.0% 4,454,378$   5.35%

10/1/2012 116,507      357,437    240,930      32.6% 4,664,039     5.17%

 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan 
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of 
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of 
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.  The actuarial 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the 
effects of short-term volatility in the actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of 
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
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Note 9: Other Post-Employment Benefits (Continued) 
 

In the October 1, 2012, actuarial valuation, the level percentage of payroll actuarial cost 
method was used.  The actuarial assumptions include a 5% investment rate of return, 
which is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment return on plan assets and 
on the employer’s own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at 
the valuation date, and annual healthcare cost trend rate of 4%.  The actuarial value of 
assets is set equal to the reported market value of assets.  The UAAL is being amortized 
as a level dollar on an open basis.  The remaining amortization period at  
June 30, 2014, was twenty-five years.  The number of current employees who are eligible 
to participate in OPEB once retired is 72, the number of retirees currently receiving 
benefits are 9, and to be eligible to receive benefits the employee must retire from the 
City and be taking medical insurance at the time of retirement.  
 

Note 10: Self-Insurance Program 
 

General Liability 
 

On August 8, 1990, the City became one of twelve members of the San Diego Pooled 
Insurance Program Authority (SANDPIPA) and San Diego County Cities Risk 
Management Authority (SDCCRMA).  These organizations were created by a joint 
powers authority (JPA) to provide liability, property and casualty coverage to its 
members.  Under the joint powers agreement SANDPIPA provides liability insurance 
coverage for the City for the difference between $2,500,000 and the individual 
self-insured retention of $125,000 each occurrence, $15,000,000 annual aggregate for 
the pool. Commercial excess liability insurance is provided from the $2,500,000 up to 
$44,500,000 per occurrence.  The premiums billed by the JPA to member cities are 
planned to match the expenses of the self-insurance as well as the cost of providing the 
excess layer coverage and the cost of administering the plan.   
 
In addition to its coverage through the JPA, effective July 1, 1993, the San Diego Unified 
Port District agreed to fund an Escrow Reserve Account of $300,000 for the purpose of 
reimbursing the City for any claim costs not covered by the JPA insurance, provided they 
are directly related to services provided to the District and arising from incidents actually 
occurring on tidelands and/or lands leased by the City to the District. 
 

Workers Compensation 
 

The City is a member of CSAC Excess Insurance Authority.  The City is self-insured for 
the first $250,000 of workers’ compensation claims.  Claims between $250,000 and 
$5,000,000 are covered through the City’s risk sharing membership in CSAC. Claims 
between $5,000,000 and $50,000,000 are covered by excess purchased insurance.  

 
The City established a Self-Insurance Fund (an internal service fund) to account for and 
finance its uninsured risk of loss when it became a member of SANDPIPA, PEPIP and 
CSAC for liability, property casualty and workers compensation coverage.  All funds of 
the City participate in the program and make payments to the Self-Insurance Fund based 
on estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims and to establish 
a reserve for catastrophe losses.  The estimated claims liability of $1,077,278 reported at  
June 30, 2014, is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board Statement 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information 
prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability 
has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can 
be reasonably estimated.  The above amount includes an estimate for incurred but not 
reported claims. 
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Note 10: Self-Insurance Program (Continued) 
 
During the last three fiscal years none of the above programs of protection have had 
settlements or judgments that exceeded pooled or insured coverage.  There have been no 
significant reductions in pooled or insured liability coverage from coverage in the prior year. 
 
Changes in the reported liability for the last two fiscal years are as follows: 
 

 2012-2013 2013-2014

Claims outstanding at beginning of year 1,277,785$ 1,618,483$  
Claims and changes in estimates 567,274      183,571       
Claim payments (226,576)     (204,880)     
Claims outstanding at end of year 1,618,483$ 1,597,174$  

 
Note 11: Contingencies 
 

Litigation 
 
The City is involved in various lawsuits of which the outcome was undetermined as of  
June 30, 2014.  No amount has been accrued for these contingent amounts. 
 
Sand Replenishment Claims 
 
Argoud et al. vs. City of Imperial Beach:  
In January of 2014, the City was served with a lawsuit from various homeowners and 
homeowner associations (Plaintiffs) relating to the City’s involvement with a SANDAG 
sand replenishment project, in which SANDAG performed on the beach in  
Imperial Beach. The Plaintiffs allege that SANDAG, the City of San Diego,  
the City of Imperial Beach, the State of California, the California Coastal Commission and 
the Department of Fish and Wildlife control the shoreline, beach and san below the mean 
high tide line along South Seacoast Drive. Plaintiffs allege that the governmental 
agencies negligently reconfigured the beach, sand and shoreline along South Seacoast 
Drive in and in front of their properties. According to Plaintiffs, the governmental agencies 
failed to account for and reasonable foresee the known future high tides and accustomed 
high winter surf and negligently created a dangerous condition of public property in 
violation of state law.  
 
Additional Sand Claims: 
On July 29, 2014, the City received new claims, in relation to the City’s involvement in the 
SANDAG sand replenishment project, from various homeowners and homeowner 
associations. These claims arise out of alleged water intrusion incidents and damages on 
January 27, 2014, March 1, 2014, and continuing. These claims are seeking an 
estimated $150,000,000 in damages for personal injuries, emotional distress, costs of 
repairs, and diminution of property value. The Plaintiffs have until February 26, 2015, to 
file a second lawsuit or incorporate them into the existing lawsuit above. 
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Note 11: Contingencies (Continued) 
 
Navy Billing 
 
It was discovered in 2013 that the Navy no longer discharged sewage into the City’s 
system and instead directly discharged into the San Diego system. Once San Diego 
discovered this, they wanted to bill the Navy at a higher rate. In 2013, San Diego 
approached the City and asked the City to reimburse San Diego going back four years for 
the higher rate that they would have charged the Navy. San Diego sought reimbursement 
from the City in the amount of $546,240. In August of 2013, the City rejected that request. 
In April of 2014, San Diego made a new offer to have the City pay San Diego $280,416 to 
settle the Navy billing dispute. The City accepted this offer and responded to San Diego 
in June of 2014 with a draft settlement agreement. This amount has been accrued by the 
City as a liability to the City of San Diego as of June 30, 2014.  
 
The following material construction commitments existed at June 30, 2014: 
 

Project Name
 Contract 
Amount 

Expenditures to 
date as of June 30, 

2014 
 Remaining 

Commitments 

10th & Donax 260,801$           $                238,807 21,994$            
9th & Palm Shopping Center 173,787                               113,311 60,476             
Street Improvement Phase III 194,015                                 95,937 98,078             

 
 

Note 12: Successor Agency Trust for Assets of the Former Redevelopment Agency 
 

On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill 1X 26 (“the Bill”) 
that provides for the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in the State of California. This 
action impacted the reporting entity of the City of Imperial Beach that previously had reported 
a redevelopment agency within the reporting entity of the City as a blended component unit.  
 
The Bill provides that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the city or another 
unit of local government will agree to serve as the “successor agency” to hold the assets until 
they are distributed to other units of state and local government. On November 1, 2011, the 
City Council elected to become the Successor Agency for the former redevelopment agency 
in accordance with the Bill. 
 
In accordance with the timeline set forth in the Bill (as modified by the California Supreme 
Court on December 29, 2011,) all redevelopment agencies in the State of California were 
dissolved and ceased to operate as a legal entity as of February 1, 2012. After the date of 
dissolution, the assets and activities of the dissolved redevelopment agency are reported in a 
fiduciary fund (private-purpose trust fund) in the financial statements of the City. 

 
 

54



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2014 
 

 

Note 12:  Successor Agency Trust for Assets of the Former Redevelopment Agency (Continued) 
 

a. Cash and investments 
 

Cash and investments reported in the accompanying financial statements consisted of 
the following:  
 

Cash and investments pooled with the City 2,455,150$        
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 2,811,290          

5,266,440$        
 

 
b. Long-Term Debt 

 
A description of long-term debt outstanding (excluding defeased debt) of the Successor 
Agency as of June 30, 2014, follows: 
 

Balance       
July 1, 2013 Additions Repayments

Balance         
June 30, 2014

Due Within 
One Year

Fiduciary Funds:
2003 Tax Allocation, Series A 17,965,000$    -$                    17,965,000$    -$                        -$                   
2010 Tax Allocation Bonds 21,465,000      -                      230,000           21,235,000         235,000         
2013 Tax Allocation Bonds -                       17,260,000     -                       17,260,000         -                     

Total Fiduciary Funds  $   39,430,000  $  17,260,000  $   18,195,000           38,495,000  $       235,000 

Unamortized Premiums/Discounts (147,265)             

Total Long-term Debt 38,347,735$       

 
Tax Allocation Bonds, 2003 Series A 
 

In December 2003, the Imperial Beach Public Financing Authority issued 
$22,765,000 Tax Allocation Revenue Bonds, 2003 Series A. The proceeds of the 
bonds were loaned to the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency to fund 
redevelopment activities, to provide for a reserve fund and to provide for the costs of 
issuance of the bonds. Although the bonds were issued by the Authority and loaned 
to the Redevelopment Agency, the loan transaction has been eliminated from these 
financial statements, as the Public Financing Authority does not have its own 
financial statements or fund, and certain revenues of the Redevelopment Agency are 
pledged for repayment of the debt. The bonds were defeased on January 14, 2014, 
by the issuance of new debt, the 2013 Refunding Tax Allocation Bonds (see below).  
 

Tax Allocation Bonds, 2010   
 

In November 2010, the Imperial Beach Public Financing Authority issued 
$21,595,000 Tax Allocation Bonds, 2010. The proceeds of the bonds were loaned to 
the former Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency to fund redevelopment activities, 
to provide for a reserve fund and to provide for the costs of issuance of the bonds. 
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Note 12:  Successor Agency Trust for Assets of the Former Redevelopment Agency (Continued) 
 
Although the bonds were issued by the Authority and loaned to the former 
Redevelopment Agency, the loan transaction has been eliminated from these 
financial statements, as the Public Financing Authority does not have its own 
financial statements or fund.  The Agency’s obligations under the Loan Agreements 
are secured by a pledge of Tax Revenues, not including Low and Moderate Income 
Housing set-aside that it receives.  Interest on the bonds is payable semiannually and 
principal payments are due annually. The bonds consist of $2,135,000 in term bonds 
due June 1, 2030, with interest at 5.000%; term bonds of $5,170,000 due  
June 1, 2035, with interest at 5.000% and term bonds of $10,715,000 due  
June 1, 2040, with interest at 5.125%. The balance at June 30, 2014, excluding 
unamortized original issue discount of $669,873, is $21,235,000. 

 
The following is a schedule by years, of future debt service payments as of June 30: 

Principal Interest
2014 - 2015 235,000$                1,041,106$            
2015 - 2016 245,000                  1,034,056               
2016 - 2017 255,000                  1,026,706               
2017 - 2018 265,000                  1,018,419               
2018 - 2019 275,000                  1,009,144               
2019 - 2024 1,580,000               4,869,819               
2024 - 2029 2,020,000               4,470,319               
2029 - 2034 3,810,000               3,905,969               
2034 - 2039 10,180,000            2,223,238               
2029 - 2044 2,370,000               121,463                  

  Totals 21,235,000$          20,720,239$          

2010 Tax Allocation Bonds

 
 
On June 14, 2012, Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”) downgraded all California 
tax allocation bonds rated ‘Baa3’ and above. As such, the Bonds’ insured rating was 
downgraded from ‘A3’ to ‘Ba1’ and underlying rating was downgraded from ‘A3’ 
to‘Ba1’. According to Moody’s, all California tax allocation bond ratings remain on 
review for possible withdrawal. 
 

Tax Allocation Bonds, 2013   
 

In January 2014, the Imperial Beach Public Financing Authority issued $17,260,000 
Tax Allocation Bonds, 2013. The proceeds of the bonds were to defease the  
2003 Series A Tax Allocation Bonds. Interest on the bonds is payable semiannually 
and principal payments are due annually. Debt service payments occur from  
June 1, 2017, through June 1, 2033. Interest rates on the bonds range from 3.625% 
to 5% per annum. The balance at June 30, 2014, excluding unamortized original 
issue discount of $522,608, is $17,260,000. 
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Note 12:  Successor Agency Trust for Assets of the Former Redevelopment Agency (Continued) 
 

The following is a schedule by years, of future debt service payments as of June 30: 

Principal Interest
2014 - 2015 -$                             790,463$                 
2015 - 2016 -                               790,463                   
2016 - 2017 145,000                   790,463                   
2017 - 2018 760,000                   784,663                   
2018 - 2019 790,000                   754,263                   
2020 - 2024 4,515,000                3,215,563                
2025 - 2029 5,590,000                2,115,988                
2030 - 2033 5,460,000                699,000                   
  Totals 17,260,000$           9,940,866$             

2013 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

 
 

Pledged Revenue 
 

The City pledged, as security for bonds issued, either directly or through the 
Financing Authority, a portion of tax increment revenue (including Low and Moderate 
Income Housing set-aside and pass through allocations) that it receives. The bonds 
issued were to provide financing for various capital projects, accomplish Low and 
Moderate Income Housing projects and to defease previously issued bonds.  
Assembly Bill 1X 26 provided that upon dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency, 
property taxes allocated to redevelopment agencies no longer are deemed increment 
but rather property tax revenues and will be allocated first to successor agencies to 
make payments on the indebtedness incurred by the dissolved redevelopment 
agency.  Total principal and interest remaining on the debt is $69,156,105 with 
annual debt service requirements as indicated above. For the current year, the total 
property tax revenue recognized by the Successor Agency for the payment of 
indebtedness incurred by the dissolved redevelopment agency was $1,862,118 and 
the debt service obligation on the bonds was $2,517,681. 
 

c. Insurance 
 

The Successor Agency is covered under the City of Imperial Beach’s insurance policies.  
Therefore, the limitation and self-insured retentions applicable to the City also apply to 
the Successor Agency.  Additional information as to coverage and self-insured retentions 
can be found in Note 10. 

 
d. Commitments and Contingencies 

 
At June 30, 2014, the Successor Agency was involved as a defendant in several lawsuits 
arising out of the ordinary conduct of its affairs. It is the opinion of management that 
settlements of these lawsuits, including losses for claims that are incurred but not 
reported, if any, will not have a material effect on the financial position of the Successor 
Agency. 

57



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2014 
 

 

Note 13: Fund Balance and Net Position Restatements 
 

Governmental Funds
Self-Insurance Fund

To restate compensated absences as of June 30, 2013 (2,539)$             
Total governmental activities net position restatement (2,539)$             

Fiduciary Funds
Successor Agency

To restate interest expense on the 2010 TAB (89,699)$           
Total fiduciary net position restatements (89,699)$           

 
Note 14: Extraordinary Gain 
 

On April 14, 2014, the Housing Authority fund sold property with a value of $330,692 in 
exchange for a Loan Receivable amount of $542,495; as a result, the Housing Authority fund 
experienced an extraordinary gain of $211,803 during the period ended June 30, 2014.  
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 14,866,415$    14,866,415$    14,866,415$    -$                     
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 8,161,388        8,161,388        8,940,810        779,422           
Licenses and permits 536,100           536,100           578,949           42,849             
Intergovernmental 140,000           584,553           659,169           74,616             
Charges for services 7,003,597        7,213,605        7,205,627        (7,978)              
Use of money and property 457,000           457,000           408,537           (48,463)            
Fines and forfeitures 143,500           143,500           190,099           46,599             
Miscellaneous 483,000           493,000           214,994           (278,006)          
Transfers in 871,000           871,000           779,240           (91,760)            

Amounts Available for Appropriation 32,662,000      33,326,561      33,843,840      517,279           
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
General government

Mayor/City Council 159,457           169,457           175,571           (6,114)              
City Clerk's Office 287,430           308,330           262,744           45,586             
City Manager 365,537           469,742           479,062           (9,320)              
Economic Development 105,549           105,549           57,157             48,392             
Personnel 203,541           203,540           228,066           (24,526)            
Administrative Services 519,237           581,037           578,619           2,418               
City Attorneys 205,000           205,000           172,543           32,457             
Community Development 517,436           512,336           461,931           50,405             
General government -                       344,307           300,510           43,797             
Facilities Maintenance 282,850           282,850           224,181           58,669             
Non-Departmental 286,058           365,818           237,502           128,316           

Public safety
Law Enforcement Contract 6,406,600        6,292,250        6,230,752        61,498             
Fire Protection Rescue 2,135,863        2,270,022        2,299,282        (29,260)            
Ocean Beach Safety 1,429,698        1,418,843        1,390,660        28,183             
Building Inspection 353,133           353,133           292,956           60,177             
Animal Control 275,111           269,811           265,883           3,928               
Code Enforcement 170,333           170,333           132,937           37,396             
AVA Program 8,146               8,146               4,167               3,979               

Parks and recreation
Recreation Srvcs. & Skatepark 120,508           114,508           141,121           (26,613)            
Park Maintenance 460,781           461,182           482,621           (21,439)            
Senior Services 101,484           101,484           91,464             10,020             
Tideland Maintenance 913,180           913,180           895,404           17,776             

Public works
Street Maintenance 1,042,662        1,133,638        1,029,241        104,397           
Public Works Admin. 614,701           666,631           646,040           20,591             
Solid Waste Management 84,931             208,104           179,667           28,437             
Treasury 119,113           76,113             77,449             (1,336)              
Facilities - Sewer/Stormwater 342,480           331,075           284,270           46,805             

Capital outlay 25,000             315,265           267,563           47,702             
Transfers out 17,800             -                       345,713           (345,713)          

Total Charges to Appropriations 17,553,619      18,651,684      18,235,076      416,608           

Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 15,108,381$    14,674,877$    15,608,764$    933,887$         

See Notes to Financial Statements 59



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
HOUSING AUTHORITY
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1, as restated 708,087$    708,087$    708,087$    -$                 
Resources (Inflows):
Use of money and property -                  -                  6,074          6,074           
Transfers in -                  298,043      223,043      (75,000)        
Contributions from Successor Agency -                  -                  75,000        75,000         

Amounts Available for Appropriation 708,087      1,006,130   1,012,204   6,074           
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Community development -                  591,804      613,085      (21,281)        
Extraordinary (gain)/loss -                  330,690      (211,803)     542,493       

Total Charges to Appropriations -                  922,494      401,282      521,212       

Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 708,087$    83,636$      610,922$    527,286$     

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information 60



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2014 

 
Note 1: General Budget Policies 
 

The two-year operating budget adopted by the City Council provides for the general 
operations of the City. It includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing 
them on a departmental basis. Budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund and the 
Special Revenue Funds, except for the Traffic Safety Fund, the Parks Grant Fund, and 
the Residential Construction Fund. 
 
The City Council approves total budgeted appropriations and any amendments to 
appropriations throughout the year. All amendments made during the year are included in 
the budgetary amounts reported herein. The "appropriated budget" covers all City 
expenditures, with the exception of debt service on bond issues and capital improvement 
projects carried forward from prior years, which expenditures constitute the legally 
authorized "non-appropriated budget." Actual expenditures may not exceed budgeted 
appropriations at the fund level, which is the legal level of control for the Capital Projects 
Funds. All other funds use the departmental level as the legal level of control. 
 
Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the 
year. Commitments for materials and services, such as purchase orders and contracts, 
are recorded as encumbrances to assist in controlling expenditures. Appropriations that 
are encumbered lapse at year-end and then are added to the following years’ budgeted 
appropriations. 
 
Budgets for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis 
substantially consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 
Accordingly, actual revenues and expenditures can be compared with related budgeted 
amounts without any significant reconciling items. Appropriations for capital projects 
authorized but not constructed or completed during the year are carried forward as 
continuing appropriations into the following year's budget. 
 
Under Article XIII-B of the California Constitution (the Gann Spending Limitation 
Initiative), the City is restricted as to the amount of annual appropriations from the 
proceeds of taxes, and if proceeds of taxes exceed allowed appropriations, the excess 
must either be refunded to the State Controller or returned to the taxpayers through 
revised tax rates or revised fee schedules, or an excess in one year may be offset by a 
deficit in the following year. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, based on 
calculations by City staff, proceeds of taxes did not exceed appropriations. Further, 
Section 5 of Article XIII-B allows the City to designate a portion of fund balance for 
general contingencies to be used for any purpose. 
 
Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year except for the Capital Projects Funds, 
which may be carried over to the next fiscal year if not completed at year-end. 
Expenditures may not exceed budget appropriations at the department level for the 
General Fund and at the function level for the Special Revenue Funds. 
 
A project-length budget is adopted for the capital projects funds. The debt service fund is 
governed by bond covenants; therefore, a formal budget is not adopted. Thus, the City 
does not show a budget comparison debt service funds.  In addition, the Traffic Safety 
Fund, the Parks Grant Fund, and the Residential Construction Fund did not adopt a 
budget; therefore, a budget comparison is not shown. 
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2014 

 
Note 1: General Budget Policies (continued) 

 
a. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 
 

Excess expenditures over appropriations were as follows: 
 

Expenditures Appropriations Excess
General Fund:

General government
Mayor/City Council 175,571$    169,457$     6,114$     
City Manager 479,062     469,742      9,320      
Personnel 228,066     203,540      24,526    

Public safety
Fire Protection Rescue 2,299,282  2,270,022   29,260    

Parks and recreation
Recreation Srvcs. & Skatepark 141,121     114,508      26,613    
Park Maintenance 482,621     461,182      21,439    

Public works
Treasury 77,449      76,113        1,336      

Transfers out 345,713     -             345,713  

Housing Assets Fund:
Community development 613,085     591,804      21,281    
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS         
JUNE 30, 2014

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments 2,079,718$      294,540$         241,906$         -$                     
Due from other governments 88,600             -                       -                       304,403           

         Total Assets 2,168,318$      294,540$         241,906$         304,403$         

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 14,421$           29,487$           -$                     -$                     
Accrued liabilities 14                    805                  -                       -                       
Due to other funds -                       -                       -                       329,405           

         Total Liabilities 14,435             30,292             -                       329,405           

Fund Balances:
  Restricted for:
    Public safety -                       -                       -                       -                       
    Public works 2,153,883        264,248           241,906           -                       
  Unassigned -                       -                       -                       (25,002)            

         Total Fund Balances 2,153,883        264,248           241,906           (25,002)            

     Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 2,168,318$      294,540$         241,906$         304,403$         

 Gas Tax  Prop A Tax 
 Residential 

Construction  CDBG Grant 

Special Revenue Funds
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Due from other governments

         Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds

         Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
  Restricted for:
    Public safety
    Public works
  Unassigned

         Total Fund Balances

     Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

        

83,153$           20,376$           15,203$           110$                
16,145             -                       -                       -                       

99,298$           20,376$           15,203$           110$                

100,000$         -$                     2,002$             -$                     
-                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       -                       -                       

100,000           -                       2,002               -                       

-                       20,376             13,201             110                  
-                       -                       -                       -                       

(702)                 -                       -                       -                       

(702)                 20,376             13,201             110                  

99,298$           20,376$           15,203$           110$                

 Lighting 
District #67 

 Traffic Safety 
Fund 

 Supplemental 
Law 

Enforcement 

 Local Law 
Enforcement 
Block Grant 

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Due from other governments

         Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds

         Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
  Restricted for:
    Public safety
    Public works
  Unassigned

         Total Fund Balances

     Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

      

Special 
Revenue Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

91$                    -$                     -$                     2,735,097$          
-                         86,594             -                       495,742               

91$                    86,594$           -$                     3,230,839$          

-$                       29,131$           -$                     175,041$             
-                         720                  -                       1,539                   
-                         89,314             6                      418,725               

-                         119,165           6                      595,305               

-                         -                       -                       33,687                 
-                         -                       -                       2,660,037            

91                      (32,571)            (6)                     (58,190)                

91                      (32,571)            (6)                     2,635,534            

91$                    86,594$           -$                     3,230,839$          

 Parks 
Maintenance 

CIP 
 Capital 
Projects 

 Parks Grant 
Fund 

 Capital Projects Fund 
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

 
Revenues:
Assessments -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Intergovernmental 907,042           631,100           -                       386,972           
Charges for services -                       21,653             24,300             -                       
Use of money and property 12,947             1,882               1,750               -                       
Miscellaneous -                       -                       -                       229                  

               Total Revenues 919,989           654,635           26,050             387,201           

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government 10,138             -                       -                       -                       
   Parks and recreation -                       -                       -                       -                       
   Public works 5,301               15,093             -                       -                       
Capital outlay 34,814             64,554             -                       386,570           

               Total Expenditures 50,253             79,647             -                       386,570           

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                Over (Under) Expenditures 869,736           574,988           26,050             631                  

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in -                       -                       -                       -                       
Transfers out (382,740)          (717,414)          -                       -                       

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses) (382,740)          (717,414)          -                       -                       

               Net Change in Fund Balances 486,996           (142,426)          26,050             631                  

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,666,887        406,674           215,856           (25,633)            

Fund Balances, End of Year 2,153,883$      264,248$         241,906$         (25,002)$          

 Gas Tax  Prop A Tax 
 Residential 

Construction  CDBG Grant 

Special Revenue Funds
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

 
Revenues:
Assessments
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

               Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government
   Parks and recreation
   Public works
Capital outlay

               Total Expenditures

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses)

               Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

-$                     -$                     11,638$           -$                     
100,000           -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       122                  -                       
-                       -                       -                       -                       

100,000           -                       11,760             -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       24,817             -                       
-                       -                       -                       -                       

100,000           -                       -                       -                       

100,000           -                       24,817             -                       

-                       -                       (13,057)            -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       (13,057)            -                       

(702)                 20,376             26,258             110                  

(702)$               20,376$           13,201$           110$                

 Lighting 
District #67 

 Traffic Safety 
Fund 

 Supplemental 
Law 

Enforcement 

 Local Law 
Enforcement 
Block Grant 

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

 
Revenues:
Assessments
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

               Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government
   Parks and recreation
   Public works
Capital outlay

               Total Expenditures

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses)

               Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

      

Total
Governmental

Funds

-$                     -                       -                       11,638$           
-                       234,355           -                       2,259,469        
-                       -                       -                       45,953             
-                       1,533               1,840               20,074             
-                       -                       -                       229                  

-                       235,888           1,840               2,337,363        

-                       12,962             -                       23,100             
-                       -                       -                       24,817             
-                       144                  -                       20,538             
-                       283,916           124,516           994,370           

-                       297,022           124,516           1,062,825        

-                       (61,134)            (122,676)          1,274,538        

-                       320,914           122,670           443,584           
-                       -                       -                       (1,100,154)       

-                       320,914           122,670           (656,570)          

-                       259,780           (6)                     617,968           

91                    (292,351)          -                       2,017,566        

91$                  (32,571)$          (6)$                   2,635,534$      

 Parks 
Maintenance 

CIP 
 Capital 
Projects 

 Parks Grant 
Fund 

Special 
Revenue Funds  Capital Projects Fund 
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GAS TAX
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 1,666,887$ 1,666,887$   1,666,887$  -$                   
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental 779,203      779,203        907,042       127,839         
Use of money and property 18,000        18,000          12,947         (5,053)            

Amounts Available for Appropriation 2,464,090   2,464,090     2,586,876    122,786         
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
General government 37,140        58,065          10,138         47,927           
Public works 13,260        13,260          5,301           7,959             
Capital outlay 68,803        450,803        34,814         415,989         
Transfers out 678,000      678,000        382,740       295,260         

Total Charges to Appropriations 797,203      1,200,128     432,993       767,135         

Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 1,666,887$ 1,263,962$   2,153,883$  889,921$       
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
PROP A TAX
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 406,674$    406,674$      406,674$     -$                   
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental 644,186      644,186        631,100       (13,086)          
Charges for services 12,400        12,400          21,653         9,253             
Use of money and property 14,000        14,000          1,882           (12,118)          

Amounts Available for Appropriation 1,077,260   1,077,260     1,061,309    (15,951)          
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Public works 26,500        26,500          15,093         11,407           
Capital outlay 451,000      1,089,675     64,554         1,025,121      
Transfers out 193,000      193,000        717,414       (524,414)        

Total Charges to Appropriations 670,500      1,309,175     797,061       512,114         

Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 406,760$    (231,915)$     264,248$     496,163$       
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CDBG GRANT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 (25,633)$     (25,633)$       (25,633)$      -$                   
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental 300,000      300,000        386,972       86,972           
Miscellaneous -                  -                    229              229                

Amounts Available for Appropriation 274,367      274,367        361,568       87,201           
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Capital outlay -                  438,654        386,570       52,084           
Transfers out 300,000      -                    -                   -                     

Total Charges to Appropriations 300,000      438,654        386,570       52,084           

Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 (25,633)$     (164,287)$     (25,002)$      139,285$       
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SUPPLEMENTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 (702)$          (702)$            (702)$           -$                   
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental 100,000      100,000        100,000       -                     

Amounts Available for Appropriation 99,298        99,298          99,298         -                     
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Capital outlay 100,000      100,000        100,000       -                     

Total Charges to Appropriations 100,000      100,000        100,000       -                     

Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 (702)$          (702)$            (702)$           -$                   
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT BLOCK GRANT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 20,376$      20,376$        20,376$       -$                   
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental 30,000        30,000          -                   (30,000)          

Amounts Available for Appropriation 50,376        50,376          20,376         (30,000)          
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Capital outlay 30,000        30,000          -                   30,000           

Total Charges to Appropriations 30,000        30,000          -                   30,000           

Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 20,376$      20,376$        20,376$       -$                   
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
LIGHTING DISTRICT #67
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 26,258$      26,258$        26,258$       -$                   
Resources (Inflows):
Assessments 12,000        12,000          11,638         (362)               
Use of money and property 200             200               122              (78)                 
Transfers in 17,800        17,800          -                   (17,800)          

Amounts Available for Appropriation 56,258        56,258          38,018         (18,240)          
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Parks and recreation 30,000        30,000          24,817         5,183             

Total Charges to Appropriations 30,000        30,000          24,817         5,183             

Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 26,258$      26,258$        13,201$       (13,057)$        
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL PROJECTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 (292,351)$   (292,351)$     (292,351)$    -$                   
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental -                  200,000        234,355       34,355           
Use of money and property -                  -                    1,533           1,533             
Transfers in -                  25,000          320,914       295,914         

Amounts Available for Appropriation (292,351)     (67,351)         264,451       331,802         
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
General government -                  -                    12,962         (12,962)          
Public works -                  -                    144              (144)               
Capital outlay -                  307,861        283,916       23,945           

Total Charges to Appropriations -                  307,861        297,022       10,839           

Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 (292,351)$   (375,212)$     (32,571)$      342,641$       
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
C.I.P. 2010 BOND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 4,907,292$ 4,907,292$    4,907,292$  -$                   
Resources (Inflows):
Charges for services -                  -                     150,000       150,000         
Use of money and property -                  -                     29,329         29,329           

Amounts Available for Appropriation 4,907,292   4,907,292      5,086,621    179,329         
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
General government -                  -                     56,899         (56,899)          
Capital outlay -                  320,747         382,301       (61,554)          

Total Charges to Appropriations -                  320,747         439,200       (118,453)        

Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 4,907,292$ 4,586,545$    4,647,421$  60,876$         
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014

Totals
Assets:
Current:

Cash and investments 888,279$            3,259,644$        452,135$             407,166$          5,007,224$         
Due from other governments 25,115                -                        -                           -                        25,115                

Total Current Assets 913,394              3,259,644          452,135               407,166            5,032,339           

Noncurrent:
Capital assets - net of 1,233,236           -                        47,194                 -                        1,280,430           
accumulated depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets 1,233,236           -                        47,194                 -                        1,280,430           

Total Assets 2,146,630$         3,259,644$        499,329$             407,166$          6,312,769$         

Liabilities and Net Position:

Liabilities:
Current:

Accounts payable 15,426$              2,724$               11,207$               -$                      29,357$              
Accrued liabilities 17,254                4,350                 12,706                 -                        34,310                
Accrued compensated absences -                          8,323                 -                           -                        8,323                  
Accrued claims and judgments -                          526,174             -                           -                        526,174              

Total Current Liabilities 32,680                541,571             23,913                 -                        598,164              

Noncurrent:
Accrued compensated absences 40,806                -                        4,448                   -                        45,254                
Accrued claims and judgments -                          1,071,000          -                           -                        1,071,000           

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 40,806                1,071,000          4,448                   -                        1,116,254           

Total Liabilities 73,486                1,612,571          28,361                 -                        1,714,418           

Net Position:
Investment in capital assets 1,233,236           -                        -                           -                        1,233,236           
Unrestricted 839,908              1,647,073          470,968               407,166            3,365,115           

Total Net Position 2,073,144           1,647,073          470,968               407,166            4,598,351           

Total Liabilities and Net Position 2,146,630$         3,259,644$        499,329$             407,166$          6,312,769$         

 Vehicle 
Replacement & 

Maintenance  Self-Insurance 
 Technology & 

Communication 

 Facilities 
Repair & 

Maintenance 
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Totals
Operating Revenues:
Sales and service charges 572,388$             257,136$            471,504$                 138,996$            1,440,024$         
Miscellaneous 146,914               80,998               324                          -                          228,236              

Total Operating Revenues 719,302               338,134              471,828                   138,996              1,668,260           

Operating Expenses:
Services and supplies 1,362                  405,815              250,552                   26,974                684,703              
Claims expense -                          26,214               -                              -                          26,214               
Depreciation expense 108,184               -                         10,241                     -                          118,425              
Personnel and administrative 343,826               87,705               250,103                   -                          681,634              

Total Operating Expenses 453,372               519,734              510,896                   26,974                1,510,976           

Operating Loss 265,930               (181,600)            (39,068)                    112,022              157,284              

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Intergovernmental -                          -                         -                              -                          -                         
Interest revenue 8,125                  23,873               3,231                       2,762                  37,991               

Total Nonoperating  
   Revenues 8,125                  23,873               3,231                       2,762                  37,991               

Changes in Net Position 274,055               (157,727)            (35,837)                    114,784              195,275              

Net Position:

Beginning of Year, as originally reported 1,799,089            1,807,339           506,805                   292,382              4,405,615           

Restatements -                          (2,539)                -                              -                          (2,539)                

Beginning of Fiscal Year, as restated 1,799,089            1,804,800           506,805                   292,382              4,403,076           

End of Fiscal Year 2,073,144$          1,647,073$         470,968$                 407,166$            4,598,351$         

 Vehicle 
Replacement & 

Maintenance  Self-Insurance 
 Technology & 

Communication 
 Facilities Repair 
& Maintenance 
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Totals
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from/(paid to) interfund service provided 718,098 $           340,826 $            471,828 $               138,996 $           1,669,748 $        
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 6,508                (557,648)           (245,838)              (30,157)             (827,135)          
Cash paid to employees for services (342,993)           10,605              (255,704)              -                       (588,092)          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 381,613            (206,217)           (29,714)                108,839            254,521           

Cash Flows from Capital 
and Related Financing Activities:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (815,367)           -                        (31,964)                -                       (847,331)          
accumulated depreciation

Net Cash Used in
   Capital and Related Financing Activities (815,367)           -                        (31,964)                -                       (847,331)          

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received 8,125                23,873              3,231                   2,762                37,991             

Net Cash Provided by
Investing Activities 8,125                23,873              3,231                   2,762                37,991             

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents (425,629)           (182,344)           (58,447)                111,601            (554,819)          

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 1,313,908         3,441,988         510,582               295,565            5,562,043        

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 888,279$          3,259,644$        452,135$             407,166$          5,007,224$      

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating loss 265,930$          (181,600)$         (39,068)$              112,022$          157,284$         
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
  net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 108,184            -                        10,241                 -                       118,425           
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments (1,204)               2,692                -                           -                       1,488               
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 7,870                (14,066)             4,714                   (3,183)               (4,665)              
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 716                   1,811                3,784                   -                       6,311               
Increase (decrease) in claims and judgments -                       (23,848)             -                           -                       (23,848)            
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 117                   8,794                (9,385)                  -                       (474)                 

Total Adjustments 115,683            (24,617)             9,354                   (3,183)               97,237             
Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
   Operating Activities 381,613$          (206,217)$         (29,714)$              108,839$          254,521$         

 Vehicle 
Replacement & 

Maintenance  Self-Insurance 
 Technology & 

Communication 

 Facilities 
Repair & 

Maintenance 
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments 387,593$         

Total Assets 387,593$         

Liabilities:
Due to bondholders 387,593$         

Total Liabilities 387,593$         

Special 
Assessment 

Districts
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CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Balance Balance
7/1/2013 Additions Deductions 6/30/2014

Special Assessment Districts

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments 383,374$         5,219$             1,000$             387,593$         

Total Assets 383,374$         5,219$             1,000$             387,593$         

Liabilities:
Due to bondholders 383,374$         5,219$             1,000$             387,593$         

Total Liabilities 383,374$         5,219$             1,000$             387,593$         
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Attachment 3





Attachment 4



 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Imperial Beach, California 
 

Unadjusted Audit Differences

Accounts payable not recognized in the proper period 8,083$                          
Interest expense was overstated on 2003 TAB (11,529)                         
Interest payable was overstated on the 2010 & 2013 bonds (7,479)                          

-                                  
-                                  

Cumulative effect (before effect of prior year differences) (10,925)                         

Effect of unadjusted audit difference - prior year -                                  

Cumulative effect (after effect of prior year differences) (10,925)$                       

Current Year Over 
(Under) Revenues and 

Expenditures/Expenses 
and Changes in Fund 

Balance/Equity

 
 

Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated November 20, 2014. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of 
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City of Imperial Beach’s auditors. 
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our 
responses were not a condition to our retention. 
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